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We are continuously striving on aligning our 
business strategy with our objectives. Our 

objectives are to continue building the trust 
acumen for our shareholders and keep our 

direction towards our goals.
The priority for Hascol is to keep our focus 

towards achieving success for the organization and 
our shareholders. It is through their trust that we 

lead towards continuous success.

Contents

Hascol Annual Report 2017

147



Vision
To become the 
leading energy 
marketing 
company in 
Pakistan through 
operational 
exellence, talent 
management, 
business 
diversification and 
substainable 
expansion.
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Mission
To gain recognition and 
leadership in the hydrocarbon 
and energy sectors, by 
maximizing customer 
satisfaction and shareholder 
value through continuous 
improvement, high quality 
human capital, appropriate 
technology, and by adhering to 
the Company’s Core Values.
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01
HASCOL believes 
that communication 
is the most powerful 
tool; hence, we 
proactively 
communicate with 
our people & 
implement programs 
that address specific 
hazards faced in our 
industry.

02
Ongoing risk 
assessment of our 
operations where 
management actively 
seeks feedback from 
employees as our 
operational growth 
occurs.

03
Benchmark our 
HSEQ
policy with our 
strategic partners 
and competitors to 
add value in our 
standards and 
continually review 
them to achieve or 
even exceed industry 
standards.

Our continuing success 
has never wavered our 
determination from 
keeping health, safety and 
environment as our top 
priority. Our Zero Harm 
Policy continues to 
flourish and is 
continuously being 
shared and implemented 
with our employees, 
contractors, and other 
stakeholders.

Hascol Petroleum Limited 
has set following guiding 
principles throughout its 
business in order to 
achieve the aims & 
objectives of Zero Harm 
Policy. 

04
Our actions have
a direct consequential
affect to the environment; 
so we aim to monitor our 
carbon foot-print and 
other contaminations / 
pollution that occurs in 
the span of our operations 
and mitigate them.

Zero Harm- 
Continuing 
with the 
legacy of 
safety...
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05
Our initiative has 
obliged us to prepare 
contingency plans to 
counter any adverse 
event/threat that can 
potentially disrupt 
our operations.

06
A progressive attitude 
which acknowledges that 
all workplace injuries or 
disease are preventable; 
employees are encouraged 
to report an incident and 
any near misses; where a 
near miss is defined as a 
situation which could have 
adverse consequences if 
circumstances prevailed.

07
Respect local and 
international law so 
that we set a prime 
example in the 
industry; and formulate 
our operation in order 
to avoid any potential 
breaches; thus setting 
an image of a 
responsible 
organization.

08
Employees have a
responsibility to
identify and isolate 
any
hazards during tasks,
be it in the office or 
out in operations; and 
our on the job 
continuous training 
program are pivotal 
for achieving this 
mission.

09
In conclusion, our belief is 
based on a moral obligation 
that any contribution we 
make today sets the tone 
for our future; so we strive 
to be accountable for 
achieving the best.
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Corporate
Objectives
and Business
Strategy
At HASCOL, our focus 
on sustainability 
healthy ethics plan is 
driven by our 
long-standing 
commitment to doing 
what is right.
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reaching remote areas for domestic consumption and 
to cater the energy needs of all the industrial clients in 
an efficient and profitable manner. 

Hascol Petroleum Limited recognizes oil and gas as an 
energy resource integral to future needs for economic 
development in this era of world globalization.

Our business strategy is devised in a manner that 
ensures fulfilling energy needs in an environmentally 
viable and socially responsible conduct.  At Hascol 
Petroleum Limited, our aspiration is to attain a high 
standard of performance with robust profitability as 
well as strengthening market position in the 
competitive environment.  We closely liaise with our 
customers, partners and policy-makers to fulfill 
everyone's needs.

A reputation is not built overnight. But when core 
values are in place, customers give it recognition for 
international standards, good governance and fair play.

The objective of Hascol Petroleum Limited 
is to create a retail network catering the 
fuel needs of its customer base
throughout the country;
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Hascol Petroleum Limited transacts its 
business based on the following Business 
Principles; for which the objectives are 
stated below:

Values of HASCOL,
We at HASCOL, follow a set of business principles that 
let us achieve remarkable success in every aspect. 
HASCOL Petroleum limited functions effectively by 
aligning the following business goals, these values are 
abide by the set of beliefs as prescribed by our founding 
father – Unity, Faith and Discipline. We strongly value the 
importance of trust, openness, teamwork and 
professionalism, and take great pride in how we do 
business. Hascol keeps its doors open for 
feedback/suggestions to the management and human 
resource and constantly emphasis on employees to 
demonstrate a high level of discipline in their role, 
establishing a culture of ingenuity. 

Competitive Environment 
HASCOL focuses on building the competitive 
environment that supports the practical implementation 
of free and fair competition amongst the industry 
members. We believe in following honest business 
practices that are sustainable and rewarding for the 
business in the long run. We seek to compete ethically 
abiding by the local and international legislation and 
within the framework of applicable competition laws in 
the relevant jurisdiction. 

Integrity and Honesty
For HASCOL, honesty, integrity, and fairness is what 
matters the most in all aspects of its business; be it a 
customers, suppliers, contractors or external 
partnerships while expecting the same in our 
interactions. The direct or indirect offer, facilitation 
payments, soliciting or acceptance of bribes in any form 
is unacceptable. Employees are expected to avoid 
conflicts of interest between their private activities and 
their part in the conduct of company business. Insider 
trading and passing on sensitive company information is 
strictly forbidden. HASCOL encourages honesty in all its 
dealings and business transactions that is reflected in 
accurate and fair financial statements of the company.

Safeguarding the Human Capital
HASCOL vigilantly takes care that business functions are 
performed safely. This is the reason we keep aligned the 
health, safety, security, and environmental management 

factors with our business functions to achieve the high 
potential of our employees. Our “Zero Harm Charter” 
revolves around the contribution and importance our 
workforce provides in our growth. At HASCOL, we 
promotes an open culture that allows every employee to 
come forward and address their personal concerns  to 
the human resource on confidential basis or any issue 
that may affect their performance.  In case of personal 
counselling general management do take notice. 
HASCOL understand that advancement in these matters 
will enhance their business operations and keep on 
exploring the area of improvement. 

Economics
Profitability makes businesses fuelled up with growth, 
sustainability and prosperity. It speaks about the brand 
value and customers’ commitment to the product & 
service. Profitability helps us to simplify business 
processes bringing in innovations to market more 
effectively. On the other hand, the considerable saving of 
costs frees up cash for investment for another place or 
plan, further improving our prospects for growth. 
HASCOL make sure to invest and reallocate the 
resources in all aspects including, social, economic and 
environmental on micro and macro level, validating our 
decision making process and their outcomes. 

Meetings and Engagements 
HASCOL gives importance to the views of it stakeholders 
and this makes it obligatory for us to share the right 
amount of information at right time. We lift the 
confidence of legitimately interested parties by 
representing the authentic and reliable information. The 
regular investor’s relations programme of meetings 
between shareholders, analysts, senior management and 
directors makes the operations workout smoothly.  This 
helps us to respond to their concern easily, and providing 
them feedback honestly and responsibly. Our employees 
also follow a stringent rule of having formal work 
relations and not to compromise on principles.

Compliance 
We comply with all applicable laws and regulations of the 
Islamic Republic of Pakistan where we operate. Any 
breach is a matter of prompt scrutiny and immediate 
action against the perpetrators. Within our organization, 
we have also internal procedures which are just as 
important as our daily tasks. General Management 
ensures that employees follow the code of conduct and 
work under the assigned principles without following any 
shortcuts. Our retail sites ensure the safe disposal of 
hazardous material and other elements that cause 
environmental pollution.
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Business based on our Principles
Hascol's core values of unity, faith and discipline coupled 
with honesty, integrity and respect for people are the 
basis for all the work we do and are the foundation of our 
Business Principles. These rules apply to all 
transactions, and are the basis of the behavior expected 
of every employee in Hascol Petroleum Limited at all 
times. Our reputation is based on our actions and it will 
be upheld if we act in accordance with the law and the 
Business Principles. We encourage our business partners 
to follow these principles. We persuade our employees to 
demonstrate leadership, accountability and teamwork, 
and through these behaviors, to contribute to the overall 
success of Hascol Petroleum Limited. It is the 
responsibility of the management to lead by example, to 
ensure that all employees are aware of these principles, 
and behave in accordance with the spirit of this 
statement. The application of these principles is 
underpinned by a comprehensive set of assurance 
procedures which are designed to make sure that our 
employees understand the principles and confirm that 
they act in accordance with them. 

As part of the assurance system, it is also the 
responsibility of management to provide employees with 
safe and confidential channels to raise concerns and 
report instances of non-compliance. In return, it is the 
responsibility of the employees to report suspected 
breaches of the Business Principles to the management. 
The Business Principles have been fundamental to how 
we conduct our business and living by them is crucial to 
our continued success.

COUNTRY POLITICS

a. Of Companies
Hascol Petroleum Limited pursues its activities within 
the laws and statutes of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan 
whereby our aim is to legitimately accomplish our 
commercial objectives. The initiatives of Triple Bottom 
Reporting are gradually evolving among the corporate 
circles of Pakistan, where the pillars of focus are People, 
Profit and Planet and Corporate Social Responsibility. 
Throughout our general principle statement, there will be 
extracts of practical implementation of the TBR charter. 

Hascol Petroleum Limited
as a rule of thumb does not make payments to political 
parties or organization, or to their affiliates 
/representatives whatsoever. The Company does not take 
part in any external/internal affairs with regulatory 
bodies unless compliance issue arises or authorized 

instruction permits us to do so. However, with such 
dealings, Hascol Petroleum Limited has the right to make 
our position known on any matters which affect us, our 
employees, our customers, our shareholders or the local 
communities in which we operate, in a manner which is 
in accordance with our ethical values and the best 
practices of our company.

b. Of Employees
Hascol Petroleum Limited has encouraged the need of a 
friendly work environment and identified the deal 
conduct for a decent workplace culture and interaction 
with all stakeholders. Harassment has been explicitly 
stated and what is unacceptable includes: jokes, insults, 
threats, and other unwelcome actions about a person’s 
race, gender, age, religion, ancestry, social or economic 
status or educational background is strictly forbidden. 
Nor is any employee eligible to verbally or physically 
conduct himself/herself that upsets another’s work 
performance creating a fearful or hostile work 
environment. Hascol Petroleum Limited has ensured to 
provide safe working environment based on our 
statements in the “Zero Harm Charter”. Also, we 
discourage intoxication or use of illegal substance at 
work premises and employees violating shall be 
subjected to disciplinary action. Where individuals wish 
to engage in political activities in the community, 
including standing for election to public office, they will 
be given the opportunity to do so where this is 
appropriate keeping in view the specific circumstances of 
that particular scenario.
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We have a Business Ethics Charter by the name 
of BUSINESS, COMPLIANCE & ETHICS 
GUIDELINE that dictates our commitment to fair 
dealing and highlighting ourselves as a 
professional entity in the oil marketing sector. 
Our initiative is to avoid any consequential 
events due to non-conformance of local and 
foreign legislation and be subjected to penal 
scrutiny. Apart from General Business 
Principles; Hascol Petroleum Limited has placed 
this additional guideline for its operational 
engagement with the relevant stakeholders.

Business Compliance, &
Ethics Guideline

Customer Relation
Hascol Petroleum Limited will compete for business 
aggressively and honestly in the competitive oil 
marketing industry, and shall constrict itself in the 
following ways: 
•  Will not misrepresent any products, services and 

prices.
•  Will not make false claims about our competitors.
•  Product alteration / blending or change in 

specifications is only allowed if requested by the 
customer, or permitted by regulation or commercial 
practice. 

•  Only supply safe products and services that meet all 
applicable government standards and regulations.

Supplier Relation
Hascol Petroleum Limited shall ensure all procurement 
decisions are based on best value received by us and a 
supplier analysis needs to be conducted. Base the 
purchase of goods and services only on the merits of 
price, quality, performance and suitability.
•  Avoid reciprocal agreements or exchange of favors.
•  The fee or price paid for goods and services by Hascol 

Petroleum Limited shall represent the value of the 
goods or services provided. Hascol Petroleum Limited 
shall ensure its maximum ability to refrain from using 
suppliers who participate in the following activities:

•  Supply unsafe products or services.
•  Break laws or regulations.
•  Hidden deals and unscrupulous commitments.

Entertainment & Gifts
Gifts, favor or entertainment should not be accepted or
provided if it will obligate or appear to obligate the
person who receives it. Employees may accept or give
gifts, favors and entertainment subject to the following
criteria:
•  Not against the laws and policies of other parties’ 

company.
•  Not intended to serve as a bribe, payoff or to get 

improper influence.
•  Should not have been requested or asked to be 

provided.
•  Should not affect business relationship in any 

negative manner.

Information Sharing
Unless sharing information with external suppliers and 
customers is against the law or our standard business 
practise, Hascol Petroleum Limited shall encourage 
sharing information when it may improve the quality or 
use of our products. Passing on internal memos and 
confidential documentation / paperwork is strictly 
forbidden; if Hascol proprietary information is given 
outside the company, it has to be ensured that a written 
confidentiality and non-disclosure agreement is 
prepared, and that proper controls are established to 
manage the flow of information. Otherwise, the 
concerned employee is in serious breach of the business 
ethics and subject to prosecution.

General Public Relation
Hascol Petroleum Limited considers the general public as 
its brand ambassador; our brilliance in products and 
services must outshine that of competitors; thus allow for 
our market share to rise at our desired optimal level. 
Dispelling rumours and misinforming about competitors 
products and services to the public is highly prohibited 
and any competitor that indulges in such activities must 
be dealt with the guidelines prescribed by OGRA and 
other regulations and legislation. Our business ethics 
guide us to avoid unnecessary comparisons and 
benchmarking of retrospective performance of 
competitors.

Society and Local Communities
Hascol Petroleum Limited aims to be society’s best friend 
and foster healthy relationships within our communities. 
Our aim is to monitor possible impacts of the actions we 
pursue and ensure that we create recreational facilities 
adjacent to our retail outlets with provision of fast food 
franchise chains. This was an idea provisioned by our 
marketing team to provide a means of light 
entertainment to the local residents. In 
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addition, Hascol Petroleum Limited takes a constructive 
interest in societal matters directly or indirectly related 
to our business and donation payments for social causes 
are made on a regular basis. Two well-renowned 
charities are regular recipients of our donations. 
Employees can in some instances given time of for 
appropriate volunteer work and can also refer to 
legitimate registered.

Responsibilities
Hascol Petroleum Limited recognizes its responsibilities 
towards all the stakeholders. The management is 
responsible to continuously assess these priorities and 
discharge them on the basis of its assessment. These 
responsibilities pertain to:
•  Protect shareholders' investment, and provide 

competitive long-term return; benchmarking other 
leading companies in the oil marketing industry as 
well as to create a brand name; and supplement 
growth of its affiliate brand FUCHS.

•  Developing and maintaining a staunch customer base 
by providing products and services which offer value 
in terms of price, quality, safety and positive 
environmental and commercial expertise thereby 
create a brand loyalty of Hascol in customers by 
offering the best possible products and services.

•  Employees are our most important assets and they 
receive utmost respect, rights, good and safe working 
conditions and to commensurate them with 
competitive terms and conditions of employment. We 
appreciate innovation and hard work and regular 
appraisals based on performance are some of the few 
means which we use to promote the development and 
best use of the talents of our employees. We recognize 
that commercial success depends on the full 
commitment of all employees.

•  The external stakeholders are the contractors, 
dealers and suppliers with whom we seek to transact 
business which is mutually beneficial. The ability to 
promote these principles effectively will be an 
important factor in the decision to enter into or 
remain in such relationship.

•  Overall, Hascol Petroleum Limited believes in 
conducting our business as responsible corporate 

members of the society, to comply with applicable 
laws and regulations, to support fundamental human 
rights in line with the legitimate role of business, and 
to give proper regard to health, safety, security and 
the environment.

 General Principles, Business, Compliance and Ethics 
and Zero Harm Charter is subject to constant review 
and updated as per our business requirements. We 
seek continuous feedback from a variety of 
stakeholders and vested interest group as the 
dynamic and unpredictable nature of the oil 
marketing business demands us to be proactive.

I welcome the sincere initiatives of any 
respective reader of our General 
Principles and overall this report to 
present Hascol Petroleum Limited with 
any clarification and constructive 
feedback they deem has to be brought to 
our attention.

Mumtaz Hasan Khan
Chairman & Director
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I am delighted to report another outstanding year for 
the company.  Our sales volumes increased by almost 
39% and our profit after tax was in excess of rupees 
1.401 billion . As such, we have exceeded the 
challenging targets, which the Board had set for the 
management. Your company ended the year, as the 
second largest Oil Marketing Company in the country 
in terms of volumes. 

As, I mentioned in my last report, the Company has 
set up a new joint venture company with Vitol by the 
name of Hascol Terminals Limited. The work on the 
terminal has started and the first phase of the project 
will be completed INSHALLAH by June this year. 
Similarly, at the Lube Oil Blending Plant at Port 
Qasim, the work is moving at a very fast pace and we 
hope to commission the plant by June this year.

 We have formally received the LPG Marketing 
Licence from OGRA, and the company is now in the 
process of setting up a storage terminal and a cylinder 
filling facility.

I am also pleased to advise you that Hascol has 
started a Chemical business and we are importing 
bulk chemicals and supplying to end users.

Your Board has again set very ambitious targets for 
the current year and the Management is very 
confident of achieving these targets. We are hoping 
that our market share by the end of this year will be 
14-15%.

Your company is also aggressively building storage 

facilities all over the country. Last year we 
commissioned Mehmoodkot and Sahiwal depot, this 
year we will be commissioning storage facilities at 
Thalian and Kotlajam. With the completion of these 
storage facilities, our supply chain management will 
improve further and give us a great edge over our 
competitors.

After PSO, Hascol will have the largest storage 
infrastructure in Pakistan.

Finally, I would like to thank the Board for their 
guidance in pursuing an aggressive business strategy 
and in making recommendations in our corporate 
governance. I would also like to place on record the 
efforts of the management team and all employees for 
efficiently executing the Business Plan of the company 
and exceeding the ambitious targets.

I am confident that the future of the company is now 
assured as, Mr. Saleem Butt has now taken over as the 
new Chief Executive Officer of the company.

Mumtaz Hasan Khan
Chairman & Director
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CEO’S
Message
CEO’S
Message
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Dear Shareholders,
2017 has been another record year for Hascol 
Petroleum Limited, Alhamdolillah!
I’m pleased to announce our results for the year 
ended December 2017. It has been a year of strong 
performance by all functions, market share 
consolidation and expansion. The Board of 
Directors is pleased to announce and recommend a 
final cash dividend of Rs. 3.5 per share.

Despite continuous fluctuation of oil prices 
throughout the year and weakening of the Pakistani 
Rupee against the Dollar, your Company was still 
able to deliver outstanding results and continued to 
provide quality and sustainable supplies to its 
customers’ nationwide. We finished the year as the 
second largest Oil Marketing Company (in terms of 
volume), which speaks of our commitment to the 
value and trust of our shareholders.

We are pleased to inform that Hascol Petroleum 
Limited’s retail network has increased to 498 sites. 
We are continuously investing and increasing our 
supply chain infrastructure, depots and terminals. 
Concurrently, our OGRA Standards compliant 
company fleet has reached 67 and has successfully 
completed one and a half years of safe and reliable 
operations.

In 2017, with the issuance of right shares, your 
Company is now poised to make critical and 
strategic investments that will help us further 
cement our position in the market. JCR-VIS Credit 
Rating Company Limited has upgraded the entity 

ratings of Hascol Petroleum Limited to ‘AA- / A-1’ 
(Double A Minus / A – One) from ‘A+/A-1’ (Single A 
Plus / A – One). The improved ratings are a 
consequence of our increasing market share, 
significant ongoing and projected investments in 
infrastructure (storage, retail footprint and supply 
chain) and other initiatives which will facilitate in 
sustaining our growth momentum.

Going forward, our objectives for this year are even 
more ambitious as we pursue an aggressive growth 
strategy and focus on further Retail Development, 
NFR businesses, strong Commercial and B to B 
sales, company fleet expansion, and diversification 
into new product streams.

I am indebted to The HASCOL Team which has 
again put in tremendous efforts. Our human capital 
is second to none and it’s dedication is also without 
parallel. We have strengthened our Team by 
inductions of capable, young professionals. And 
complimented by a very experienced, agile and 
competent management team, we have a winning 
combination.

I would also like to express my sincere gratitude for 
the valued support provided by our shareholders, 
suppliers, contractors and service providers, 
financial institutions, regulatory bodies, the 
Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Resources, and 
above all, our customers. 

I and my Team look forward to another exciting and 
successful year, In Sha Allah!!



The Directors of 
your Company 
are pleased to 

present the 
Annual Report 

of the Company 
along with 

audited 
standalone and 

consolidated 
financial 

statements and 
auditors’ report 
thereon for the 

year ended 31st 
December 2017.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

 The profit for the year ended 31st December 2017 after providing for administrative, 
marketing and distribution expenses, financial and other charges amounts to:

Appropriations and movement in reserves have been disclosed in the Statement of Changes 
in Equity on page 47 of the Annual Report.

During the year the Company has achieved a growth of 39% as compared to last year, with 
sales volume at 2,592,188 MT. The Gross Profits have also improved by 44.03%, thereby 
generating a Profit after Tax of Rs. 1.401 billion in comparison to Rs. 1.215 billion of previous 
year, showing an increase of 15.27%. 

The standalone EPS for the year is Rs. 10.70 which is 13.71% higher than the last year EPS of 
Rs.9.41. 

 (Rupees in ‘000)

Profit before taxation 2,658,699
Taxation (1,257,451)
Profit for the year 1,401,248
 (Rupees)
Earnings per share  10.70

Directors’
Report
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2. DIVIDENDS

The Board is pleased to recommend a final cash dividend of Rs.3.50 per share i.e. 35% for the year ended 31st 
December 2017, in addition to the earlier interim cash dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share i.e. 35%. The total dividends for 
the year stood at Rs. 7.00 per share i.e. 70%. The approval of the members for the dividend will be obtained at the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 27th April 2018. This approach remains in line with our 
commitment to provide consistent returns to our shareholders. 

3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The management of Hascol Petroleum Limited is committed to good corporate governance and complying with the best 
practices. As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the directors are pleased to state as follows:

• The financial statements prepared by the Management of the Company present its state of affairs fairly, the result 
of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

• Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and any 
changes in accounting policies have been disclosed in the financial statements. The accounting estimates are 
based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

• International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of 
financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained.

• The Company maintains a sound system of internal control which has been effectively implemented and regularly 
reviewed and monitored.

• There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of Code of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the 
listing regulations.

• The key operating and financial data of last six years has been given on page 27 of the Annual Report. The 
significant deviations in operating results of the Company from last year have been discussed in the Chairman’s 
Review on page 16.

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS OF THE BOARD HELD DURING THE YEAR 2017

During the year, nine (9) meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the attendance of each Director is given 
below:

S. No.

1 Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan(Chairman) 6
2 Mr. Saleem Butt (Chief Executive Officer) 9
3 Mr. Farooq Rahmatullah Khan 9
4 Mr. Sohail Hasan* 3
5 Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed 8
6 Mr. Paul Anthony Himsworth** 5
7 Mr. Liaquat Ali 4
8 Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid 7

 *Mr. Sohail Hasan retired as director on 6th September 2017.
 **Mr. Paul Anthony Himsworth was elected as a director on 6th September 2017.

Director’s Name Meetings Attended
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5. BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR 

 During the year, the Audit Committee held four (4) meetings. The attendance record of the Directors is as follows:

 During the year, the Human Resource Committee held one (1) meeting. The attendance record of the Directors is 
as follows:

 *The HR Committee has been reconstituted on 13th September 2017 pursuant to the election of directors of  
 the Company.

6.  CREDIT RATINGS

 JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Ltd. (JCR-VIS) has upgraded the entity ratings of Hascol Petroleum Limited 
(HPL) to ‘AA-/A-1’ (Double A Minus/A-One) from ‘A+/A-1’ (Single A Plus/A-One). Rating of HPL’s secured Sukuk 
issue of Rs. 2 billion has also been upgraded to ‘AA’ (Double A) from ‘AA-’ (Double A Minus). Outlook on the 
assigned ratings is ‘Stable’. 

 jcr-vis has assigned preliminary rating of A-1 (Single A One) to the Company’s first issue of privately placed 
commercial paper of up to Rs. 1.5 billion (inclusive of green shoe option of Rs. 500 million) having a tenure of up to 
6 months.

7.  PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

 The performance of the Board of your Company was evaluated during the year. The Board members effectively 
bring diversity to the Board and constitute a mix of independent and non-executive directors. The overall 
performance of the Board is good and the board members are aligned with the results of the evaluation.   

8.  DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGRAMME

 Details have been provided in the Statement of Compliance with the Code.

S. No. Director’s Name Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed (Chairman) 4
2 Mr. Sohail Hasan (Member)* 3
3 Mr. Liaquat Ali (Member) 3
 Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid (Member)** 1

 *Mr. Sohail Hasan retired as director on 6th September 2017. 
 **Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid was appointed member of the Audit Committee on 13th September 2017 

1 Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed (Chairman) 1
2 Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Member) 1
3 Mr. Liaquat Ali (Member) 1
 

S. No. Director’s Name Meetings Attended
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1 Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan(Chairman) 6
2 Mr. Saleem Butt (Chief Executive Officer) 9
3 Mr. Farooq Rahmatullah Khan 9
4 Mr. Sohail Hasan* 3
5 Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed 8
6 Mr. Paul Anthony Himsworth** 5
7 Mr. Liaquat Ali 4
8 Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid 7

 *Mr. Sohail Hasan retired as director on 6th September 2017.
 **Mr. Paul Anthony Himsworth was elected as a director on 6th September 2017.

• VALUE OF INVESTMENT OF PROVIDENT AND GRATUITY FUNDS

 The Company maintains retirement benefit plans for its employees. Contribution to provident and gratuity funds 
on the basis of audited financial statements as at 31st December 2017 are as follows:

• CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

 Your Company has a roadmap with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility to support in the areas of education, 
health and environment through various philanthropic efforts. During the current year the Company paid 
donations amounting to Rs.12.176 million to various educational institutions, hospitals and charitable 
organizations.    

• CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL EXCHEQUER AND ECONOMY

 During the year your Company has made a total contribution of Rs. 72.58 billion to the national exchequer on 
account of import duties, general sales tax, income tax and other government levies. 

• EXTERNAL AUDITORS

 The auditors Messrs Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants will retire at the conclusion of the 
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible offered themselves for the re-appointment.

 The Board has recommended the appointment of Messrs Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman as Auditors of the 
Company for the year 2018, subject to Shareholders’ approval at the next AGM to be held on 27th April 2018.

• PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

 The statement of Pattern of Shareholding as at 31st December 2017 is given on page 24 of the report.

• ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

 Our people are the key drivers behind the sustained growth of the Company. The directors acknowledge the 
contribution of each and every employee of the Company. We would also like to express our thanks to our 
customers for the trust shown in our products. We are also grateful to our shareholders for their support and 
confidence in our management

• FUTURE OUTLOOK
 
 A reasonable indication of future prospects is discussed in the Chairman’s Review on page 16.

Provident Fund 
Gratuity 

Rs. (000)

22,212
24,379

Thanking you all.
On behalf of the Board

Saleem Butt
Chief Executive Officer 

Abdul Aziz Khalid
Director
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Pattern of Shareholding
As of December 31, 2017    

 No. of Shareholder Shareholdings' Slab Total Shares Held
 
 1553 1 to 100  57,480 
 1263 101 to 500  340,010 
 2333 501 to 1000  1,714,711 
 1205 1001 to 5000  2,625,489 
 159 5001 to 10000  1,137,693 
 82 10001 to 15000  1,038,838 
 54 15001 to 20000  933,594 
 34 20001 to 25000  778,803 
 17 25001 to 30000  477,884 
 8 30001 to 35000  255,437 
 10 35001 to 40000  368,988 
 9 40001 to 45000  382,858 
 7 45001 to 50000  342,500 
 3 50001 to 55000  161,347 
 3 55001 to 60000  173,232 
 7 60001 to 65000  437,722 
 3 65001 to 70000  209,393 
 2 70001 to 75000  145,034 
 2 75001 to 80000  155,820 
 3 80001 to 85000  249,739 
 1 85001 to 90000  86,420 
 3 95001 to 100000  296,000 
 2 100001 to 105000  206,963 
 4 105001 to 110000  430,536 
 2 110001 to 115000  223,579 
 6 115001 to 120000  714,760 
 1 130001 to 135000  132,667 
 2 135001 to 140000  274,940 
 1 140001 to 145000  145,000 
 2 145001 to 150000  300,000 
 2 150001 to 155000  306,871 
 2 155001 to 160000  317,562 
 1 160001 to 165000  161,372 
 2 180001 to 185000  364,888 
 2 195001 to 200000  397,400 
 2 200001 to 205000  403,255 
 1 230001 to 235000  234,560 
 3 235001 to 240000  714,540 
 2 245001 to 250000  495,758 
 1 250001 to 255000  254,900 
 1 265001 to 270000  268,100 
 1 295001 to 300000  300,000 
 2 315001 to 320000  639,360 
 1 320001 to 325000  325,000 
 1 325001 to 330000  329,311 
 1 335001 to 340000  340,000 
 1 340001 to 345000  343,000 
 1 355001 to 360000  358,700 
 1 385001 to 390000  387,600 
 1 390001 to 395000  394,080 
 1 395001 to 400000  400,000 
 1 430001 to 435000  431,854 
 1 465001 to 470000  468,920 
 1 695001 to 700000  699,294 
 1 745001 to 750000  750,000 
 1 770001 to 775000  772,041 
 1 1030001 to 1035000  1,031,430 
 1 1065001 to 1070000  1,069,803 
 1 1095001 to 1100000  1,097,306 
 1 1340001 to 1345000  1,340,248 
 1 1620001 to 1625000  1,623,000 
 1 1950001 to 1955000  1,950,238 
 1 2115001 to 2120000  2,117,400 
 1 2350001 to 2355000  2,351,980 
 1 2835001 to 2840000  2,838,600 
 1 3175001 to 3180000  3,179,308 
 1 5830001 to 5835000  5,830,768 
 1 5865001 to 5870000  5,869,227 
 1 9320001 to 9325000  9,322,526 
 1 14880001 to 14885000  14,880,975 
 1 27185001 to 27190000  27,188,163 
 1 37465001 to 37470000  37,468,265 
 6832     144,815,040 
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As of December 31, 2017    
Pattern of Shareholding
As of December 31, 2017

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held   Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children   
MUMTAZ HASAN KHAN 1  27,188,163   18.77 
SALEEM BUTT 2  319,687   0.22 
NAJMUS SAQIB HAMEED 2  63,941   0.04 
FAROOQ RAHMATULLAH KHAN 1  329,311   0.23 
LIAQUAT ALI 1  3,179,308   2.20 
NAZIA MALIK 2  1,346,920   0.93 

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties   
FOSSIL ENERGY (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2  15,130,975   10.45  
MARSHAL GAS (PVT) LIMITED 1  9,322,526   6.44 
   
Executives 31  1,125,600   0.78 
   
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 0  -     -   
   
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies,    
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 19  9,161,822   6.33 
   
Mutual Funds   
CDC - TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND 1  135,840   0.09 
CDC - TRUSTEE JS LARGE CAP. FUND 1  95   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALHAMRA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  120,000   0.08 
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 1  180,108   0.12 
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL BALANCED GROWTH FUND 1  10,500   0.01 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND 1  1,630   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 1  12,240   0.01 
CDC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND 1  153,418   0.11 
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 1  699,294   0.48 
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1  10,500   0.01 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND 1  96   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  3,264   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1  136   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND 1  2,803   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND 1  924   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND 1  3,444   0.00 
CDC-TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  103,600   0.07 
CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI EQUITY FUND 1  15,885   0.01 
CDC - TRUSTEE KSE MEEZAN INDEX FUND 1  105,711   0.07 
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ADVANTAGE ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1  10,000   0.01 
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1  14,000   0.01 
CDC-TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  9,500   0.01 
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  995   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND 1  8,711   0.01 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PRINCIPAL PROTECTED FUND - II 1  75   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  1,797   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1  4,500   0.00 
ABA ALI HABIB SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED - MF 1  200   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1  70,000   0.05 
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST DAWOOD MUTUAL FUND 1  2,600   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE  PICIC ENERGY FUND 1  119,960   0.08 
CDC - TRUSTEE DAWOOD ISLAMIC FUND 1  3,100   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND 1  387,600   0.27 
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND 1  19,800   0.01 
M C F S L-TRUSTEE ASKARI ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1  5,700   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND 1  22,120   0.02 
CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC STOCK FUND 1  22,100   0.02 
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND 1  5,400   0.00 
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND 1  14,500   0.01 
CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1  111,000   0.08 
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN  ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1  254,900   0.18 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ENERGY FUND 1  197,400   0.14 
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ENERGY FUND 1  468,920   0.32 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 1  2,600   0.00 
CDC TRUSTEE - MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 1  118,900   0.08 

General Public   
a. Local 6636  17,565,825   12.13 
b. Foreign 5  457,545   0.32 
Foreign Companies 22  54,137,510   37.38 
OTHERS 62  2,050,041   1.42 

Totals  6832  144,815,040   100.00 

Shareholders holding 5% or more   Shares Held   Percentage 

FOSSIL ENERGY (PRIVATE) LIMITED   15,130,975   10.45 
MARSHAL GAS (PVT) LIMITED   9,322,526   6.44 
MUMTAZ HASAN KHAN   27,188,163   18.77 
VITOL DUBAI LIMITED   37,468,265   25.87 
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Sales - net

215.66
(67.49%) billion

Gross profit

7.38
(44.03%) billion

Profit after tax

1.40
(15.27%) billion
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Six Years Summary

Key Operational and   Financial Data

  2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
 
       
Profit and Loss Account      Rs/mn
       
Revenue (Gross)   128,759   94,065   99,061   57,469   29,775 
Revenue (net)   99,508   76,774   84,856   49,820   25,992 
Cost of good sold   95,000   74,018   82,877   48,506   24,996
Gross profit    4,708   2,839   2,037   1,360   996
Operating profit   2,627   1,630   1,237   579   393
Profit before tax   2,154   1,197   865   425   292
Profit after tax   1,216   1,133   640   392   218 
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation   2,987   1,788   1,264   633   464 
       
Balance Sheet       

Share Capital    1,207   1,207   906   656   656 
Property, plant and equipment    8,689   6,278   3,291   2,436   1,724
Inventory     16,478   8,470   3,474   3,154   617
Current assets    33,710   17,916   10,975   6,557   2,595
Current liabilities    35,035   20,171   12,059   7,630   3,067
Non current assets    10,940   8,703   4,642   2,798   1,913
Non current liabilities    3,510   662   459   281   376
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets   1,143   1,257   321   358   396
       
Summary of cash flow statements       

Cash flows from operating activities   2,421   4,364   722   948   307
Cash flows from investing activities   (2,933)  (2,290)  (1,793)  (642)  (322)
Cash flows from financing activities   1,785   104   1,367   (214)  311
Net cash flows during the year   1,273   2,178   296   93   296 
       
Investor Information       %
 
Profitability Ratios       
Gross profit ratio   5.16   3.70   2.40   2.73   3.83
Net profit ratio   1.22   1.48   0.75   0.79   0.84
EBITDA margin   2.18   1.90   1.28   1.10   1.56
       
Cost / Income ratio   0.79   0.74   0.65   1.35   1.53
Return on equity   0.24   0.25   0.23   0.36   0.33

Liquidity Ratios      Ratio
 
Current ratio   0.97:1  0.88:1   0.91:1   0.88:1   0.85:1
Quick ratio   0.50:1  0.47:1   0.62:1   0.47:1   0.65:1
       
       %

Cash flows from operations to sales   2.42   5.68   0.85   1.90   1.18
Cash to current liabilities   0.23   0.20   0.15   0.11   0.15

Investment / Market Ratios      Rs
       
Earnings  per share   9.41   9.39   5.89   5.97   3.33
Breakup value per share without surplus on revaluation of fixed assets   41.12   37.53   30.67   16.54   10.07
Breakup value per share with surplus on revaluation of fixed assets   50.59   47.94   34.21   22.01   16.11

 215,662 
 173,739 
 166,851 

 7,389 
 4,528 
 2,659 
 1,401 
 3,751 

 1,448 
 13,680 
 18,557 
 42,184 
 43,798 
 15,911 
 4,031 
 1,026 

 1,276 
 (5,825)

 4,748 
 199

4.25
0.81
1.74

 0.77 
 0.14 

 0.96 : 1 
 0.54 : 1 

0.73
 0.22 

 10.70 
 63.81 
 70.89
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Notice of Sixteenth (16th)
Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the Sixteenth (16th) Annual General Meeting of Hascol Petroleum Limited will be held on 
Friday, 27th April 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the ICAP Auditorium, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton Karachi, to 
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business
1.  To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 6th September 2017.

2.  To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2017,   
 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon. 

3. To consider and approve payment of final cash dividend of Rs.3.50 per share i.e. 35%, as recommended by the   
 Board of Directors. This is in addition to the interim dividend already paid at Rs.3.50 per share i.e. 35%, thereby  
 making a total cash dividend of Rs.7.00 per share i.e. 70%.

4. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the financial year 2018.

5. To transact any other ordinary business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

6th April 2018          Zeeshan Ul Haq
Karachi            Company Secretary

NOTES:

Closure of Share Transfer Books
The Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 20th April 2018 to 27th April 2018 (both days 
inclusive). Transfers in the form of physical transfers / CDS Transaction IDs received in order at the Company’s Share 
Registrar, Messrs Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., 
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, by close of business on 19thApril 2018 will be treated in time to attend and vote at the 
meeting and for the purpose of the above entitlement to the transferees.   

Participation in the Meeting
Only those persons, whose names appear in the register of members of the Company as on 19th April 2018, are 
entitled to attend, participate in, and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another person as 
his / her proxy to attend and vote instead of him / her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the 
registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting and must be duly stamped, 
signed and witnessed. A form of proxy is attached herewith in the Annual Report.

Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through Email:
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Notification S.R.O. 787(1)/2014 dated 8th 
September 2014 has permitted companies to circulate Audited Financial Statements along with Notice of Annual 
General Meeting to its members through e-mail. Accordingly, members are hereby requested to convey their consent 
and e-mail address for receiving Audited Financial Statements and Notice through e-mail. In order to avail this facility 
a Standard Request Form is available at the Company’s website www.hascol.com, to be sent along with copy of his / 
her / its CNIC / Passport to the Company’s Share Registrar.
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Please note that giving email address for receiving of Annual Financial Statements instead of receiving the same by 
post is optional, in case you do not wish to avail this facility please ignore this notice.

Notice to Members Who Have Not Provided CNIC
SECP vide Notification S.R.O. 19(1)/2014 dated 10th January 2014 read with Notification S.R.O 831(1)/2012 dated 5th 
July 2012 require that the dividend warrant(s) should bear CNIC number of the registered member or the authorized 
person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate members. Accordingly, in case of non-receipt of the copy of  a valid 
CNIC, the Company would be unable to comply with the directives of SECP and therefore will be constrained under 
SECP order dated July 13, 2015 to withhold the dispatch of dividend warrants of such shareholders. The shareholders 
while sending CNIC must quote their respective folio number and name of the Company.

Revision of Withholding Tax on Dividend Income under Section 150 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001:
Pursuant to Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the provisions of the Finance Act 2016 effective 1st 
July 2017, withholding tax on dividend income will be deducted for ‘Filer’ and ‘Non-Filer’ shareholders @ 15% and 20% 
respectively. According to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) withholding tax will be 
determined separately on ‘Filer / Non-Filer’ status of principal shareholder as well as joint holder(s) based on their 
shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares with joint shareholders, are requested to provide shareholding 
proportions of principal shareholder and joint holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in 
writing as follows:

In case the required information is not provided to our Share Registrar by 19th April 2018, it will be assumed that the 
shares are held in equal proportion by the principal shareholder and joint holder(s).

Change of Address
Members are requested to immediately notify the Company’s Share Registrar, Messrs Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited of any change in their registered address.

Payment of Dividend through electronic mode (Mandatory)
Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay cash 
dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders.

In order to receive dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Electronic Credit 
Mandate Form available on Company’s website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of 
the Company, in case of physical shares.

In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to shareholder’s 
broker / participant / CDC account services.

Guidelines for CDC Account Holders
CDC account holders are required to comply with the following guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 of 2000 dated 
26th January 2000 issued by SECP:

Folio / CDS 
Account No.

Total Shares Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Account No. Name & CNIC Shareholding 

Proportion
(No. of shares)

Name & CNIC Shareholding 
Proportion

(No. of shares)
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A.    For Attending the Meeting
(i)  In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in  group  
 account and their registration details are uploaded as per CDC regulations, shall authenticate his / her identity by  
 showing his / her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of   
 attending the meeting; and 

(ii) In case of corporate entities, the Board Of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the  
 nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B.    For Appointing Proxies
(i)  In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group  
 account their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the  
 above requirement;

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two (2) persons whose names, addresses, and CNIC numbers shall be   
 mentioned on the form; 

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form;

(iv) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting; and 

(v) In case of corporate entities, the board of directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the  
 person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity shall be submitted (unless it has been  
 provided earlier) along with the proxy form to the Company.

Hascol Petroleum Limited Page 30



Annual Report 2017 Page 31



Statements of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance
This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the “CCG”) contained in 
Regulation No.5.19 of listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a 
framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of 
corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

• The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing 
minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes:

 Category Names

 Independent Director Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed
 
 Executive Directors Mr. Saleem Butt
 
 Non-Executive Directors Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan
  Mr. Liaquat Ali
  Mr. Farooq Rahmatullah Khan
  Mr. Paul Anthony Himsworth
  Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid

The independent director meets the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1(b) of the CCG.

• The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this Company. 

• All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment 
of any loan to a banking company, a Development Financial Institution or a Non-Banking Financial Institution, or, 
being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

• No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year. However, election of Directors was held on 6th 
September 2017 and above mentioned seven (7) Directors were elected for the next term of three years.

• The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with supporting policies and procedures. 

 
• The Board has developed a Vision / Mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 

Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were 
approved or amended has been maintained.

• All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including 
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive 
Officer, other executive and non-executive directors, have been taken by the Board / shareholders.

• The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, 
along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of 
the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.
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• In accordance with the criteria specified on clause 5.19.7 of PSX Rules, majority of Directors of the Company have 
completed the Directors’ training program.

• The Chief Financial Officer was appointed during the year. There has been no new appointments for the positions of 
Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit during the year.

• The Directors’ Report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of CCG and fully describes the salient 
matters required to be disclosed.

• The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
before approval of the Board.

• The Directors, Chief Executive Officer and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than 
that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

• The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.

• The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members, of whom two are non-executive directors and 
one is an independent director. The chairman of the audit committee is an independent director.

• The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final results 
of the Company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the committee have been formed and advised to 
the committee for compliance.

• The Board has formed a Human Resource Committee. It comprises of four members, of whom two are non-executive 
directors, one executive director and one independent director. The chairman of the committee is a non-executive 
director.

• The Board has set up an effective internal audit function for the Company which was fully operational during the year.

• The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality 
control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners of 
the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are 
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

• The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard.

• The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim / final results, and business decisions, which may materially 
affect the market price of company’s securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees and stock 
exchange.

• Material / price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through the stock 
exchange.

• The Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having access to inside 
information by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record including basis 
for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

• As stated above, we confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with

Karachi: 3rd April 2018  
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Statement of Compliance with The Sukuk
(Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017 and
Issue of Sukuk Regulations, 2015 
This statement is being presented to comply with the requirements under “Issue of Sukuk Regulations, 2015” and 
“Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017” (the Regulations) issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (SECP). This Statement of Compliance is for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Hascol Petroleum Limited (the Company) entered into an arrangement for issue of Sukuk amounting to Rs. 2,000 
Million inclusive of Green Shoe Option of Rs. 500 Million, on December 31, 2015 for a period of 6 years including a 
grace period of 1 year. We state that the Company is in compliance with the Sukuk Features and Shari’ah 
Requirements in accordance with the Regulations.

We specifically confirm that:
 The Company has established policies and procedures for all Sukuk related transactions to comply with Sukuk 

Features and Shari’ah Requirements.

 The Company has implemented and maintained such internal control and risk management systems that are 
necessary to mitigate the risk of non-compliances of the Sukuk Features and Shari’ah Requirements, whether due 
to fraud or error;

 The Company has a process to ensure that the management and where appropriate the board of directors, and 
personnel responsible to ensure the Company’s compliance with the Sukuk Features and Shari’ah Requirements 
are properly trained and systems are properly updated.

 The Sukuk Features and Shari’ah Requirements in accordance with issue of the Regulations comprises of the 
following:

a. Requirements of Shariah Structure and Transaction Documents as stated in the Information Memorandum, with 
respect to issuance of Sukuk:

• Trust Deed
• Musharka Agreements
• Payment Agreements
• Purchase Undertaking
• Asset Purchase Agreement
• Investment Agency Agreement
• Security Documents
• Guidelines of the relevant Shariah Standards, issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization of the Islamic 

Financial Institutions, as notified by the SECP;
• Requirements of the relevant Islamic Financial Accounting Standard as notified by the SECP; and
• Other compliances specified in the Regulations as issued by the SECP.

The above Statement has been duly endorsed by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Saleem Butt
Chief Executive Officer 

Abdul Aziz Khalid
Director
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Audited Unconsolidated
Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2017
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UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 (Rupees in thousand)

	 Note 	 2017	 2016
ASSETS				  
	
Non-current assets					   
Property, plant and equipment	 5	  13,680,349 	  8,688,947 
Intangible asset	 6	  -   	  -   
Long-term investments	 7	  1,899,518 	  1,961,977 
Long-term deposits	 8	  331,537 	  288,882 
Total non-current assets		  15,911,404 	  10,939,806 

Current assets					   
Stock-in-trade	 9	  18,557,106 	  16,477,668 
Trade debts	 10	  11,518,218 	  7,871,281 
Advances	 11	  181,365 	  253,413 
Deposits and prepayments 	 12	  80,633 	  106,179 
Other receivables	 13	  2,161,031 	  1,144,753 
Mark-up and profit accrued 	 14	  57,398 	  35,816 
Cash and bank balances	 15	  9,628,057 	  7,821,070 
Total current assets		  42,183,808 	  33,710,180 
TOTAL ASSETS		  58,095,212 	  44,649,986 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES				  
	
Share capital and reserves					   
Share capital	 16	  1,448,150 	  1,206,792 
Reserves	 17	  7,792,097 	  3,755,346 
Total shareholders’ equity		  9,240,247 	  4,962,138 

Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets - net of tax 	 18	  1,025,789 	  1,142,880 

LIABILITIES				  
	
Non-current liabilities					   
Long-term financing	 19	  2,240,163 	  2,307,749 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 20	  377,603 	  471,731 
Deferred and other liabilities	 21	  1,413,122 	  1,144,581 
Total non-current liabilities 		  4,030,888 	  3,924,061 

Current liabilities					   
Trade and other payables	 22	  34,321,373 	  29,222,758 
Mark-up and profit accrued 	 23	  117,258 	  91,185 
Short-term borrowings	 24	  6,944,699 	  3,889,629 
Current portion of non-current liabilities	 25	  1,642,892 	  747,466 
Taxation	 26	  772,066 	  669,869 
Total current liabilities		  43,798,288 	  34,620,907 
TOTAL LIABILITIES		  47,829,176 	  38,544,968 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		  58,095,212 	  44,649,986 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 27			 

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer
& Director

Director
Saleem Butt Abdul Aziz Khalid

Chief Financial Officer
Khurram Shahzad Venjhar
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
(Rupees in thousand)FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

	 Note 	 2017	 2016
		   

Sales - net 	 28	  215,662,302 	  128,759,275 
Less: sales tax 		   (41,923,129)	  (29,251,081)
Net sales		   173,739,173 	  99,508,194 

Other revenue	 29	  500,460 	  207,587 
Net revenue		   174,239,633 	  99,715,781 

Cost of products sold	 30	  (166,850,657)	  (94,585,669)
Gross profit 		   7,388,976 	  5,130,112 

Operating expenses 					   
Distribution and marketing	 31	  (2,666,666)	  (1,746,237)
Administrative	 32	  (611,439)	  (508,983)
		   (3,278,105)	  (2,255,220)

Other income	 33	  417,481 	  203,189 
Operating profit		   4,528,352 	  3,078,081 

Finance cost	 34	  (582,785)	  (442,163)
Other expenses	 35	  (491,095)	  (673,772)
Exchange (loss) / gain - net		  (795,773)	  5,829 
		   (1,869,653)	  (1,110,106)

Profit before taxation		  2,658,699 	  1,967,975 

Taxation	 36	  (1,257,451)	  (752,349)
Profit for the year		   1,401,248 	  1,215,626 

			   Restated 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)  	 37   	 10.70	 9.41        

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer
& Director

Director
Saleem Butt Abdul Aziz Khalid

Chief Financial Officer
Khurram Shahzad Venjhar



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

	 Note 	 2017	 2016
		

Profit for the year		   1,401,248 	  1,215,626 

Other comprehensive loss				  
	
Items that will not be reclassified 					   
   to unconsolidated profit and loss account 				  
	
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit  
   obligation - net of tax	 21.3.5	  (30,519)	  (9,795)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently 					   
   to unconsolidated profit and loss account 				  
	
Unrealized loss on remeasurement of available-for-sale 					   
  investments - net of tax		   (302,341)	  (59,791)
		   (332,860)	  (69,586)
Total comprehensive income		   1,068,388 	  1,146,040 
					   
					   
				  
The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in thousand)
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 (Rupees in thousand)

 		  Capital 		  Revenue 
		  reserves		  reserve	 Total 
	 Share	 Share 	 Suplus on re-	 Unappropr-	 shareholders’ 
	 Capital	 premium	 measurement	 -iated profit	 equity 
			   of availbale for
			   sale investment
			   to fair value	
	
Balance as at January 01, 2016	  1,206,792 	  1,070,828 	  684,721 	  1,566,762 	  4,529,103 

Total comprehensive income for the year							     
Profit for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,215,626 	  1,215,626 

Other comprehensive loss							     
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit							     
   obligation - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (9,795)	  (9,795)
Unrealized loss due to change in fair value of long-term 							     
   investments - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  (59,791)	  -   	  (59,791)
Total comprehensive income	  -   	  -   	  (59,791)	  1,205,831 	  1,146,040 

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed							     
  assets on account of  incremental depreciation - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  -   	  131,749 	  131,749 
	  -   	  -   	  (59,791)	  1,337,580 	  1,277,789 

Transactions with owners recognized directly in equity							     
Final dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - December 2015	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (422,377)	  (422,377)
Interim dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - June 2016	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (422,377)	  (422,377)
Total transactions with owners recognized directly in equity	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (844,754)	  (844,754)
Balance as at December 31, 2016	  1,206,792 	  1,070,828 	  624,930 	  2,059,588 	  4,962,138 

Balance as at January 01, 2017	  1,206,792 	 1,070,828 	  624,930 	  2,059,588 	  4,962,138 

Total comprehensive income for the year							     
Profit for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,401,248 	  1,401,248 

Other comprehensive loss							     
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit							     
   obligation - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (30,519)	  (30,519)
Unrealized loss due to change in fair value of long-term 							     
investments - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  (302,341)	  -   	  (302,341)
Total comprehensive income	  -   	  -   	  (302,341)	  1,370,729 	  1,068,388 

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed  							     
   assets on account of  incremental depreciation - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  -   	  117,091 	  117,091 
	  -   	  -   	  (302,341)	  1,487,820 	  1,185,479 

Transactions with owners 							     
Right issue 20% @ Rs. 165/- per share - September 2017	  241,358 	  3,741,055 	  -   	  -   	  3,982,413 
Issuance cost 	  -   	  (45,029)	  -   	  -   	  (45,029)
	  241,358 	  3,696,026 	  -   	  -   	  3,937,384 

Final dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - December 2016	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (422,377)	  (422,377)
Interim dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - June 2017	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (422,377)	  (422,377)
	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (844,754)	  (844,754)

Total transactions with owners	  241,358 	  3,696,026 	  -   	  (844,754)	  3,092,630 
Balance as at December 31, 2017	  1,448,150 	  4,766,854 	  322,589 	  2,702,654 	  9,240,247 
							     
						    
The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

	 Note 	 2017	 2016
		

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				  
	
Cash generated from operations	 40	  2,388,667 	  3,288,145 
Finance cost paid		   (555,825)	  (405,289)
Profit received on bank deposits		   257,471 	  129,217 
Taxes paid		   (788,425)	  (599,442)
Gratuity paid	 21.3.2	  (25,825)	  (5,003)
Net cash generated from operating activities		  1,276,063 	  2,407,628 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES				  
	
Capital expenditure incurred	 5.3	  (5,693,170)	  (2,863,872)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		   214,099 	  65,711 
Dividend received		   -   	  13,407 
Long-term investment made during the year		   (303,000)	  (75,000)
Long-term deposits paid		   (42,655)	  (60,251)
Net cash used in investing activities		   (5,824,726)	  (2,920,005)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES				  
	
Lease liability (repaid) / obtained - net		   (131,977)	  194,591 
Proceeds from issue of shares - net of transaction cost		   3,937,384 	  -   
Dividend paid		   (844,754)	  (844,754)
Proceeds from issue of commercial paper	 24.3	  1,446,204 	  -   
Long-term finance obtained - net		   340,814 	  2,435,489 
Net cash generated from financing activities		   4,747,671 	  1,785,326 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		   199,008 	  1,272,949 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year		   3,871,441 	  2,598,492 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year	 41	  4,070,449 	  3,871,441 

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in thousand)
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

1	 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS								      
									      
	 Hascol Petroleum Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on March 28, 

2001. On September 12, 2007 the Company was converted into a public unlisted company and on May 12, 2014 the 
Company got listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at Suite No. 
105-106, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.							     

	 The Company is engaged in the business of procurement, storage and marketing of petroleum and related products, 
for which the Company obtained oil marketing license from Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources in the year 
2005.								      

2	 BASIS OF PREPARATION	 							     
									      
2.1	 Separate financial statements								      
									      
	 These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment 

in subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of cost rather than on the basis of reported results. Consolidated financial 
statements of the Company are prepared and presented separately.						    
	

2.2	 Statement of compliance								      
									      
2.2.1	 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) on May 30, 2017. 

Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Circular No. 17 of 2017 has communicated its decision 
that the companies whose financial year closes on or before June 30, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in 
accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. In continuation to the above mentioned 
circular, SECP in view of the difficulties faced by the companies to comply with the provisions of the Act, has advised 
vide Circular No. 23 of 2017 that the companies whose financial year closes on or before December 31, 2017 shall 
prepare their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. 
Furthermore, the  Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) has obtained clarification from the SECP 
in this regard, as per which the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 covers interim financial statements of the companies for the period ending on or before December 
31, 2017.  								     

2.2.2	 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Approved Accounting Standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved Accounting Standards comprise of such  International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting 
Standards (IFAS) issued by ICAP as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Wherever the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or 
directives issued there under differ with the requirements of IFRS and IFAS, the requirements of the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 and said directives shall prevail.								      

2.3	 Accounting convention								      
									      
	 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following 

items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date.					   
	

	 Items					     Measurement basis		
	 Available for sale investment		  Fair value			 
	 Net defined benefit liability			  Present value of the defined benefit obligation			 
	 Property, plant and equipment		  Revalued amounts			 
	 Monetary Liabilities			   Spot exchange Rate			 
									      
2.3.1	 In these unconsolidated financial statements, except for the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, all the 

transactions have been accounted for on an accrual basis.						    
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2.4	 Functional and presentation currency 								      
									      
	 These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is also the Company’s functional 

currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.			 
	

2.5	 Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards 				  
	

2.5.1	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Company 
and adopted in the current year								     

	
	 The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of 

IFRSs which became effective during the current year. 							     

	 Amendments	 Effective Date	
	 IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)	 January 1, 2017	
	 IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to IAS 12)	 January 1, 2017	
	 IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016	 January 1, 2017	
									      
	 Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the 

amounts for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.							     

2.5.2	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet 
effective and not early adopted by the Company							     
	

	 The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the 
dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.					   
	

	 Standards and amendment	 Effective date
			  (Annual periods
			  beginning on or after)	

	
	 IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between
	 an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)	 Postponed	
	 IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction
	 (Amendments to IFRS 2)				  

IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016	 January 1, 2018	
	 IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)	 January 1, 2018	
	 IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers	 July 1, 2018	
	 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments	 July 1, 2018	
	 IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28)	 January 1, 2019	
	 IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)	 January 1, 2019	
	 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle	 January 1, 2019	
	
	 Interpretation			 
	 IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration	 January 1, 2018	
	 IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments	 January 1, 2019	
									      
	 The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations to the 

published standards on the unconsolidated financial statements.						    
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2.5.3	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the SECP	
	

	 Following new standards have been issued by the IASB which are yet to be notified by SECP for the purpose of 
applicability in Pakistan. 								      

	
	 Standard	 IASB effective date 
			  (Annual periods
			  beginning on or after)	
	
	 IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts	 January 1, 2016
	 IFRS 16 - Leases	 January 1, 2019		

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts	 January 1, 2021	

3	 CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, ESTIMATES AND MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINITY			 
	

	 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the 
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.			
	

	 The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.			 
	

	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.			 
	

	 Accounting policies in respect of judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting 
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the Company’s unconsolidated financial 
statements, estimates and assumptions with significant risk of material adjustments in the future period are included 
in the following notes:				  
	

			  Note
	 a) Depreciation method, rates and useful life of operating fixed assets	 4.1
	 b) Revaluation of operating fixed assets	 4.1.2
	 c) Amortization method, rates and useful life of intangible assets	 4.2
	 d) Estimate of fair value of investments available for sale	 4.3
	 e) Impairment of financial assets	 4.3
	 f) Estimate of recoverable amount of investment in subsidiaries	 4.10
	 g) Net realizable value of stock-in-trade	 4.15
	 h) Recoverable amount and impairment of non-financial assets	 4.16
	 i) Provisions and contingencies	 4.19
	 j) Provision for taxation	 4.23
	 k) Present value of defined benefit obligation	 4.25
									      
	 Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 

including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.		
	

4	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES			 
	

	 The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set 
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.	
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

4.1	 Property, plant and equipment 								      
									      
4.1.1	 Initial recognition								      
									      

	 (a)	 Operating fixed assets								      
									       
		  An item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognized at cost.					   

	
		  Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Operating fixed assets 

under construction are disclosed as capital work in progress (CWIP). The cost of self constructed assets includes 
the cost of materials, fixed labour and any other cost directly attributable to bring the asset into service for its 
intended use including, where applicable, the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site 
on which they are located, and borrowing costs on qualifying assets.					   
	

		  The assets which are available for intended use are capitalized as operating fixed assets. While assets under 
construction are capitalized to CWIP.								      

	
		  The Company accounts for property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases by recording the assets 

and the related liabilities. These amounts are determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower 
of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are 
allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding 
liability.								      

	
	 (b) 	 Capital work-in-progress 								      
	
		  CWIP is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure in connection with specific 

assets incurred during construction/installation period are carried to CWIP. These expenditures are transferred 
to operating fixed assets as and when these are available for intended use. 				  
	

4.1.2	 Measurement subsequent to initial recognition								      
	

	 (a)	 Carried using revaluation model								      
									       
		  Following operating assets both owned and leased are subsequently measured under revaluation model (i.e. fair 

value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses).								      

		  - Building on lease hold land								      
		  - Tanks and pipelines								      
		  - Dispensing pumps								      
		  - Plant and machinery								     
		  - Electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipment.							     
	
		  Fair value is determined by external professional valuers with sufficient regularity such that the carrying 

amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet 
date.								     

	 (b) 	 Carried using cost model								      
									       
		  Fixed assets other than those mentioned above are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any.								      
	

		  Depreciation								      
									       
		  Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account by applying the 

straight-line method whereby the cost/revalued amount of operating fixed assets is charged off over its remaining 
useful life. Same basis and estimates for depreciation are applied to owned assets and assets acquired under 
finance lease.								     
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

		  Depreciation is charged on straight line method from the month in which an asset is available for intended use, 
while no depreciation is charged from the month in which the asset is disposed off. Depreciation is provided at 
the rates as disclosed in note 5.1.								      

	
		  Depreciation method, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting year and adjusted, if 

applicable. Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated. 							     
	

		  Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account as and when incurred. 
Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.			 
					   

		  Gain and loss on disposal of operating fixed assets is included in the unconsolidated profit and loss account in 
the year of disposal.								      

	
		  Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets	 							     
									       
		  The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets” 

shown below equity in the unconsolidated balance sheet. Accordingly, the Company has adopted the following 
accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the requirement of SECP SRO 
45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:								      

		
	 -	 depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on 

revaluation and depreciation charge for the period is taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account; and	
	

	 -	 an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the period net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus 
on revaluation of fixed assets account” to unappropriated profits through unconsolidated statement of changes 
in equity to record realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.	
	

		  Borrowing cost								      
									       
		  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and production of qualifying assets, which 

are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are 
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or 
sale.		

4.2	 Intangible assets - computer software								      
									      
	 These are recorded initially at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any.								      
	
	 Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight 
line method.								      

	
	 Amortization on addition and deletion of intangible assets is charged in proportion to the period of use. The useful 

life and amortization method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the balance sheet date. Intangible assets 
having indefinite useful life are not amortized and stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.			 
	

4.3	 Financial instruments								      
									      

	 Recognition and initial measurement								      
									      
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instruments.								      
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	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of financial assets 
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.							     

	 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.								      

	
	 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets						    

	
	 For the purpose of classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets, other than those designated and 

effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:		
	

	 • loans and receivables; and								      
	 • available for sale.								      
									      
	 Loans and receivables								      
									      
	 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 

an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The loan and 
receivables includes trade debts, advances, deposits, markup or profit accrued, other receivables and cash and bank 
balances.								      

	
	 Available for sale								      
									      
	 Available for sale (AFS) financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified 

as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss.	

	 Listed equity securities held by the Company that are traded in an active market are classified as AFS and are stated 
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Company also have investments in unlisted shares that are 
not traded in an active market but that are also classified as AFS financial assets and stated at fair value at the end 
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to changes in 
market rate of the equity securities and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognized in unconsolidated profit 
or loss account. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognized in unconsolidated other 
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of fair value reserve. When the investment is disposed of 
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognize in unconsolidated comprehensive 
income is reclassified to unconsolidated profit and loss account.						    
	

	 Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account when the Company’s 
right to receive the dividends is established.								      

	
	 AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot 

be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity 
investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.	
	

	 Impairment of financial assets								      
									      
	 Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are 

considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after 
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.	
	

	 For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is 
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.								      
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	 For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:					   
	

	 •  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or							     
•  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or				  
•  it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or				  
•  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.			 
	

	 For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a collective 
basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of 
receivables could include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed 
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic 
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.						    

	 For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate.								      

	
	 For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between 

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market 
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.		
	

	 The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the 
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When 
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries 
of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the 
allowance account are recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account.					   
	

	 When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.						    
	

	 For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss 
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the 
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through unconsolidated profit and loss account to the extent that 
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized 
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.						    
	

	 In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss 
account are not reversed through unconsolidated profit and loss account. Any increase in fair value subsequent to 
an impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income . In respect of AFS debt securities, impairment 
losses are subsequently reversed through unconsolidated profit and loss account if an increase in the fair value of 
the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.		
	

	 Derecognition of financial assets								      
									      
	 The Company derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, 

or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the transferred assets, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes 
a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.								      
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	 On derecognition of a financial assets in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in 
unconsolidated other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in unconsolidated profit and 
loss account.		

	
	 On derecognition of financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to re-purchase 

part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the 
part it continue to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the 
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to 
the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognized and 
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized in unconsolidated other comprehensive income 
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of 
the relative fair values of those parts.								      

	
	 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities						    

	
	 Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The effective 

interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense 
over the relevant period. All interest-related charges, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are 
reported in unconsolidated profit and loss account are included within finance costs.				  
	

	 Derecognition of financial liabilities	 							     
									      
	 The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, 

cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and 
the consideration paid and payable is recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account.				  
	

4.4	 Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities	 							     
								     

	 Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet if the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to off-set the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or 
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.							     

4.5	 Classification as debt or equity								      
									      
	 Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definition of a financial liability and equity 
instrument.								      

4.6	 Equity instrument	 							     
									      
	 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of 

its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary share are recognized as deduction from equity.			 
	

4.7	 Share premium reserves

	 Share premium is recorded on issue of shares in accordance with the requirements of  section 83 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996 amendment pursuant of S.R.O 34 (I)/2016 
dated 19th January 2016. The premium is available for use as per section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017. 		
	

4.8	 Dividend distribution								      
									      
	 Final dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated balance 

sheet in the period in which the dividends are approved, while interim dividend distributions are recognized in 
the period in which the dividends are declared by the Board of Directors. However, if these are approved after the 
reporting period but before the unconsolidated financial statements are authorized for issue, they are disclosed in the 
notes to the unconsolidated financial statements.								      
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4.9	 Earnings per share								      
									      
	 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 

by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all 
dilutive potential ordinary shares.								      

4.10	 Investment in subsidiary								      
									      
	 A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the entity. The Company control an investee when the Company is exposed or 

has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect the return through 
its power over the investee. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are 
currently exercisable are taken into account. 								      

	
	 Investment in subsidiary company is initially stated at cost. At subsequent reporting date recoverable amounts 

are estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount of investment is adjusted 
accordingly.								      

4.11	 Investment in associate	 							     
									      
	 An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an 

interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy 
decisions of the investee but also neither has control nor joint control over those policies.			 
	

	 When necessary the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in 
accordance with IAS-36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of 
value in use and fair value less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognized forms 
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with 
IAS-36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.				  
	

	 When the Company transacts with an associate profit and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate 
are recognized in the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate 
that are not related to the Company.								      

4.12	 Trade and other payables								      
									      
	 Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using 

the effective interest method exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign 
currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.						   
	

4.13	 Trade debts and other receivables								      
									      
	 Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates fair value, and 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 
A provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Company will not be able to collect all the amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. 
Significant financial difficulties of the debtors, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default or 
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade debt is impaired. The amount of provision is 
charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account. Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are 
written-off. 	

	 Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign currency 
are added to the carrying amount of the respective receivables.						    
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4.14	 Advance and deposits								      
									      
	 These are stated at cost less provision for doubtful balances, if any. Deposits represent security deposits from 

dealers by virtue of agreement and are interest free. These are repayable on cancellation on dealership contract with 
dealers. 								      

4.15	 Stock-in-trade								      
									      
	 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 						    

	
	 Cost is determined as follows:								      
	
	 - Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.			

	
	 - The cost of stock in trade is determined on moving weighted average basis.					   

	
	 Provision is made for obsolete/slow moving stocks where necessary and recognized in the unconsolidated profit and 

loss account. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling value price in the ordinary course of business less 
estimated costs necessary in order to make the sale.								      

4.16	 Impairment of non financial assets								      
									      
	 The carrying amounts of non financial assets, are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is 

any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the unconsolidated profit and loss account, for the amount by which 
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less cost to sell and value in use. 								      

	 Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash 
generating units). 								     

	
	 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 

amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized.			 
	

4.17	 Term deposit receipts (TDRs)								      
									      
	 These represent placement in TDRs with financial institution having tenure of one year.			 

	
4.18	 Cash and cash equivalents	 							     
									      
	 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the unconsolidated balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the 

unconsolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposit, bank 
balances, short term borrowings and other items of current assets and current liabilities which qualify as cash 
equivalent.								      

4.19	 Provisions and contingent liabilities	 							     
									      
	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 

events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of 
the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate.								      
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	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the 
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognized 
as liability in the unconsolidated balance sheet. 								      

4.20	 Commitment								      
									      
	 Commitments are disclosed in the unconsolidated financial statements at committed amount.			 

	
4.21	 Leases								      
				   					   
	 Finance leases 								      
									      
	 Leases in terms of which the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 

finance leases. Assets obtained under finance lease are accounted for in accordance with policy stated in note 4.1.	
	

	 The related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term depending upon the timing 
of the payment.								      

	
	 Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance 

outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account over the lease 
term.								      

	
	 Operating leases 								      
									      
	 Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified 

as operating leases. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period 
in which they are incurred. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) 
are charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of lease. In the 
event lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The 
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis except where 
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit from the leased assets 
are consumed.								      

	
	 Ijarah								      
									      
	 Leased assets which are obtained under Ijarah agreement are not recognized in the Company’s unconsolidated 

balance sheet and are treated as operating lease based on IFAS 2 issued by the ICAP and notified by SECP vide 
S.R.O. 43(1) / 2007 dated 22 May 2007. Ujrah payments  made under an Ijarah are charged to the unconsolidated 
profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the Ijarah term unless another systematic basis is representative 
of time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the payment are not on that basis.					   
	

4.22	 Foreign currency translations								      
									      
	 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange 

prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani 
Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to the 
unconsolidated profit and loss account. At the end of each reporting period, monetary amount denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.						    
	

	 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.		
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4.23	 Taxation								     
									      
	 Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is recognized in the unconsolidated profit and 

loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized outside unconsolidated profit and loss account 
(whether in unconsolidated other comprehensive income or directly in equity), if any, in which case the tax amounts 
are recognized outside unconsolidated profit and loss account.							    

	 - Current	 							     
									      
	 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 

enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior years.		

	 - Deferred	 							     
									      
	 Deferred tax is provided for using the unconsolidated balance sheet method providing the temporary differences 

between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for 
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement 
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset 
is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be 
utilized. 								      

	
	 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based 

on the tax rates that have been enacted. The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions 
taken by the taxation authorities.								      

	
	 Deferred tax is charged or credited in the unconsolidated profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or 

charged to equity or comprehensive income, in which case it is included in equity or statement of other comprehensive 
income as the case may be.								     

4.24	 Revenue recognition								      
									      
	 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable on 
the following basis:								      

	
	 Operating revenue 								      

	 - 	Sales are recorded when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers 
which coincides with dispatch of goods to customers.							     

	 - 	Non-fuel retail income and other revenue (including license fee) is recognized on an accrual basis.		
	 - 	Handling, storage and other services income is recognized when the services have been rendered.		

	
	 Other income								      

	 - 	Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established.	
	 - 	Return on bank deposits is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and 

the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a timely basis by reference to the 
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.						    

	 - 	Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. 
Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amounts of 
the leased assets and recognized on a straight line basis over the leased term.					  
	

4.25	 Retirement and other service benefits								      
									      
	 Unfunded gratuity scheme	 							     
									      
	 The Company operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme covering of all its permanent employees who  

have completed the qualifying period under the scheme. The scheme is administered by the trustees and contribution 
therein are made in the accordance with actuarial recommendations.							     
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The valuation in this regard is carried using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being carried 
out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises of 
actuarial gain and losses are recognized in the unconsolidated other comprehensive income based on actuarial gain 
and losses.								      

	
	 The Company determine the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the year by 

applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual year to the 
net defined benefit liability / (asset), taking into account and change in the net defined benefit liability / (asset) during 
the year as result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense, current service cost and past service 
cost related to defined benefit plans are recognized in the unconsolidated profit and loss account.			

	 Contributory provident fund								      
									      
	 The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees. The contribution 

to the fund is made by the Company as well as the employees at the rate of 5.72% percent of the basic salary. 	
	

4.26	 Operating segments								      
									      
	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as management that makes strategic decisions. The 
management has determined that the Company has a single reportable segment as the Board of Directors view the 
Company’s operations as one reportable segment.								      

4.27	 Related party transactions								      
									      
	 All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm’s length price using the comparable 

uncontrolled valuation method. 

Annual Report 2017 Page 61



(Rupees in thousand)
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017	

	
N

ot
e 

	
20

17
	

20
16

		


5	
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
, P

L
A

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
					







	
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 fi
xe

d 
as

se
ts

	
5.

1	
9,

86
9,

02
7 

	
 5

,2
14

,5
36

 
	

C
ap

it
al

 w
or

k-
in

-p
ro

gr
es

s	
5.

2	
 3

,8
11

,3
22

 	
 3

,4
74

,4
11

 
				




 1
3,

68
0,

34
9 

	
8,

68
8,

94
7 

5.
1	

O
p

er
at

in
g 

fi
xe

d
 a

ss
et

s	
			


			


   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

				





O
w

ne
d 

as
se

ts
 										














Le

as
ed

 a
ss

et
s 

		


				


  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

B
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 				





E
le

ct
ri

ca
l,	

Fu
rn

it
ur

e,
 	  

   
   

   
   

 V
eh

ic
le

s							









E

le
ct

ri
ca

l,	 
   

   
   

   
   

  V
eh

ic
le

s
				


   

   
   

   
   

   
   

le
as

e 
ho

ld
 la

nd
				





m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l	
of

fic
e								











m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l			



To

ta
l

 			


La
nd

	
*O

ffi
ce

 	
Pu

m
p	

Ta
nk

s 
an

d	
D

is
pe

ns
in

g	
Pl

an
t a

nd
	

an
d 

fir
e	

eq
ui

pm
en

t	
Ta

nk
	

M
ot

or
	

C
om

pu
te

r	
Pu

m
p	

Ta
nk

s 
an

d	
D

is
pe

ns
in

g	
Pl

an
t a

nd
	

an
d 

fir
e	

Ta
nk

	
M

ot
or

	
op

er
at

in
g

			


le
as

e 
 	

an
d 

de
po

ts
	

bu
ild

in
g	

pi
pe

lin
es

	
pu

m
ps

	
m

ac
hi

ne
ry

	
fig

ht
in

g	
an

d 
ot

he
r	

lo
rr

ie
s	

ca
rs

	
au

xi
lia

ri
es

	
bu

ild
in

g	
pi

pe
lin

es
 	

pu
m

ps
	

m
ac

hi
ne

ry
	

fig
ht

in
g	

lo
rr

ie
s	

ca
rs

	
fix

ed
 			


ho

ld
	

bu
ild

in
g					







eq
ui

pm
en

t	
as

se
ts

								











eq
ui

pm
en

t			



as

se
ts

			


A
t 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

7																























C
os

t 
/ r

ev
al

ue
d 

am
ou

nt
	

 3
1,

55
7 

	 
1,

05
0,

27
0 

	 
1,

36
0,

95
2 

	
 7

64
,9

04
 	

 3
25

,8
88

 	
 8

1,
23

1 
	

 5
94

,0
01

 	
 1

42
,9

43
 	

 1
6,

24
7 

	
 5

7,
87

1 
	

 5
2,

81
1 

	
 2

85
,3

99
 	

 2
08

,5
96

 	
 6

35
,1

16
 	

 2
05

,3
22

 	
  4

4,
77

7 
	

 2
55

,5
79

 	
 6

1,
49

3 
	

6,
17

4,
95

7 
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n	

 - 
  	

(1
29

,8
81

)	
 (1

44
,5

57
)	

 (6
0,

46
2)

	
 (5

0,
22

8)
	

 (8
,4

76
)	

 (9
5,

45
7)

	
 (6

2,
15

8)
	

 (2
,1

18
)	

 (9
,7

66
)	

 (3
3,

73
5)

	
 (7

4,
62

7)
	

 (4
7,

54
5)

	
 (1

65
,1

57
)	

 (3
5,

32
6)

	
(7

,7
67

)	
(1

5,
89

8)
	

 (1
7,

26
3)

	
 (9

60
,4

21
)

N
et

 b
oo

k
 v

al
u

e	
 3

1,
55

7 
	

 9
20

,3
89

 	
 1

,2
16

,3
95

 	
 7

04
,4

42
 	

 2
75

,6
60

 	
 7

2,
75

5 
	

 4
98

,5
44

 	
 8

0,
78

5 
	

 1
4,

12
9 

	
 4

8,
10

5 
	

 1
9,

07
6 

	
 2

10
,7

72
 	

 1
61

,0
51

 	
 4

69
,9

59
 	

 1
69

,9
96

 	
 3

7,
01

0 
	

 2
39

,6
81

 	
 4

4,
23

0 
	 

5,
21

4,
53

6 

Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

7																					






























O

pe
ni

ng
 n

et
 b

oo
k 

va
lu

e	
 3

1,
55

7 
	

 9
20

,3
89

 	
 1

,2
16

,3
95

 	
 7

04
,4

42
 	

 2
75

,6
60

 	
 7

2,
75

5 
	

 4
98

,5
44

 	
 8

0,
78

5 
	

 1
4,

12
9 

	
 4

8,
10

5 
	

 1
9,

07
6 

	
 2

10
,7

72
 	

 1
61

,0
51

 	
46

9,
95

9 
	

 1
69

,9
96

 	
 3

7,
01

0 
	

 2
39

,6
81

 	
 4

4,
23

0 
	 

5,
21

4,
53

6 
A

dd
it

io
n 

/ t
ra

ns
fe

r 
fr

om
 C

W
IP

	
 8

57
,5

20
 	

 1
,6

08
,5

96
 	

 2
26

,1
79

 	
 1

,3
58

,0
26

 	
 5

3,
18

2 
	

 7
8,

37
9 

	
 5

54
,5

14
 	

 2
2,

99
6 

	
 3

09
,2

42
 	

 6
7,

96
4 

	
 1

6,
94

9 
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 2
0,

07
0 

	
 1

74
,9

19
 	

 7
,7

23
 	

 5
,3

56
,2

59
 

R
ev

al
ua

ti
on

 		
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 

D
is

p
os

al
s 

																						
































C
os

t		


 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 (1
26

,8
97

)	
 (6

9,
45

9)
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 (1
,2

69
)	

 (1
97

,6
25

)
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 4
,1

51
 	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 1
,2

69
 	

 5
,4

20
 

		


 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 (1
26

,8
97

)	
 (6

5,
30

8)
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
   

	 (1
92

,2
05

)
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

ch
ar

ge
	

 - 
  	

 (6
4,

16
3)

	
 (8

1,
27

7)
	

 (4
8,

48
7)

	
 (2

6,
97

2)
	

 (5
,3

64
)	

 (7
2,

01
4)

	
 (2

1,
83

7)
	

 (6
,2

38
)	

 (1
2,

95
4)

	
 (1

0,
29

3)
	

(1
9,

75
5)

	
 (1

3,
78

3)
	

 (6
5,

33
7)

	
 (1

2,
21

9)
	

 (2
,5

40
) 	

 (3
5,

63
8)

	
 (1

0,
69

2)
	

 (5
09

,5
63

)
R

es
id

ua
l V

al
ue

	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
-	

-	
-

C
lo

si
n

g 
n

et
 b

oo
k

 v
al

u
e	

 8
89

,0
77

 	
 2

,4
64

,8
22

 	
 1

,3
61

,2
97

 	
 2

,0
13

,9
81

 	
 3

01
,8

70
 	

 1
45

,7
70

 	
 9

81
,0

44
 	

 8
1,

94
4 

	
 1

90
,2

36
 	

 3
7,

80
7 

	
 2

5,
73

2 
	

 1
91

,0
17

 	
 1

47
,2

68
 	

 4
04

,6
22

 	
 1

57
,7

77
 	

  5
4,

54
0 

	
 3

78
,9

62
 	

 4
1,

26
1 

	 
9,

86
9,

02
7 

A
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

7																					






























C

os
t 

/ r
ev

al
ue

d 
am

ou
nt

	
88

9,
07

7 
	 

2,
65

8,
86

6 
	 

1,
58

7,
13

1 
	 

2,
12

2,
93

0 
	

 3
79

,0
70

 	
 1

59
,6

10
 	

 1
,1

48
,5

15
 	

 1
65

,9
39

 	
 1

98
,5

92
 	

 5
6,

37
6 

	
 6

9,
76

0 
	

 2
85

,3
99

 	
 2

08
,5

96
 	

 6
35

,1
16

 	
 2

05
,3

22
 	

64
,8

47
 	

 4
30

,4
98

 	
 6

7,
94

7 
	 1

1,
33

3,
59

1 
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n	

 - 
  	 

(1
94

,0
44

)	
 (2

25
,8

34
)	

 (1
08

,9
49

)	
 (7

7,
20

0)
	

 (1
3,

84
0)

	
 (1

67
,4

71
)	

 (8
3,

99
5)

	
 (8

,3
56

)	
 (1

8,
56

9)
	

 (4
4,

02
8)

	
 (9

4,
38

2)
	

 (6
1,

32
8)

	
 (2

30
,4

94
)	

 (4
7,

54
5)

 - 
  	 

(1
0,

30
7)

 - 
  	

 (5
1,

53
6)

	
 (2

6,
68

6)
	 (

1,
46

4,
56

4)
N

et
 b

oo
k

 v
al

u
e	

 8
89

,0
77

 	
 2

,4
64

,8
22

 	
 1

,3
61

,2
97

 	
 2

,0
13

,9
81

 	
 3

01
,8

70
 	

 1
45

,7
70

 	
 9

81
,0

44
 	

 8
1,

94
4 

	
 1

90
,2

36
 	

 3
7,

80
7 

	
 2

5,
73

2 
	

 1
91

,0
17

 	
 1

47
,2

68
 	

 4
04

,6
22

 	
 1

57
,7

77
 	

 5
4,

54
0 

  	
 3

78
,9

62
 	

 4
1,

26
1 

	 
9,

86
9,

02
7 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
 r

at
e 

- %
	

 - 
  	

 5
 	

 5
 	

 5
 	

 6
.6

7 
	

 5
 	

 1
0 

	
 2

0 
	

 1
0 

	
 2

0 
	

 3
3.

33
 	

 5
 	

 5
 	

 6
.6

7 
	

 5
 	

 1
0 

	
 1

0 
	

 2
0	

A
t 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

6																					






























C

os
t 

/ r
ev

al
ue

d 
am

ou
nt

	
 - 

  	
 9

69
,9

29
 	

 1
,0

20
,6

17
 	

 5
79

,3
07

 	
 3

03
,7

71
 	

 5
2,

31
1 

	
42

6,
13

5 
	

 7
3,

32
0 

	
 - 

  	
 1

0,
44

8 
	

 3
4,

46
3 

	
 2

77
,8

73
 	

 2
08

,5
96

 	
 6

00
,0

76
 	

 1
68

,0
02

 	
 3

9,
59

2 
	

12
,2

30
 	

 1
1,

73
9 

	 
4,

78
8,

40
9 

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n	
 - 

  	
 (7

0,
31

2)
	

 (7
6,

14
3)

	
 (3

0,
11

3)
	

 (2
7,

12
5)

	
 (3

,4
44

)	
 (3

7,
31

6)
	

 (5
0,

88
4)

	
 - 

  	
 (6

,7
78

)	
 (2

4,
36

0)
	

 (5
5,

04
0)

	
 (3

3,
76

6)
	

 (1
00

,7
48

)	
 (2

4,
31

8)
	

 (6
,4

64
)	

 (9
,2

75
)	

 (1
1,

73
9)

	
 (5

67
,8

25
)

N
et

 b
oo

k
 v

al
u

e	
 - 

  	
 8

99
,6

17
 	

 9
44

,4
74

 	
 5

49
,1

94
 	

 2
76

,6
46

 	
 4

8,
86

7 
	

 3
88

,8
19

 	
 2

2,
43

6 
	

 - 
  	

 3
,6

70
 	

 1
0,

10
3 

	
22

2,
83

3 
	

 1
74

,8
30

 	
 4

99
,3

28
 	

 1
43

,6
84

   
	

 3
3,

12
8 

	
 2

,9
55

   
	

 -	
4,

22
0,

58
4 

Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

6																					






























O

pe
ni

ng
 n

et
 b

oo
k 

va
lu

e	
 - 

  	
 8

99
,6

17
 	

 9
44

,4
74

 	
 5

49
,1

94
 	

 2
76

,6
46

 	
 4

8,
86

7 
	

 3
88

,8
19

 	
 2

2,
43

6 
	

 - 
  	

 3
,6

70
 	

 1
0,

10
3 

	
 2

22
,8

33
 	

 1
74

,8
30

 	
 4

99
,3

28
 	

 1
43

,6
84

   
	

 3
3,

12
8 

 	
 2

,9
55

  	
- 	

 4
,2

20
,5

84
 

A
dd

it
io

n 
/ t

ra
ns

fe
r 

fr
om

 C
W

IP
	

 3
1,

55
7 

	
 8

0,
34

1 
	

 3
40

,3
35

 	
 1

85
,5

97
 	

 2
2,

11
7 

	
 2

8,
92

0 
	

 1
67

,8
66

 	
 6

9,
62

3 
	

16
,2

47
 	

 5
0,

63
0 

	
 1

8,
40

8 
	

 7
,5

26
 	

 - 
  	

 3
5,

04
0 

	
 3

7,
32

0 
	

 5
,1

85
 	

 2
97

,2
13

 	
 5

2,
81

9 
	 

1,
44

6,
74

4 
R

ev
al

ua
ti

on
 		

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  		


D

is
po

sa
ls

 / 
tr

an
sf

er
s 

																					






























C

os
t		


 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 (3

,2
07

)	
 (6

0)
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 (5
3,

86
4)

	
 (3

,0
65

)	
 (6

0,
19

6)
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 2
,5

33
 	

 5
0 

	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 8

98
 	

 3
,0

65
 	

 6
,5

46
 

		


 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 (6
74

)	
 (1

0)
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
   

 	 (
52

,9
66

)	
 - 

  	
 (5

3,
65

0)
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

ch
ar

ge
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
	

 - 
  	

 (5
9,

56
9)

	
 (6

8,
41

4)
	

 (3
0,

34
9)

	
 (2

3,
10

3)
	

 (5
,0

32
)	

 (5
8,

14
1)

	
 (1

1,
27

4)
	

 (2
,1

18
)	

 (5
,5

21
)	

 (9
,4

25
)	

 (1
9,

58
7)

	
 (1

3,
77

9)
	

 (6
4,

40
9)

	
 (1

1,
00

8)
	

 (1
,3

03
)	

 (7
,5

21
)	

 (8
,5

89
)	

 (3
99

,1
42

)
R

es
id

ua
l V

al
ue

	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
-	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

-	
 - 

  
C

lo
si

ng
 n

et
 b

oo
k 

va
lu

e	
 3

1,
55

7 
	

 9
20

,3
89

 	
 1

,2
16

,3
95

 	
 7

04
,4

42
 	

27
5,

66
0 

	
 7

2,
75

5 
	

 4
98

,5
44

 	
 8

0,
78

5 
	

 1
4,

12
9 

	
 4

8,
10

5 
	

 1
9,

07
6 

	
 2

10
,7

72
 	

 1
61

,0
51

 	
 4

69
,9

59
 	

 1
69

,9
96

 	
 3

7,
01

0 
	

 2
39

,6
81

 	
 4

4,
23

0 
	 

5,
21

4,
53

6 

A
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

6																					






























C

os
t 

/ r
ev

al
ue

d 
am

ou
nt

	
 3

1,
55

7 
	 

1,
05

0,
27

0 
	 

1,
36

0,
95

2 
	

 7
64

,9
04

 	
 3

25
,8

88
 	

 8
1,

23
1 

	
 5

94
,0

01
 	

 1
42

,9
43

 	
 1

6,
24

7 
	

 5
7,

87
1 

	
 5

2,
81

1 
	

 2
85

,3
99

 	
 2

08
,5

96
 	

 6
35

,1
16

 	
 2

05
,3

22
 	

 4
4,

77
7 

	
 2

55
,5

79
 	

 6
1,

49
3 

	 
6,

17
4,

95
7 

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n	
-	

(1
29

,8
81

)	
 (1

44
,5

57
)	

 (6
0,

46
2)

	
 (5

0,
22

8)
	

 (8
,4

76
)	

 (9
5,

45
7)

	
 (6

2,
15

8)
 	

 (2
,1

18
)	

 (9
,7

66
)	

 (3
3,

73
5)

	
 (7

4,
62

7)
	

 (4
7,

54
5)

	
 (1

65
,1

57
)	

 (3
5,

32
6)

	
 (7

,7
67

) 	
 (1

5,
89

8)
	

 (1
7,

26
3)

	
 (9

60
,4

21
)

N
et

 b
oo

k
 v

al
u

e	
 3

1,
55

7 
	

 9
20

,3
89

 	
 1

,2
16

,3
95

 	
 7

04
,4

42
 	

 2
75

,6
60

 	
 7

2,
75

5 
	

 4
98

,5
44

 	
 8

0,
78

5 
	

 1
4,

12
9 

	
 4

8,
10

5 
	

 1
9,

07
6 

	
 2

10
,7

72
 	

 1
61

,0
51

 	
 4

69
,9

59
 	

 1
69

,9
96

 	
 3

7,
01

0 
 	

 2
39

,6
81

 	
 4

4,
23

0 
	 

5,
21

4,
53

6 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
 r

at
e 

- %
	

 - 
  	

 5
 	

 5
 	

 5
 	

 6
.6

7 
	

 5
 	

 1
0 

	
 2

0 
	

 2
0 

	
 2

0 
	

 3
3.

33
 	

 5
 	

 5
 	

 6
.6

7 
	

 5
 	

 1
0 

	
 2

0 
	

 2
0 

	

* 
R

un
ni

ng
 fi

na
nc

e 
fa

ci
li

ty
 fr

om
 S

um
m

it
 B

an
k 

L
im

it
ed

 is
 s

ec
ur

ed
 o

n 
of

fic
e 

bu
il

di
ng

 fo
r 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 R
s.

 5
00

 m
il

li
on

 (2
01

6:
 R

s.
 5

00
 m

il
li

on
).

Hascol Petroleum Limited Page 62



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
5.2	 Capital work in progress								      
									      
	 Office building		  1,505,203 	  1,601,993 
	 Tanks and pipelines		   697,086 	  649,540 
	 Pump building	 	  435,325 	  250,137 
	 Electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipment		   304,894 	  475,424 
	 Tank lorries	 	  260,357 	  -   
	 Advances to contractors		  232,592 	  140,614 
	 Dispensing pumps		   160,087 	  96,357 
	 Furniture, office equipment and other assets		  155,567 	  107,768 
	 Plant and machinery		   25,697 	  22,319 
	 Borrowing cost capitalized	 5.3	  22,035 	  123,214 
	 Computer auxiliaries		   12,479 	  7,045 
				    3,811,322 	  3,474,411 
									      
5.3	 During the year additions amounting to Rs. 5,693.17 million (2016: 2,863.87 million) have been made in capital work-

in-progress. This also includes borrowing cost capitalized during the year at  rates ranging from 7.45% - 9.15%  (2016: 
7.36% - 9.59%).								      

5.4	 Due to large number of dealers it is impracticable to disclose the name of each person having possession of operating 
fixed assets, as required under Paragraph 5 of Part I of the 4th Schedule to the Companies Ordinance, 1984.	
	

	 Operating fixed assets held by dealers of retail outlets of the Company are tanks and pipelines dispensing pumps, 
plant and machinery, electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipments. These  assets are not in possession of the 
Company as these have been provided to dealers of retail outlets to facilitate them to promote and sell the Company’s 
products.								      

									      
5.5	 Change in accounting estimates								     
									      
	 In accordance with its policy, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of its operating fixed assets on an 

ongoing basis. This review indicated that the actual lives of tank lorries were more than the estimated useful lives 
used for depreciation purposes in the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements. As a result, effective January 
01, 2017, the Company changed its estimates of the useful lives of its tank lorries to better reflect the estimated 
periods during which these assets will remain in service. Due to change in estimated useful lives the depreciation 
rate has been revised from 20% to 10%.								      

	
	 Effect of the change in estimate on depreciation expense and profit for the year is shown below:				  

				 
			  Based at	 Based at	 (Decreased)
			  previous rate	 current rate	 /increased by
		
	 Change in depreciation expense	 83,752 	  41,876 	  (41,876)
		 Change in profit for the year			    41,876 
									      
5.6	 In 2012, the Company carried out revaluation of petrol pumps through an independent valuer. Revalued amount of 

assets was Rs. 1,172 million, resulting in surplus (net of deferred tax) amount to Rs. 387 million. Further, during 
2015 the Company carried out revaluation of depots and petrol pumps through an independent valuer. Revalued 
amount of assets was Rs. 4,154 million, resulting in surplus (net of deferred tax) amounting to Rs. 1,006 million.	
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5.7	 Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of the following assets in the unconsolidated balance sheet 
would have been as follows:		

			  Cost	 Accumulated 	 Written down value	
				   depreciation	 2017	 2016	
					  
	 Owned Assets

	 Building on lease hold land:					   
	 - Pump building 	  880,921 	  197,677 	  683,244 	  727,290 
	 - Dispensing units	  61,613 	  15,275 	  46,338 	  50,448 
	 Plant and machinery 	  19,767 	  5,345 	  14,422 	  15,410 
	 Tanks and pipelines 	  312,423 	  50,019 	  262,404 	  278,025 
	 Electrical mechanical and 						    

   fire fighting equipment	  224,202 	  67,699 	  156,503 	  178,923 
	
	 Leased Assets					   

	
	 Pump building 	  166,399 	  83,331 	  83,068 	  91,388 
	 Dispensing units	 137,419 	  87,400 	  50,019 	  59,185 
	 Plant and machinery 	  66,850 	  32,637 	  34,213 	  37,556 
	 Tanks and pipelines 	  90,260 	 48,011 	  42,249 	  46,762 
	 Electrical mechanical and 						    

   fire fighting equipment	  14,351 	  6,634 	  7,717 	  9,152 
			   1,974,205 	  594,028 	  1,380,177 	  1,494,139 
									      
5.8	 The level of hierarchy for the fair value disclosed fall in level 3 i.e., inputs other than quoted prices included within 

level 3 that are unobservable either directly or indirectly.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
5.9	 The depreciation charged for the year has 								      
	     been allocated as follows:								     
									      
	 Distribution and marketing expenses	 31	  486,087 	  373,786 
	 Administrative expenses	 32	  23,476 	  25,356 
				   509,563 	 399,142

5.10	 During the year written down value of operating fixed assets that have been disposed-off amount to Rs.192.2 million  
(2016: Rs. 53.65 million). Details of operating fixed assets disposed-off with WDV above Rs. 50,000 are given below:

				   Accumulated	 Net book	 Sale	 Gain	 Particulars of	 Mode of
	 Type	 Cost	 depreciation	 value	 proceeds	  / (Loss)	 buyers	 disposal

	 	 Motor cars											         
	 25,205 	  1,721 	  23,484 	  23,000 	  (484)	 Mumtaz Hasan Khan - Chairman	 As per Company policy

			    22,238 	  -   	  22,238 	  22,384 	  146 	 Mumtaz Hasan Khan - Chairman 	 As per Company policy
			    19,281 	  1,380 	  17,901 	  15,750 	  (2,151)	 Mumtaz Hasan Khan - Chairman 	 As per Company policy
			    814 	  -   	  814 	  964 	  150 	 Mumtaz Hasan Khan - Chairman 	 As per Company policy
			    102 	  5 	  97 	  402 	  305 	 Sheraz Ahmed - Employee		  As per Company policy
			    102 	  5 	  97 	  402 	  305 	 Muhammad Umer - Employee	 As per Company policy
			    102 	  5 	  97 	  402 	  305 	 Nousheen Nabeel - Employee	 As per Company policy
			    99 	  8 	  91 	  394 	  303 	 Ali Raza - Employee		  As per Company policy
			    99 	  8 	  91 	  394 	  303 	 Tillah Khan - Employee		  As per Company policy
			    99 	  8 	  91 	  394 	  303 	 Shumail - Employee		  As per Company policy
			    99 	 8 	  91 	  394 	  303 	 Farooq Memon - Employee		  As per Company policy
			    99 	  10 	  89 	  710 	  621 	 Fawaz Fasih - Employee		  As per Company policy
			    99 	  11 	  88 	  394 	  306 	 Zubair Ahmed Khan - Employee	 As per Company policy
			    68,438	  3,169 	 65,269	  65,984	  715 
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				   Accumulated	 Net book	 Sale	 Gain	 Particulars of	 Mode of
		 Type	 Cost	 depreciation	 value	 proceeds	 / (Loss)	 buyers	 disposal		

		
		  Tank Lorries									       
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	 12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	 12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,312 	  1,737 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,312 	  1,737 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,312 	  1,737 	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Sale and operating leaseback
			    126,900 	  -  	  126,900	  146,844 	  19,944 				  
	
		  2017	  195,338 	  3,169 	  192,169 	  212,828 	  20,659 				  
	
		  2016	  57,073 	  3,433 	  53,640 	  64,362 	  10,722

			  Note 	 2017	 2016

6		  INTANGIBLE ASSET									       
	

	 Computer software		   -  	  -   
	
	 Net book value at beginning of the year		   -   	  1,522 
	 Amortization charge for the year	 32	  -   	  (1,522)
	 Net book value at the end of the year	 6.1	  -   	  -   

6.1	 Net book value			 
	

	 Cost		   8,299 	  8,299 
	 Accumulated amortization		   (8,299)	  (8,299)
	 Net book value 		   -   	  -   
	 Rate of amortization - %		   33.33 	  33.33 

7	 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS			 
	

	 Investment in subsidiary companies - at cost				  
Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited (unquoted)	 7.1	  -   	  -   

	 Hascol Terminals Limited (unquoted)	 7.2	  -   	  75,000 
	
	 Investment in associated company - at cost				  

VAS LNG (Private) Limited (unquoted)	 7.3	  3,000 	  -   
	
	 Available for sale investments				  

Pakistan Refinery Limited (quoted) - at fair value	 7.4	  1,521,518 	  1,886,977 
	 Hascol Terminals Limited (unquoted) - at cost	 7.2	  375,000 	  -   
				   1,899,518 	  1,961,977 

7.1	 Investment at cost		  30,604 	  30,604 
		
	 Movement in provision for impairment				  

Balance at the beginning of the year		   (30,604)	  (30,604)
	 Provision made during the year		   -   	  -   
	 Balance at the end of the year		   (30,604)	  (30,604)
	 Net book value	 7.1.1	  -   	  -   
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7.1.1	 This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, incorporated in Pakistan under the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Its shares are not quoted in active market. The Company holds 9.78 million ordinary 
shares (2016: 9.78 million) of Rs. 10 per share.							     
	

7.2	 Investment in Hascol Terminals Limited amounts to Rs. 375 million (2016: Rs. 75 million) representing 15% (2016: 
62.5%) equity stake which amounts to 37.5 million shares (2016: 7.5 million shares) as at December 31, 2017. During 
the year, the Company subscribed to 30 million right shares at Rs. 10 each. These shares are not quoted on an active 
market and have been carried at cost. Hascol Terminals Limited provides storage facilities for imported and locally 
produced petroleum and related products. Due to change in ownership structure, the Company loss control of Hascol 
terminal Limited and therefore is no longer subsidiary.	

				  
7.3	 Investment in VAS LNG (Private) Limited amounts to Rs. 3 million (2016: Nil) representing 30% (2016: Nil) equity 

stake. The Company holds 0.3 million ordinary shares (2016: Nil) of Rs. 10 per share.					   
						    

			  Note	 Cost	 Unrealised	 Carrying
					    gain	 value

7.4	 Pakistan Refinery Limited									       
	

	 December 31, 2017 	 7.4.1 	  1,172,772 	  348,746 	  1,521,518 
	 December 31, 2016		   1,172,772 	  714,205 	  1,886,977 

7.4.1	 Investment in Pakistan Refinery Limited represents 13.72% (2016: 13.72%) equity stake which amounts to 43.25 
million shares (2016: 43.25 million shares).

			  Note 	 2017	 2016		
			

8	 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS				  
	

	 Lease deposits		   133,888 	  133,462 
	 Less: current portion of lease deposits	 12	  (794)	  (5,740)
				    133,094 	 127,722 
	 Deposits against:			 

	- depots		  107,144 	  107,144 
	 - retail outlets		   67,164 	  47,993 
	 - others		   24,135 	  6,023 
				    198,443 	  161,160 
				    331,537 	  288,882 
9		  STOCK-IN-TRADE										        

	
	 Raw and packing materials - lubricants		  97,636 	  79,694 
	 Finished goods				  

-   fuels	 9.1	  16,624,943 	  14,972,545 
	 -   lubricants		   298,577 	  315,292 
				    16,923,520 	  15,287,837 
	 Stock in transit				  

-   fuels		  1,509,777 	  1,110,137 
		 -   lubricants		  26,173 	  -   
				   1,535,950 	  1,110,137 
				    18,557,106 	  16,477,668 

9.1	 Fuels include Rs. 3,620.17 million (2016: Rs. 1,725.56 million) of High Speed Diesel which has been maintained as 
line fill necessary for the pipeline to operate.							     
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016

10		 TRADE DEBTS 	 									       
	

	 Considered good			 
	- Secured	 10.1	  3,658,244 	  2,142,536 

	 - Unsecured		   7,859,974 	  5,728,745 
				   11,518,218 	  7,871,281 
	 Considered doubtful	 10.2	  7,973 	  7,973 
				    11,526,191 	  7,879,254 
	 Provision for impairment	 10.3	  (7,973)	  (7,973)
				   11,518,218	  7,871,281 

10.1	 These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees, letter of credits and security deposits.			 
	

10.2	 This includes receivable from Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited (subsidiary company) amounting to Rs. 7.12 
million (2016: Rs. 7.12 million).

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
									       
10.3	 Movement of provision for impairment								      

	
	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   7,973 	  7,973 	

Provision made during the year		   -   	  -   
	 Balance at the end of the year		  7,973 	  7,973 

11	 ADVANCES - considered good, unsecured			 
	

	 To employees 			 
	- against expenses		   46,023 	  1,716 

	 - against salaries		  63,755 	  13,348 
	 Leasing companies		   - 	  2,203 
	 Advance against purchase of shares	 11.1	  60,721 	  208,808 
	 Suppliers		   10,866 	  27,338 
				    181,365 	  253,413 

11.1	 Advance against purchase of shares - related parties			 
	

	 Hascol Terminals Limited		   57,685 	  208,808 
	 Hascol Lubricants (Private) Limited		   2,013 	  -   
	 VAS LNG (Private) Limited		  1,023 	  -   
				   60,721	 208,808

12	 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 			 
	

	 Deposits				  
Current portion of lease deposits	 8	  794 	  5,740 

	 Other deposits		   2,477 	  19,822 
				    3,271 	  25,562 
	 Prepayments			 

	- Rent		   53,686 	  66,616 
	 - Insurance and others		   23,676 	  14,001 
				    77,362 	  80,617 
				    80,633 	  106,179 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016

13		 OTHER RECEIVABLES									       
	

	 Inland freight equalization margin receivable		   2,019,113 	  1,024,234 
	 Receivable against services rendered	 13.1	  53,346 	  -   
	 Franchise income receivable - net	 13.2	  34,642 	  73,304 
	 Receivable against regulatory duty 		   25,533 	  25,533 
	 Receivable from oil marketing companies	 13.3	  9,073 	  11,328 
 	 Price differential claims	 13.4	  5,083 	  5,083 
	 Others 		   14,241 	  5,271 
			  	  2,161,031 	  1,144,753 

13.1	 This represents amount receivable from Hascol Terminals Limited (an associated company)  against services 
rendered by the Company on account of business support services.	

			  Note 	 2017	 2016		
	

13.2	 Franchise income receivable - net								      
	

	 Movement in gross receivables				  
Balance at the beginning of the year	 	 100,653 	  81,946 

	 Earned during the year		   -   	  18,707 
	 Received during the year		   (3,452)	  -   
	 Balance at the end of the year		   97,201 	  100,653 
	
	 Movement of provision 				  

Balance at the beginning of the year		   (27,349)	  -   
	 Charged during the year 		   (35,210)	  (27,349)
	 Balance at the end of the year		   (62,559)	  (27,349)
			  13.2.1	 34,642	 73,304

13.2.1	This represents amount receivable from CNG dealers.						    
	

13.3	 This represents amount receivable from various oil marketing companies on account of share of motor gasoline 
imported on their behalf.									       
	

13.4	 This represents amount receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) net of recovery as per fortnightly rates 
declared by the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources. The Company together with other oil marketing 
companies is actively pursuing the matter with the concerned authorities for the early settlement of above claim. 
The Company considers that the balance amount will be reimbursed by GoP in due course of time.

			   	 2017	 2016
			 
14		 MARK - UP AND PROFIT ACCRUED								      

	
	 From conventional banks		  54,366 	  32,332 
	 From Islamic banks		   3,032 	  3,484 
				    57,398 	  35,816 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016

15		 CASH AND BANK BALANCES									       
	

	 Balances with banks: 				  
in current accounts:			 
	

	 - Conventional banks		   864,735 	  1,408,267 
	 - Islamic banks		   62,135 	  1,925 
				    926,870 	 1,410,192
	 in saving accounts:				  

	- Conventional banks	 	  7,561,072 	  5,741,121 
	 - Islamic banks		  1,079,278 	  608,028 
			  15.1 	  8,640,350 	  6,349,149
	 Cash in hand		   837 	  1,729 
				   9,568,057 	  7,761,070 
	 Term deposit receipts	 15.2 & 19.2	 60,000 	  60,000 
				    9,628,057 	  7,821,070 

15.1	 These carry mark-up ranging from 3.75% to 5.5% per annum (2016: 3.75% to 6% per annum).			 
	

15.2	 This carry mark-up 5% per annum (2016: 5% per annum).						    
	

16		 SHARE CAPITAL									       
	

16.1	 Authorized share capital

			  2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			       Number of shares						           				  

					   
	 150,000,000 	 150,000,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each	 	  1,500,000 	  1,500,000 

16.2	 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

			  2017	 2016	 Note	 2017	 2016
			           Number of shares	  	

			  89,540,000 	  89,540,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
					       each fully paid in cash	 	 895,400 	  895,400 
		 	  1,060,000 	 1,060,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
					       each for consideration other than cash     16.3 		   10,600 	  10,600 
			   9,966,000 	  9,966,000 	 Annual bonus @ 11% Dec 2014	 	 99,660 	  99,660 
	  	 20,113,200 	 20,113,200 	 Interim bonus @ 20% Jun 2015		   201,132 	  201,132 
			   24,135,840 	  -  	  Right issue @ 20%  Sep 2017                        16.4 	 	  241,358 	  -   
		  	144,815,040  	 120,679,200 			    1,448,150 	  1,206,792

16.3	 These were issued on December 8, 2004 for consultancy, feasibility study, travel and other expenses. 	
	

16.4	 An associated company held 37,468,365 (2016: 18,101,880) shares which represents 25.87% (2016: 15%) of the equity 
stake of the Company.
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016
						   
17	 RESERVES						   

	
	 Capital				  

Share premium	  17.1 	  4,766,854 	  1,070,828 
	 Surplus on re-measurement of available for sale investments		   322,589 	  624,930 
				    5,089,443 	  1,695,758 
	 Revenue				  

Unappropriated profit		  2,702,654 	  2,059,588 
							       7,792,097 	  3,755,346 

17.1	 The reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purpose specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 
2017.	

			  Note 	 2017	 2016

18	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF 				  
	  OPERATING FIXED ASSETS - net of tax			 
	

	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   1,656,347 	  1,847,286 
	 Transfer in respect of incremental depreciation for the year		   (190,935)	 (190,939)
	 Balance at the end of the year		   1,465,412 	  1,656,347 
	
	 Related deferred tax			 

	
	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   513,467 	  590,758 
	 Effective rate adjustment 		   (16,563)	  (18,101)
	 Reversal of deferred tax liability on account of incremental 				  

	   depreciation charged during the year		  (57,281)	  (59,190)
	 Balance at the end of the year		  (439,623)	  (513,467)
				    1,025,789 	  1,142,880 

19	 LONG TERM FINANCING - secured			 
	

	 Borrowings from conventional banks	  19.1.1 	  562,500 	  725,000 
	 Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions	  19.1.2 	  1,013,769 	  220,007 
	 Sukuk certificates	 19.1.3 	  1,671,373 	  1,961,821 
				   3,247,642 	  2,906,828 
	 Current portion of long term financing				  

Borrowings from conventional banks		   225,000 	  162,500 
	 Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions		  382,479 	  136,579 
	 Sukuk certificates		   400,000 	  300,000 
			  25	  (1,007,479)	  (599,079)
	 Non - current portion of long term financing		   2,240,163 	  2,307,749
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19.1	 Terms and conditions of borrowings are as follows:	
			
	 Particulars	 Note	 Number of	 Grace	 Date of final	 Markup rate per	 Installment	 2017	 2016
				   installments and	 period	 repayment	 annum	 Amount
				   commencement
				   month

19.1.1	 Borrowings from conventional banks				  
	 First Women Bank Limited 	 19.2	 36 monthly	 Nil	 March 28, 2019	 six month Kibor + 1.3% 	  8,333 	  125,000 	  225,000 
	 Under DF scheme		  March-16			    payable monthly				  

	
	 National Bank of Pakistan 	 19.3	 16 quarterly	 1 year	 May 24, 2021	 three month Kibor + 2.5% 	  31,250 	  437,500 	  500,000 
	 Under LTF scheme		  May-16			   payable quarterly			 

	
19.1.2	 Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions						    

	
	 Pak China Investment 	 19.4	 12 quarterly	 Nil	 February 29, 2020	 three month Kibor + 2.25%	  41,667 	  375,000 	  -   
	 Company Limited		  February-17			    payable quarterly				  

Under LTF scheme	
		
	 Pak Oman Investment	 19.5	 42 monthly	 6 months	November 19, 2018	 six month Kibor + 3%	  950 	  10,450 	  21,850 
	 Company Limited Loan 1		  December-14			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 19.5	 42 monthly	 6 months	 February 3, 2019	 six month Kibor + 3%	  1,431 	  20,033 	  37,205 
	 Company Limited Loan 2		  March-15			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 19.5	 42 monthly	 6 months	 May 19, 2019	 six month Kibor + 3%	  2,190 	  37,238 	  63,524 
	 Company Limited Loan 3		  June-15			    payable monthly			 
	 Under LTF scheme									       

						   
	 Pak Oman Investment	 19.6	 42 monthly	 6 months	 April 4, 2020	 six month Kibor + 2.5%	  1,286 	  36,000 	  51,428 
	 Company Limited Loan 4		  May-16			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 19.6	 42 monthly	 6 months	 August 19, 2020	 six month Kibor + 2.5%	  1,095 	  35,048 	  46,000 
	 Company Limited Loan 5		  September-16			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	  19.7	 42 monthly	 6 months	 June 23, 2021	 six month Kibor + 2.5%	  2,381 	 100,000   	  -   
	 Company Limited Loan 6		  June-17			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 19.8	 42 monthly	 6 months	 July 18, 2021	 six month Kibor + 2.5%	  9,524 	  400,000 	  -   
	 Company Limited Loan 7		  July-17			    payable monthly				  

	Under LTF scheme	

19.1.3	 Sukuk certificates	 19.9	 20 quarterly	 1 year	 January 5, 2022	 three month Kibor + 1.5%	  100,000 	  1,671,373 	  1,961,821 
				   January-16			    payable quarterly				  

		
									         3,247,642 	  2,906,828

19.2 	 This represents demand finance facility from First Women Bank Limited for construction of retail outlets which 
is secured against pledge of TDR of Rs. 60 million, Pledge of Pakistan Refinery Limited shares at 40% margin and 
personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman).

19.3 	 This represents term loan facility from National Bank of Pakistan for construction of storage depot at Mehmood 
Kot - Muzaffar Garh. The facility is secured against exclusive charge /mortgage of Rs. 666.67 million over the entire 
land and building, installation and machinery of the storage depot, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan 
(Chairman), post-dated cheques covering facility amount and corporate guarantee of M/s Fossil Energy (Private) 
Limited and M/s Marshal Gas (Private) Limited.			 
	

19.4 	 This represents term finance facility from Pak China Investment Company Limited for the future expansion plans 
and working capital requirements of the Company which was secured against first pari passu charge over the 
Company’s current assets with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 666.67 million, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz 
Hasan Khan (Chairman) and promissory note covering the charge amount to be obtained from the Company.	
	

19.5 	 This represents two term finance facilities from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for establishment of 
Daulatpur bulk oil depot. The facility limit were utilized in multiple tranches out of which one of the facility with 
limit of Rs. 100 million was availed in two tranches, that is Rs. 39.9 million and Rs. 60.1 million. The other facility 
with a limit of Rs. 100 million was availed in a single trench amounting to Rs. 92 million. The finance facilities 
were secured against first pari passu charge on land, building, plant and machinery and equipment situated in Deh 
Kandah Nandho with 25% margin.			 
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19.6 	 This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for expansion of Daulatpur 
bulk oil depot. The facility limit of Rs. 100 million was utilized in multiple tranches that is Rs. 54 million and Rs. 
46 million and facility was secured against first pari passu charge on the land, building, plant and machinery and 
equipment locate at the Daulatpur Bulk Storage depot with 25% margin.			 
	

19.7 	 This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for the expansion of Daulatpur 
depot. The facility was secured against first pari passu charge on land, building, plant and machinery and equipment 
of the Company situated at Daulatpur bulk oil depot with 25% margin maintained all times.		
	

19.8 	 This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for the establishment of Sahiwal 
depot. The facility was secured against exclusive charge on land, building, plant and machinery and equipment of the 
Company situated at Sahiwal depot with 25% margin maintained all times.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
				 
19.9 	 Sukuk certificates - gross amount	 19.9.1 	  1,700,000 	  2,000,000 
	
	 Issuance cost 				  

Balance at the beginning of the year	 	  (38,179)	  -   
	 Addition 		   -   	  (47,731)
	 Charged to profit and loss		   9,552 	  9,552 
	 Balance at the end of the year		   (28,627)	  (38,179)
	 Sukuk certificates - net amount		   1,671,373 	  1,961,821 

19.9.1	This represents rated and secured privately placed long term Islamic certificates (Sukuk) amounting to Rs. 2,000 
million, issued to meet working capital requirements and future expansion plans of the Company. Summit Bank 
Limited was the lead financial advisor and arranger while Meezan Bank Limited is acting as Shari’ah structuring 
advisor for the Sukuk. The facility is secured against first pari-passu charge over specific depots and retail outlets of 
the Company inclusive of 25% margin.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
				 
20	 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT 				  

   TO FINANCE LEASE					   
	

	 Present value of future minimum lease payments		  488,141 	  620,118 
	 Less: current portion	 25	  (110,538)	  (148,387)
	 Non current portion		  377,603 	  471,731 

20.1	 The Company has entered into lease agreements with various leasing companies for lease of  items of plant and 
machinery and other assets. Minimum lease payments, which are payable by the year 2022, have been discounted by 
using financing rates ranging from  6 month KIBOR plus 1.6% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.75%  (2016 : 6 month KIBOR 
plus 1.9% to 6 month KIBOR plus 3%). Title to the assets acquired under the leasing arrangements are transferable 
to the Company upon payment of entire lease obligations.			 
	

20.2	 The amount of future payments under the finance lease arrangements and the year in which these payments will 
become due are as follows:	

				   2017	 2016
					  
	 Not later than one year		  139,221 	  185,485 
	 Later than one year but not later than five years		   411,689 	  524,896 
	 Total future minimum lease payments		  550,910 	  710,381 
	 Finance charge allocated to future years		   (62,769)	  (90,263)
	 Present value of future minimum lease payments		  488,141 	  620,118 
	 Not later than one year		   (110,538)	  (148,387)
	 Later than one year but not later than five years		   377,603 	  471,731 

(Rupees in thousand)
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016
								     
21	 DEFERRED AND OTHER LIABILITIES			 

	
	 Other liabilities	  21.1 	  524,875 	  600,000 
	 Deferred taxation - net	  21.2 	  699,422 	  408,790 
	 Deferred liability - gratuity	  21.3 	  188,825 	  135,791 
				    1,413,122 	  1,144,581 

21.1	 Other liabilities			 
	

	 Payable to MENA Energy DMCC		   1,049,750 	  600,000 
	 Current portion	 25	  (524,875)	  -   
			   21.1.1 	  524,875 	  600,000 

21.1.1	This amount pertains to provision recorded against claim of MENA Energy DMCC against out of court settlement 
of an ongoing litigation dispute in the English Commercial Court, London between MENA Energy DMCC and the 
Company, based on advice and recommendation of the Solicitors and Senior Counsel representing the Company in 
the litigation. The settlement involves the Company agreeing, subject to State Bank of Pakistan’s approval, to pay 
the settlement amount over a period of 18 (eighteen) months in four equal installments of USD 2,375,000 each on 
19th May 2018, 19th July 2018, 19th January 2019 and 19th July 2019. 

			   	 2017	 2016
				 
21.2	 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET	 			 

	
	 This comprises the following:			 

	
	 Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of :				  

Accelerated depreciation		   (826,625)	  (354,233)
	 Assets under finance lease		   (160,068)	  (129,683)
	 Revaluation of operating fixed assets		   (431,061)	  (513,467)
	 Exchange gain - unrealised		   -   	  (1,797)
	 Surplus on remeasurement on available for sale investment		   (26,156)	  (89,276)
	 Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of :				  

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   146,442 	  182,677 
	 Exchange loss		   92,461 	  -   
	 Provision for:				  

	- provision investments in subsidiary		   9,181 	  9,140 
	 - other liabilities		   314,925 	  186,000 
	 - retirement benefits		   56,648	  40,718 
	 - doubtful trade debts		   2,368 	  2,358 
	 - franchise income		   18,768 	  8,168 
	 Turnover tax		  103,695 	  250,605 
				    (699,422)	  (408,790)

21.2.1	Movement in deferred tax (liability)/ assets			 
	

	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   (408,790)	  240,096 
	 Deferred tax expense			 

	- through unconsolidated profit and loss		   (362,430)	  (22,870)
	 - through unconsolidated other comprehensive loss		  71,798 	  9,805 
	 Adjusted against tax liability		   -   	  (635,821)
	 Balance at the end of the year		   (699,422)	  (408,790)

(Rupees in thousand)
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21.3	 DEFERRED LIABILITY - GRATUITY			 
	

	 The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for employees who have completed the employment period of 
5 years. Provision is created for the benefit of the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuations. Number of eligible 
employees covered in scheme are 298 (2016: 255).			 
	

	 The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme as at December 31, 2017 was carried out using the projected unit credit 
method, details of which as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

			  Note 	 2017	 2016		
		

	 Deferred liability - gratuity	 21.3.1	  188,825 	  135,791 

21.3.1	Movement in liability recognized in unconsolidated balance sheet			 
	

	 Present value of defined benefit obligation as				  
at the end of the year	 21.3.2	  188,825 	  135,791 

	 Fair value of plan assets		   -   	  -   
	 Balance sheet liability		   188,825 	  135,791 

21.3.2	Movement in liability recognized in unconsolidated balance sheet			 
	

	 Balance at the beginning of the year		  135,791 	  99,090 
	 Add: charge for the year	 21.3.4	  35,261 	  27,508 
	 Less: payments to outgoing employees		   (25,825)	  (5,003)
	 Remeasurements charged to other comprehensive income		   43,598 	  14,196 
	 Balance at the end of the year		   188,825 	  135,791 

21.3.3	Movement in present value of the defined benefit obligation			 
	

	 Opening balance		   135,791 	  99,090 
	 Current service cost		   24,131 	  17,963 
	 Past service cost		   248 	  -   
	 Interest cost		   10,882 	  9,545
	 Benefits paid during the year		   (25,825)	  (5,003)
				    145,227 	  121,595 
	 Remeasurement of actuarial losses - net of tax	 	  30,519 	  9,795 
	 Impact of deferred tax 		   13,079 	  4,401 
				    43,598 	  14,196 
	 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year		   188,825 	  135,791 

21.3.4	Expense recognized in the unconsolidated 				  
   profit and loss account					   
	

	 Current service cost	 32.1	  24,131 	  17,963 
	 Past service cost	 32.1	  248 	  -   
	 Net interest cost	 34	  10,882 	  9,545 
	 Expense recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account		   35,261 	  27,508 
									      

				 
21.3.5	Remeasurement recognized in unconsolidated 				  

	   statement of comprehensive income			 
	

	 Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit 				  
   liability - net of tax		   30,519 	  9,795 

(Rupees in thousand)
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			   	 2017	 2016

21.3.6	Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation			 
	

	 Split by vested / non - vested				  
(i) Vested benefits		   148,834 	  111,828 

	 (ii) Non-vested benefits		   39,991 	  23,963 
	 Split by benefits earned to date				  

(i) Present value of guaranteed benefits		   102,544 	  80,238 
	 (ii) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase		   86,281 	  55,553 
	
	 Expected distribution of timing of benefit payments				  

Time in years
		
	 Within first year from the end of financial year 		  17,151 	  5,688 
	 Within second years from the end of financial year 		  26,209 	  45,752 
	 Within third years from the end of financial year 		  9,718 	  12,204 
	 Within fourth years from the end of financial year 		  28,546 	  7,527 
	 Within five years from the end of financial year 		   14,080 	  16,217 
	 Within six to ten years from the end of financial year 		   218,106 	  134,179 
	
	 Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on 				  

   present value of defined benefit obligation			 
	

	 Discount rate +1%		  171,406 	  126,065 
	 Discount rate -1%		  205,229 	  174,663 
	 Expected rate of salary increase +1%	 	 205,997 	  148,232 
	 Expected rate of salary increase -1%		   170,475 	  125,391 
	
	 Maturity profile of present value of defined benefit obligation			 

	
	 Weighted average duration of the present value of defined benefit 				  

  obligation (time in years)		  8.99 	  7.89 
		
	 Key statistics			 

	
	 Average age (time in years)		  42.46 	  43.69 
	 Average service (time in years)		  5.36 	  5.56 
	 Average entry age (time in years)		   37.10 	  38.13 
	 Retirement assumption age (time in years)		   60 	  60 
		
							    

 		  SLIC 	  SLIC 
	 Mortality rates		  (2001-05)-1 	   (2001-05)-1 
	
	 The mortality rates are provided by the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLIC).		

	
21.3.7	Historical information of staff retirement benefits
							    
						     2017	 2016	 2015	 2014	 2013
						   
	 Present value of defined 						    
	    benefit obligation		   	 188,825	 135,791	 99,090	 71,057	 47,054 

21.3.8	The expected gratuity expense for the year ending December 31, 2018 works out to be Rs. 49.42 million.		
							    

(Rupees in thousand)
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21.3.9	Actuarial assumptions					   
	

	 The following significant assumptions were used in the valuation carried out at the balance sheet date using the 
projected unit credit method:		

			   	 2017	 2016		
			                              % per annum		

						   
	-   Expected long-term rate of increase in salary level  		  7.75	 7.5

	 -   Discount rate		  7.75	 7.5

			  Note 	 2017	 2 0 1 6 	
	

22	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			 
	

	 Trade creditors	 22.1	  25,112,678 	  21,658,817 
	 Advance from customers		   4,608,668 	  4,253,932 
	 Payable to cartage contractors		   3,054,943 	  2,445,673 
	 Dealers’ and customers’ security deposits	 22.2	  254,680 	  170,000 
	 Accrued liabilities		  11,220 	  6,153 
	 Other liabilities		   1,279,184 	  688,183 
				    34,321,373 	  29,222,758 

22.1	 This includes Rs.13,609 million (2016: Rs. 9,917 million) amount payable to M/s Vitol Dubai Limited (an associated 
company).						    
	

22.2	 The security deposits are non-interest bearing and are refundable on termination of contracts.

			  Note 	 2017	 2 0 1 6 	
	

23	 MARK - UP AND PROFIT ACCRUED			 
	

	 Long-term financing		  40,172 	  41,471 
	 Short-term borrowings		   71,400 	  30,383 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   2,431 	  2,729 
	 Letter of credit		   3,255	  16,602 
				   117,258 	  91,185 

24	 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 	 			 
	

	 Borrowings from conventional banks - secured				  
National Bank of Pakistan 		  1,500,000 	  500,000 

	 Bank of Punjab		  500,000 	  -   
	 Samba Bank Limited		   196,070 	  199,991 
	 Sindh Bank Limited		   132,463 	  329,562 
	 Summit Bank Limited		  44,515 	  300,076 
	 United Bank Limited		  24,560 	  - 
			  24.1	 2,397,608	 1,329,629  
	
	 Borrowings from Islamic bank - secured				  

	Meezan Bank Limited	 24.1	 3,000,000 	  2,200,000 
	
	 Borrowings from Non Banking Financial 				  

   Institutions - secured			 
	

	 Pak Oman Investment Company Limited		  100,000 	  -   
	 PAIR Investment Company Limited 		   -   	  360,000 
			  24.2	  100,000 	  360,000 
	 Commercial Paper - unsecured	 24.3	  1,447,091 	  -   
				   6,944,699 	  3,889,629

(Rupees in thousand)
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24.1	 These facilities were availed from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 7,700 million (2016: Rs. 3,800 
million). The rates of mark-up ranges from 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2016: 3 month 
KIBOR plus 1.5% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.25%). These arrangements are secured against hypothecation charge 
over the Company’s present and future current assets with minimum 25% margin, pledge of Pakistan Refinery 
Limited shares, with minimum 40% margin, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman), along 
with equitable registered mortgage charge over the property situated at The Forum, Suite No. 105-106, First Floor, 
Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.			 
	

24.2	 These loans have been obtained aggregating to Rs. 300 million (2016: Rs. 400 million). The rate of mark-up is 1 
month KIBOR plus 1.8% (2016: 3 month KIBOR plus 2%). These are secured against hypothecation charge over the 
Company’s present and future current assets.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
		
24.3	 Movement in Commercial Paper	 			 

	
	 Discounted value		  1,446,204 	  -   
	 Unwinding of discount		   887 	  -   
	 Amortized cost	 24.4	  1,447,091 	  -   

24.4	 This represents rated, privately placed, Shari’ah compliant, Commercial Paper (CP) amounting to Rs. 1,500 million 
issued to meet the working capital requirements of the Company. Bank Islami Pakistan Limited was the lead 
financial advisors and arrangers. The loan shall run for a period of one year covering two CP issues each having 
tenor of six months. The disbursement of second CP issue shall be subject to minimum two days clean-up period after 
complete adjustment of first CP issue. Instrument is unsecured, non-convertible and redeemable at maturity date in 
bullet payment.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016		
					  

25	 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT 				  
   LIABILITIES					   
	

	 Current portion of long term financing	 19	  1,007,479 	  599,079 
	 Current portion of deferred and other liabilities	 21.1	  524,875 	  -   
	 Current portion of liabilities subject to finance lease	 20	  110,538 	  148,387 
				    1,642,892 	  747,466 

26	 TAXATION			 
	

	 Sales tax payable		   609,883 	  169,112 
	 Income tax payable		   162,183 	  500,757 
				   772,066 	  669,869 

27	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS			 
	

27.1	 Contingencies				  
			

	 As per the deliberations of the main committee of the Oil Companies Advisory Committee (OCAC) held in their 
meeting number MCM-168 dated September 20, 2007, the financial costs on outstanding Price Differential Claims 
(PDCs) should be worked and billed to the Government of Pakistan (GoP) through OCAC by the Oil Marketing 
Companies (OMCs) on a regular basis. Although the Company had billed Rs. 65.97 million to the GOP/ OCAC, the 
management had not accounted for its impact in these unconsolidated financial statements as the inflow of economic 
benefits, though probable, is not virtually certain.			 
	

27.2	 Commitments				  
		

(i)	 The facility for opening letters of credit  acceptances as at December 31, 2017 amounted to Rs. 45,425 million (2016: 
Rs. 30,550 million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. 14,752 million (2016: Rs. 3,631 
million).						    
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	

(ii)	 Bank guarantees		   350,268 	  135,480 

(iii)	 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure contracted for 				  
   but not yet incurred are as follows:			 
	

	 Property, plant and equipment		   978,418 	  758,237 

(iv)	 Commitments for rental of assets under operating lease / ijarah			 

	 Not later than one year		  262,484 	  173,461 
	 Later than one year but not later than five years		   913,557 	  642,427 
	 Later than five years		   1,709,781 	  1,167,834 
				    2,885,822 	  1,983,722

28	 SALES - NET 			 
	

	 Gross sales inclusive of sales tax	 	 215,924,271 	  129,296,958 
	 Less: sales discount		   (261,969)	  (537,683)
				   215,662,302	 128,759,275

29	 OTHER REVENUE			 
	

	 Owned tank lorries		   316,408 	  46,960 
	 Franchise fee		   91,113 	  96,971 
	 Joining fee for petrol pump operators		   56,650 	  55,349 
	 Non fuel retail and lubricants		   36,289 	  8,307 
				    500,460 	  207,587 

30	 COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD			 
	

	 Opening stock of lubricants, raw and packing materials		   394,986 	  304,470 
	 Raw and packing materials purchased 		   1,080,201 	  780,242 
	 Less: closing stock of lubricants, raw and packing materials	 9	  (422,386)	  (394,986)
	 Lubricants, raw and packing materials consumed		   1,052,801 	  689,726 
	
	 Opening stock - fuel 		   16,082,682	  8,165,548 
	 Fuel purchased	 30.1	  137,104,662	  81,017,713 
	 Storage and handling charges		   586,673 	  538,393 
	 Duties and levies  	 30.2	  30,158,559	  20,256,971 
	 Less: closing stock - fuel	 9	  (18,134,720)	  (16,082,682)
				    165,797,856 	  93,895,943 
				    166,850,657 	  94,585,669 

30.1	 This includes fuel purchased from local refineries and imports. Imports comprise 79% (2016: 77%) of total purchases 
from M/s Vitol Dubai Limited (an associated company). 

			   	 2017	 2016	
				 
30.2	 Duties and levies 			 

 	
	 Petroleum development levy		   21,768,506 	  14,566,162 
	 Inland freight equalization margin		   5,548,169 	  3,624,258 
	 Freight		   2,841,884 	  2,066,551 
				    30,158,559 	  20,256,971 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	

31	 DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES 			 
	

	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 32.1	  746,313 	  443,932 
	 Depreciation	 5.9	  486,087 	  373,786 
	 Commission	 	  227,932 	  194,043 
	 Traveling and conveyance		  226,547 	  169,832
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   252,142 	  201,788 
	 Insurance		   181,726 	  113,947 
	 Repairs and maintenance	 	  152,922 	  54,658 
	 Fuel and power		   99,777 	  21,448 
	 Advertising and publicity		   98,287 	  75,237 
	 Ujrah payments		   64,251 	  10,108 
	 Utilities		   56,082 	  44,857 
	 Printing, communication and stationery		   32,814 	  9,374 
	 Royalty 		   21,144 	  17,653 
	 Legal and professional charges		   9,906 	  3,236 
	 Fees and subscription		   9,764 	  11,072 
	 Miscellaneous		   972 	  1,266 
				    2,666,666 	  1,746,237 

32	 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES			 
	

	 Salaries, allowances and other benefits	 32.1	  289,474 	  219,796 
	 Legal and professional charges		   68,007 	  68,183 
	 Traveling and conveyance		   39,952 	  34,717 
	 Fee and subscription	 32.2	  39,861 	  22,932 
	 Insurance		   31,800 	  21,711 
	 Repairs and maintenance 		   28,512 	  28,979 
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   25,462 	  8,306 
	 Depreciation	 5.9	  23,476 	  25,356 
	 Printing, communication and stationery		   21,563 	  27,012 
	 Advertising and publicity		   18,114 	  19,850 
	 Donation 	 32.3	  12,176 	  17,520 
	 Utilities		   9,860 	  10,353 
	 Auditors’ remuneration	 32.4	  3,182 	  2,746 
	 Amortization	 6	  -   	  1,522 
				    611,439 	  508,983 

32.1	 Salaries and other benefits relating to distribution and administrative expense include:

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
			
	 - Gratuity 	 21.3.4	  24,379 	  17,963 
	 - Contribution to provident fund	 	  22,212 	  15,492 

32.2	 This includes Shariah audit fee amounting to Rs. 0.7 million (2016: Rs. 0.7 million) relating to Sukuk.	
	

32.3	 Donation includes amount of Rs. 0.88 million (2016: Rs. 0.5 million) paid to Layton Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust 
(LRBT), Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed, director of the Company, who is also Chief Executive Officer of LRBT.
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	

32.4	 Auditors’ remuneration			 
	

	 Statutory audit		   1,455 	  1,265 
	 Half yearly review		   483 	  420 
	 Certifications		   600 	  500 
	 Consolidation		   265 	  230 
	 Out of pocket expenses		   379 	  331 
				    3,182 	  2,746 

33	 OTHER INCOME			 
	

	 Income from financial assets 				  
Profit on bank deposits			 
	- conventional banks		  237,434 	  143,678 

	 - Islamic banks		   41,619 	  21,355 
	 Dividend income 	 33.1	  -   	  13,407 
				    279,053 	  178,440 
	 Income from non-financial assets				  

Reversal of provison of Workers’ Welfare Fund		   97,228 	  -   
	 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets		   21,894 	  12,061 
	 Promotional marketing fee		   7,497 	  2,641 
	 Sundries 	 32.2	  7,466 	  2,228
	 Rental income		   2,818 	  6,764
	 Scrap sales		   1,525 	  1,055 
				    138,428 	  24,749 
				    417,481 	  203,189 

33.1	 This represents dividend received from investments in Pakistan Refinery Limited.		
	

33.2	 This includes interest income earned from Hascol Terminal Limited (an associated company) amounting to Rs. 2.4 
million (2016: Nil) on advance against purchase of shares.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
				 
34	 FINANCE COST			 

	
	 Short term borrowings	 	 212,192 	  128,272 
	 Letter of credit		   171,073 	  162,244 
	 Long term borrowings		   113,531 	  92,440 
	 Assets obtained under finance lease		   45,442 	  35,193 
	 Bank charges          		   29,665 	  14,469 
	 Interest cost of defined benefit obligation	 21.3.4	  10,882 	  9,545 
				    582,785 	  442,163 
35	 OTHER EXPENSES			 

	
	 Provision against MENA Energy DMCC claim 		   449,750 	  600,000 
	 Provision against franchise income	 13.2	  35,210 	  27,349 
	 Income tax penalty	 35.1	  6,135 	  -   
	 Provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund		   -   	  46,423 
				    491,095 	  673,772 

35.1	 This represents amount of penalty paid to tax authorities on account of failure to deduct withholding tax on sales 
discount as per Division VIA part III of the first schedule of Income Tax Ordinance 2001. However, historically the 
tax  authorities have reversed this penalty subseqently.			 
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			   	 2017	 2016	

36	 TAXATION    			 
	

	 Current		   764,662	  700,869 
	 Prior 		   130,359 	  28,610 
	 Deferred		   362,430 	  22,870 
				    1,257,451 	  752,349 
36.1	 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit 			 

	
	 Accounting profit before taxation		  2,658,699 	  1,967,975 
	
	 Tax at the applicable tax rate of 30% (2016: 31%)		   797,610 	  610,072 
	 Tax effect on income under final tax regime		   (64,239)	  (3,297
	 Reversal of deferred tax asset - net		   362,430 	  22,870 
	 Prior year tax		   130,359 	  28,610 
	 Other adjustments		   31,291 	  94,094
	 Tax expense for the year		   1,257,451 	  752,349 

37	 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED			 
	

	 Profit for the year		   1,401,248 	  1,215,626
 
					    Restated
				   2017	 2016
	
	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousand) 		   130,953 	  129,199 
		 Earning per share - basic (Rupees)		   10.70 	  9.41 
	
	 There is no dilutive effect on basic earning per share as the Company has no potential ordinary shares outstanding 

at year end.			 
	

38	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

		                                                                                        2017	                                                           2016
			  Chief  	  Directors  	 Executives  	  Chief  	  Directors  	  Executives	

	 	 Executive  	  		  Executive  		

	 Director’s fee 	  -   	  13,400 	  -   	  -   	  6,775 	  -   	
 	 Managerial remuneration 	  34,769 	  31,894 	  408,023 	  21,844 	  36,450 	  305,608 	
 	 Cost of living allowance  	  3,863 	  3,544 	  47,727 	  4,241 	  4,050 	  54,309 	
 	 Reimbursement of 
	    medical expenses 	  2,012 	  2,475 	  22,871 	  3,737 	  1,100 	  17,365 	
 	 Bonus  	  18,563 	  - 	  81,564 	  6,521 	  13,500 	  25,449 	
 	 Retirement benefits 	  1,910 	  26,824 	  17,884 	  1,249 	  2,085 	  12,158 	
			   61,117 	  78,137 	  578,069 	  37,592 	  63,960 	  414,889 	
	  
	 Number of persons 	  2 	  7 	  263 	  1 	  6 	 202 	

38.1	 The Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are also provided with free use of Company maintained cars and 
cellular connections. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer is provided with free security services in accordance 
with the terms of employment. 							     
	

39	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES				  
			

	 Related parties comprises of associated undertakings, directors, major shareholders, key management personnel, 
entities over which the directors are able to exercise influence, entities under common directorship and staff 
retirement fund.

	 Significant transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated  financial 
statements, are as follows:						    
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
	
	 Transactions with related parties							     

	
	 Nature of relationship 	 Nature of transaction 				  

	Other related parties	 Consultancy services		  11,400 	  18,550 
	
	 Associated companies					   

Hascol Terminals Limited 	 Business support service		   53,346 	  -   
	 Hascol Terminals Limited 	 Advance against issue of shares		   151,123 	  -   
	 Hascol Lubricants (Private) Limited 	 Advance against issue of shares		   2,013 	  -  	

VAS LNG (Private) Limited 	 Advance against issue of shares		   1,023 	  -   
	 VAS LNG (Private) Limited 	 Investments		   3,000 	  -   

40	 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 			 
	

	 Profit before taxation		   2,658,699 	  1,967,975 
	
	 Adjustment for:				  

Depreciation and amortization	 5.9	  509,563 	  400,664 
	 Provision against franchise income	 13.2	  35,210 	  27,349 
	 Provision for gratuity	 21.3.4	  35,261 	  27,508 
	 Profit on bank deposits	 33	  (279,053)	  (165,033)
	 Dividend income	 33	  -   	  (13,407)
	 (Reversal) / provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund		   (97,228)	  46,423 
	 Provision against MENA Energy DMCC claim 	 35	  449,750 	  600,000 
	 Exchange loss / (gain) - unrealised		   308,204 	  (15,572)
	 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets	 33	  (21,894)	  (12,061)
	 Finance cost	 34	 582,785 	  442,163 
	 Changes in working capital 	 40.1	 (1,792,630)	  (17,864)
				   2,388,667 	 3,288,145 

40.1	 Changes in working capital			 
	

	 Current assets                    				  
Stock-in-trade 		  (2,079,438)	 (8,007,650)

	 Trade debts		  (3,646,937)	 (3,607,686)
	 Advances		  72,048	 (102,807)
	 Deposits and prepayments 		  (9,664)	 (314,021)
	 Other receivables		  (1,016,278)	 (4,431)
				   (6,680,269)	 (12,036,595)
	 Current liabilities				  

Trade and other payables		   4,887,639  	  12,018,731 
	 Changes in working capital		  (1,792,630)	 (17,864)

41	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS				  
	

	 Cash and bank balances	 15	 9,628,057 	 7,821,070 
	 Less: term deposit receipt	 15	 (60,000)	 (60,000)
				   9,568,057 	 7,761,070 
	
	 Short-term borrowings	 24	  (6,944,699)	  (3,889,629)
	 Add: commercial paper	 24	  1,447,091 	  -   
				    (5,497,608)	  (3,889,629)
				    4,070,449	  3,871,441 
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42	 OPERATING SEGMENTS			 
	

	 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.	
	- Sales from petroleum products represents 99.2 % (2016: 99.7%) of total revenues of the Company.	
	- Out of total sales of the Company 99.1 % (2016: 99.1 %) related to customers in Pakistan.		
	- All non-current assets of the Company as at December 31, 2017 are located in Pakistan.		
	

	 The Company sells its product to dealers, government agencies, autonomous bodies, independent power projects and 
other corporate customers. Sales to ten major customers of the Company are around 41.1% during the year ended 
December 31, 2017 (2016: 28%).

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
				 
43	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 			 

	
	 Financial assets				  

Available for sale 				  
Long term investments	 7	  1,896,518 	  1,886,977 

	 At amortized cost				  
Deposits		   334,808 	  314,444 

	 Trade debts	 10	  11,518,218 	  7,871,281 
	 Advances	 11	  135,342 	  251,697 
	 Other receivables	 13	  2,161,031 	  1,144,753 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 14	  57,398 	  35,816 
	 Cash and bank balances	 15	  9,628,057 	  7,821,070 
			  	  23,834,854 	  17,439,061
	 Total financial assets		   25,731,372 	  19,326,038 
	
	 Financial liabilities				  

	At amortized cost				  
Long-term financing	 19	  3,247,642 	  2,906,828 

	 Other liabilities		   1,049,750 	  600,000 
	 Trade and other payables	 22	  34,310,153 	  29,216,605 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 23	  117,258 	  91,185 
	 Short-term borrowings	 24	  6,944,699 	  3,889,629 
	 Total financial liabilities		   45,669,502 	  36,704,247 

44	 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS			 
	

	 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction.			 
	

	 a) Fair values versus carrying amounts			 
	

	 The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the unconsolidated 
balance sheet are as follows:

			  2017		  2016
					    Carrying	 Fair	 Carrying	 Fair
					    amount	 Value	 amount	 Value
	 Financial assets				  
	
	 Long term investments		  	  1,896,518 	  1,896,518 	  1,886,977 	  1,886,977 
	 Deposits			    334,808 	  334,808 	  314,444	  314,444 
	 Trade debts		  	 11,518,218 	  11,518,218 	  7,871,281 	  7,871,281 
	 Advances			    135,342 	  135,342 	  251,697 	  251,697 
	 Other receivables		  	  2,161,031 	  2,161,031 	  1,144,753	  1,144,753 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 			    57,398 	  57,398 	  35,816 	  35,816 
	 Cash and bank balances		  	  9,628,057 	  9,628,057 	  7,821,070	  7,821,070 
					     25,731,372 	  25,731,372 	  19,326,038	  19,326,038 
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			  2017		  2016
					    Carrying	 Fair	 Carrying	 Fair
					    amount	 Value	 amount	 Value
	 Financial Liability								      

				 
	 Long-term financing		  	  3,247,642 	  3,247,642 	  2,906,828 	  2,906,828 
	 Other liabilities			    1,049,750 	  1,049,750 	  600,000 	  600,000 
	 Trade and other payables			    34,310,153 	  34,310,153 	  29,216,605 	  29,216,605 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 		  	  117,258 	  117,258 	  91,185 	  91,185 
	 Short-term borrowings			    6,944,699 	  6,944,699 	  3,889,629 	  3,889,629 
					     45,669,502 	  45,669,502 	  36,704,247	  36,704,247 
	
	 b) Valuation of financial instruments							     

	
	 The Company measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 

used in making the measurements:							     
	

	 Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.						    
					  

		 Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.						    
					  

		 Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where 
the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data.					   
	

	 Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other 
financial instruments the Company determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do not 
have a market / quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.		
	

		 Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model. Assumptions and inputs used in 
valuation techniques includes risk-free rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and 
equity index prices. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the 
price of the financial instrument at the balance sheet date that would have been determined by market participants 
acting at arm’s length.							     
	

	 Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant unobservable inputs 
and a higher degree of management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management 
judgements and estimations are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, 
determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate 
discount rates.							     
	

	 c) Financial assets 							     
				   Carrying	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total
				   value	
	 2017							     

	
	 Long term investments		   1,896,518 	  1,521,518 	  375,000 	  -   	  1,896,518 
		
	 2016							     

	
	 Long term investments		   1,886,977 	  1,886,977 	  -   	  -   	  1,886,977 
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	 d) Non-financial assets 							     
				   Carrying	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total
				   value	
	 2017	

	 Building on lease hold land								      
	- Office and depots building		   2,464,822 	  -   	  -   	  2,464,822 	  2,464,822 

	 - Pump building		   1,552,314 	  -   	  -   	  1,552,314	  1,552,314
	 Tanks and pipelines		   2,161,249 	  -   	  -   	  2,161,249	  2,161,249 
	 Dispensing pumps		   706,492 	  -   	  -   	  706,492 	  706,492 
	 Plant and machinery		   303,547 	  -   	  -   	  303,547 	  303,547 
	 Electrical, mechanical and fire								      

   fighting equipment		   1,035,584 	  -   	  -   	  1,035,584 	  1,035,584 
				    8,224,008 	  -   	  -   	  8,224,008 	  8,224,008 
	
	 2016							     

	
	 Building on lease hold land							     

	- Office and depots building		   920,389 	  -   	  -   	  920,389 	  920,389 
	 - Pump building		   1,427,167 	  -   	  -   	  1,427,167 	  1,427,167 
	 Tanks and pipelines		   865,493 	  -   	  -   	  865,493 	  865,493 
	 Dispensing pumps		   745,619 	  -   	  -   	  745,619 	  745,619 
	 Plant and machinery		   242,751 	  -   	  -   	  242,751 	  242,751 
	 Electrical, mechanical and fire								      

   fighting equipment		   535,554 	  -   	  -   	  535,554	  535,554 
				    4,736,973 	  -   	  -   	  4,736,973 	  4,736,973

45	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS				  
	

	 The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:		  Note
	
	 - Market risk						      45.1.1
		 - Credit risk and concentration of credit risk					     45.1.2
		 - Liquidity risk						      45.1.3
	
	 This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, 

policies and processes for measuring any increase in risk, and the Company’s management of capital.		
	

45.1	 Financial risk management							     
	

	 The Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management 
policies.							     
	

	 The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, 
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies 
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities. The 
Company through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and 
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 			 
	

	 The Board oversee how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies 
and procedures, and review the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the 
Company.	

45.1.1	Market risk							     
	

	 The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency risk, 
interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which result from both its operating, financing activities and investing 
activities. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an 
acceptable range. The market risk includes:						    
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(a) 	 Currency risk							     
	

	 Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange 
rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The 
Company imports petroleum product and is thus exposed to currency risk in respect to foreign creditors, which at the 
year end amount to USD 129.67 million (2016: USD 94.62 million) having PKR equivalent amount of Rs. 13,333.70 
million (2016: Rs. 9,916.65 million). The average rates applied during the year is Rs. 107.73 per USD (2016: Rs. 
104.92 per USD) and the spot rate as at December 31, 2017 is Rs. 110.50 per USD (2016: Rs. 104.80 per USD).		
	

	 The Company manages its currency risk by close monitoring of currency markets. Under regulatory requirements, the 
Company cannot hedge its currency risk exposure. Consequently, the Company recorded exchange loss amounting to 
Rs. 795.77 million (2016: exchange gain amounting to Rs. 5.83 million) during the year. 			 
	

	 Sensitivity analysis 							     
	

	 As at December 31, 2017, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against USD with all other 
variables held constant, profit for the year would have been lower/higher by Rs. 667 million (2016:  Rs. 496 
million). 	

(b) 	 Interest rate risk							     
	

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises due to long-term financing and short 
term borrowings. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company’s mark-up bearing financial 
instruments is summarized as follows:							     
	

	 Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments						    
	

	 A change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would effect on profit or loss before tax is 
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.					   
		

				                      	Profit and loss	                             Equity
	 Cash flow sensitivity of variable rate instruments		  100 bps	 100 bps	 100 bps	 100 bps
					    increase 	 decrease	 increase 	 decrease
									      
	 	(Expense) / income								      

	
	 As at December 31, 2017			    (6,048)	  6,048 	  (4,234)	  4,234 
	
	 As at December 31, 2016			    (5,654) 	  5,654	  (3,901) 	  3,901

	 (b) Interest / profit rate risk (continued)

	 		 Effective 	 	Exposed to yield/interest/profit risk		 Non-interest/profit bearing
			  yield/ interest	 Maturity	 Maturity	 Sub-	 Maturity	 Maturity	 Sub- 

2017	 /profit rate %	 up to one	 after one	 Total	 up to one	 after one	 Total	 Total		
		  (per annum)	 year	 year		  year	 year

	 Financial assets	  (a)									       
Long term investments			    -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,896,518 	  1,896,518 	  1,896,518 

	 Deposits			    -   	  -   	  -   	  3,271 	  331,537 	  334,808 	  334,808 
	 Trade debts			    -   	  -   	  -   	 11,518,218 	  -   	  11,518,218 	  11,518,218 
	 Advances			    -   	  -   	  -   	  135,342 	  -   	  135,342 	  135,342 
	 Other receivables			    -   	  -   	  -   	  2,161,031 	  -   	  2,161,031 	  2,161,031 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 			    -   	  -   	  -   	  57,398 	  -   	  57,398 	  57,398 
	 Cash and bank balances		    3.75-5.5	  8,640,350 	  60,000 	  8,700,350 	  927,707 	  -   	  927,707 	  9,628,057 
				    	 8,640,350 	  60,000 	  8,700,350 	 14,802,967 	  2,228,055 	  17,031,022 	  25,731,372 
	 Financial liabilities	 (b)										        

Long term finances 		  7.95-10.15	  1,007,479 	  2,240,163 	  3,247,642 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  3,247,642 
	 Other liabilities			    -   	  -   	  -   	  524,875 	  524,875 	  1,049,750 	  1,049,750 
	 Trade and other payables			    -   	  -   	  -   	  34,310,153 	  -   	  34,310,153 	  34,310,153 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 			    -   	  -   	  -   	  117,258 	  -   	  117,258 	  117,258 
	 Short-term borrowings		  7.39-9.12	  6,944,699 	  -   	  6,944,699 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  6,944,699 
					     7,952,178 	  2,240,163 	  10,192,341 	  34,952,286 	  524,875 	  35,477,161 	  45,669,502 
	

	 On balance sheet gap	 (a)-(b)		   688,172 	  (2,180,163)	  (1,491,991)	  (20,149,319)	  1,703,180 	  (18,446,139)	  (19,938,130)
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			  Effective 		  Exposed to yield/interest/profit risk		 Non-interest/profit bearing
			  yield/ interest  	 Maturity	 Maturity	 Sub-	 Maturity	 Maturity	 Sub- 

2016	 /profit rate % 	 up to one	 after one	 Total	 up to one	 after one	 Total	 Total		
		 (per annum)	 year	 year		  year	 year

	 Financial assets	 (a)										        
Long term investments		  -	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,886,977 	  1,886,977 	  1,886,977 

	 Deposits		  -	  -   	  -   	  -   	  25,562 	  288,882 	  314,444 	  314,444 
	 Trade debts		  -	  -   	  -   	  -   	  7,871,281 	 -	  7,871,281 	  7,871,281 
	 Advances		  -	  -   	  -   	  -   	  251,697 	  -   	  251,697 	  251,697 
	 Other receivables		  -	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,144,753 	  -   	  1,144,753 	  1,144,753 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 		  -	 -	 -	 -	  35,816 	  -   	  35,816 	  35,816 
	 Cash and bank balances		   3.75-6	   6,349,149 	  60,000 	  6,409,149 	  1,411,921 	  -   	  1,411,921 	  7,821,070 
					     6,349,149 	  60,000 	  6,409,149 	 10,741,030 	  2,175,859 	  12,916,889 	  19,326,038
	
	 Financial liabilities	 (b)										        

Long term finances 		  7.95-10.15	  599,079 	  2,307,749 	  2,906,828 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  2,906,828 
	 Other liabilities		  -	  -   	  -   	  -   	  600,000 	  -   	  600,000 	  600,000 
	 Trade and other payables		  -	  -   	  -   	  -   	  29,216,605 	  -   	  29,216,605 	  29,216,605 
	 Mark-up accrued 		  -	  -   	  -   	  -   	  91,185 	  -   	  91,185 	  91,185 
	 Short-term borrowings		  8.15-9.65	  3,889,629 	  -   	  3,889,629 	  -   	  -   	  -  	  3,889,629 
					     4,488,708 	  2,307,749 	 6,796,457 	  29,907,790 	  -   	  29,907,790 	  36,704,247 
	

	 On balance sheet gap	 (a)-(b)		   1,860,441 	  (2,247,749)	  (387,308)	  (19,166,760)	  2,175,859 	  (16,990,901)	  (17,378,209)

(c) 	 Price risk 										        
	

	 Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the 
market prices (other than those arising from interest/mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes 
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuers, or factors affecting all or similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in 
quoted equity securities amounting to Rs. 1,522 million (2016: Rs. 1,887 million) at the balance sheet date. 		
	

	 The Company manages price risk by monitoring exposure in quoted equity securities and implementing strict 
discipline in internal risk management and investment policies. 							    
	

		 The value of investment subject to equity price risk are, in almost all instance, based on quoted market price as of 
the reporting date except for unquoted investments which are carried at cost. Market prices are subject to fluctuation 
and consequently the amount realized as a result of subsequent sale of an investment may differ from the reported 
market value. Fluctuation in the market price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying 
economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investment and general market condition. 
Furthermore, the amount realized in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the 
security being sold. 										        

	 Sensitivity analysis 										        

	 The table below summarizes the Company’s equity price risk as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and shows the effects 
of a hypothetical 30% increase and a 30% decrease in market prices as at the year end. The selected hypothetical 
change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Accordingly, the sensitivity 
analysis prepared is not necessarily indication of the effect on Company’s net assets of future movement in the level 
of PSX 100 index. 

					    Hypothetical	 Estimated fair	 Hypothetical	 Hypothetical
				   Fair 	 price change	 value	 increase / 	 increase /  

			  value	  at 30% 	 hypothetical 	 (decrease) in	 (decrease) in
						     after change	 shareholders	 profit / (loss)
						     in price	 equity

				 
	 December 31, 2017		   1,521,518 	 Increase	  1,977,973 	  456,455 	  456,455 
				   	 Decrease	  1,065,063 	  (456,455)	  (456,455)
	
	 December 31, 2016		   1,886,977 	 Increase	  2,453,070 	  566,093 	  566,093 
					    Decrease	  1,320,884 	  (566,093)	  (566,093)
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45.1.2	Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 									      
	

	 The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to the historical performance with no or some defaults 
in recent history. The Company manages credit risk of receivables through the monitoring of credit exposures, 
limiting transactions with specific customers and continuous assessment of credit worthiness of its customers.		
	

	 The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under: 

			  Note 	 2017	 2016		
	

	 Long term investments	 7	  1,896,518 	  1,886,977 
		 Deposits		   334,808 	  314,444 
		 Trade debts - unsecured	 10	  7,859,974 	  5,728,745 
		 Advances	 11	  135,342 	  251,697 
		 Other receivables	 13	  2,161,031 	  1,144,753 
		 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 14	  57,398 	  35,816 
		 Bank balances	 15	  9,627,220 	  7,819,341 
				    22,072,291 	  17,181,773 
	
	 Aging analysis of trade debts:								      

				                        2017		                      2016		
					    Gross 	 Impaired	 Gross 	 Impaired
					  
		 Past due 1-30 days			    10,582,457 	  -   	  7,152,670 	  -   
		 Past due 31-90 days			    935,761 	  -   	  554,242 	  -   
		 Past due 91-180 days			    -   	  -   	  149,570 	  -   
		 Past due 181-365 days			    -   	  -   	  14,799 	  -   
		 Over 5 years			    7,973 	  7,973 	  7,973 	  7,973 
					     11,526,191 	  7,973 	  7,879,254 	  7,973 
	
	 The credit risk for bank balances are considered to be negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks and 

institutions with high quality external credit ratings. The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due 
nor impaired can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:					   
	

	 Islamic Banks			   Rating Agency 		  Short term 	 Long term 
		
	 Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited	 PACRA	 A1	 A
		 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited	 PACRA	 A1	 A+
		 Meezan Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AA
		 MCB Islamic Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1	 A

(Rupees in thousand)
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	 Conventional banks			   Rating Agency 		  Short term 	 Long term 
	
	 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China	 Moody’s	 P-1	 A2
	 Allied Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Askari Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Bank Al Falah Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Bank Al Habib Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Bank of Khyber	 PACRA	 A-1	 A
	 Bank of Punjab	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA
	 Faysal Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA
	 First Women Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A2	 A-
	 MCB Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA
	 National Bank of Pakistan 	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA
	 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Soneri Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA-
	 PAIR Investment Company Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA
	 Habib Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AAA
	 SAMBA Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1	 AA
	 Silk Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-2	 A-
	 Sindh Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AA
	 Summit Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1	 A-
	 United Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AAA
	 Pak China Investment Company Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AAA
	 Pak Oman Investment Company Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AA+

45.1.3	Liquidity risk 				  
	

	 Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors 
the Company’s liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors 
and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual 
customers. The Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:			 
	

					    Within one year		  Over one year 	 Total
	 2017					   

	
	 Long-term finances - secured	  1,007,479 	  2,240,163 	  3,247,642 
	 Other liabilities	  524,875 	  524,875 	  1,049,750 
	 Trade and other payables 	  6,944,699 	  -   	  6,944,699 
	 Mark-up accrued 	  117,258 	  -   	  117,258 
	 Short-term running finances - secured	  6,944,699 	  -   	  6,944,699
			  15,539,010 	  2,765,038 	  18,304,048 
	
	 2016				  

	
	 Long term finances	  599,079 	  2,307,749 	  2,906,828 
	 Other liabilities	  600,000 	  -   	  600,000 
	 Trade and other payables	 29,216,605 	  -   	  29,216,605 
	 Mark-up accrued 	  91,185 	  -   	  91,185 
	 Short-term borrowings	  3,889,629 	  -   	  3,889,629 
			  34,396,498 	  2,307,749 	  36,704,247 

46	 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 				  
	

	 The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors’, creditors’ and market’s confidence 
and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as going concern 
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net 
profit/(loss) after tax divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary 
shareholders subject to the availability of funds.					   
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The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to 
maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016		
				 

	 Total interest bearing debt		  10,680,482 	 7,416,575 
	 Trade and other payables	 22	  34,321,373 	  29,222,758 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 23	  117,258 	  91,185 
	 Less: cash and bank balances	 15	  (9,628,057)	  (7,821,070)
	 Excess of net cash over debt / net debt		  35,491,056 	  28,909,448 
	 Total shareholders’ equity and revaluation surplus	 	 10,266,036 	  6,105,018 
	 Net equity	 	  45,757,092 	  35,014,466 
	
	 Gearing ratio	 	 77.56%	 82.56%

47	 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND				  
	

	 The Company operates approved provident fund for its eligible employees. Details of assets and investments of the 
fund is as follows:

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
	
	 Size of fund - total assets		   99,071 	  74,543 
	 Number of members		   295 	  260 
	 Cost of investments made		   101,727 	  70,018 
	 Percentage of investments made 		  103%	 94%
	 Fair value of investments	 47.1	  100,695 	  72,406 

47.1	 The break-up of fair value of investments are as follows:

		                                                                                                          2017	                                              2016		
			  Investments	 Percentage of	 Investments	 Percentage of 

			  investment 		  investment
				   Made		  Made
	
	 Saving bank account	  67,043 	  66	  55,289 	  76
	 Regular income certificates	  17,919 	  18 	  17,117 	  24
	 Mutual fund	 15,733	 16	 -	 -
			  100,695	 100	 72,406	 100

47.2	 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of Companies 
Act, 2017 and applicable rules.				  
	

48	 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX			 
	

	 Following information has been disclosed with reference to circular no. 14 of 2016 dated April 21, 2016, issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan relating to “All Shares Islamic Index”.			 

(Rupees in thousand)
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(Rupees in thousand)
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

	 S.no	 Description	 Explanation					   
		
	 (i)	 Loans and advances	 Non-interest bearing as disclosed in Note 19 and 24.			 

(ii)	 Deposits	 Non-interest bearing as disclosed in Note 8 and 12.				 
(iii)	 Segment revenue	 Disclosed in note 42.						    

	 (iv)	 Bank balances 	 Placed under interest arrangement and Shariah permissible 		
			     arrangement as disclosed in note 15.				  
(v)	 Income on bank deposits	 Placed under interest arrangement and Shariah permissible 		
			  arrangement as disclosed in note 33.					   
(vi)	 Gain/(loss) on disposal of 										        
		    available-for-sale investments	 Not applicable during the year.					   
(vii)	 Dividend income	 Disclosed in note 33.1.						    

	 (viii)	 All sources of income	 Disclosed in note 28, 29 and 33.					   
(ix)	 Exchange gain	 Earned from actual currency.					   
(x)	 Relationship with banks having	 Following is the list of banks with which the Company has a 		
		    Islamic windows	    relationship with Islamic window of operations:				  
		

			                                                          S.no 	 Names of Islamic bank					  
					    1	 Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited;				  

				   2	 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited;	
					    3	 Meezan Bank Limited and				  
					    4	 MCB Islamic Bank Limited		

49	 CORRESPONDING FIGURES				  
	

	 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the purpose of 
comparison and to reflect the substance of the transactions. Following major reclassifications have been made during 
the year:				  
	

	 Reclassified from	 Reclassified to	 Note   	 Amount

	 Deposits and prepayments 	 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 14	  35,816 
	 Current portion of long term financing	 Current portion of non-current liabilities	 25	  599,079 
	 Current portion of liabilities subject	 Current portion of non-current liabilities
	    to finance lease		  25	  148,387 
	 Trade and other payables	 Deferred and other liabilities	 21	  600,000 
	 Taxation	 Deferred taxation - deductible temporary expenses	 21.2	  186,000 
	 Bank balances - in saving accounts	 Term deposit receipt	 15	  60,000 
	 Administrative  expenses - ujrah payments	 Distribution and marketing expenses 
			     - ujrah payments	 31	  10,108 
	 Administrative expenses - salaries,	 Finance cost - interest cost on defined 	    
	    allowances and other benefits	    benefit obligation	 34	  9,545 
	 Distribution and marketing - provision	 Other expenses - provision against franchise income				 

	   against franchise income		  35	  27,349 
	 Other income - sundries	 Other revenue - non fuel retail and lubricants	 29	  8,307 
	 Deposits and prepayments 	 Other receivables	 13	  1,144,753

				   2017	 2016
 
50	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES				  

	
	 Total number of employees as at year end		  755	 519
	 Average number of employees during the year 		  611	 457
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

51	 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE				  
	

	 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 3rd, 2018 has proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share for 
the year ended December 31, 2017 for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 
27th, 2018. These unconsolidated financial statements do not include the effect of the proposed cash dividend which 
will be accounted for in the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2018.		
	

52	 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE				  
	

	 These unconsolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue on 3rd April 2018 by the Board of Directors 
of the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 (Rupees in thousand)

	 Note 	 2017	 2016
ASSETS				  
	
Non-current assets					   
Property, plant and equipment	 6	  13,680,349 	  9,424,264 
Intangible asset	 7	  -   	  -   
Long-term investments	 8	  1,898,263 	  1,886,977 
Long-term deposits	 9	  331,537 	  289,632 
Total non-current assets		  15,910,149 	  11,600,873 

Current assets					   
Stock-in-trade	 10	  18,557,106 	  16,477,668 
Trade debts	 11	  11,518,218 	  7,871,281 
Advances	 12	  181,365 	  44,605 
Deposits and prepayments 	 13	  80,633 	  109,755 
Other receivables	 14	  2,161,031 	  1,153,880 
Mark-up and profit accrued 	 15	  57,398 	  35,816 
Cash and bank balances	 16	  9,628,513 	  7,826,147 
Total current assets		   42,184,264 	  33,519,152 
TOTAL ASSETS		   58,094,413 	  45,120,025 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES				  
	
Share capital and reserves					   
Share capital	 17	  1,448,150	  1,206,792 
Reserves	 18	  7,789,623 	  3,746,665 
Equity attributable to owners of the Holding Company		   9,237,773 	  4,953,457 
Non - controlling interest	 19	  -   	  469,714 
Total shareholders’ equity		   9,237,773 	  5,423,171 

Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets - net of tax 	 20	  1,025,789 	  1,142,880 

LIABILITIES				  
	
Non-current liabilities					   
Long-term financing	 21	  2,240,163 	  2,307,749 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 22	  377,603 	  471,731 
Deferred and other liabilities	 23	  1,413,122 	  1,144,581 
Total non-current liabilities 		  4,030,888 	  3,924,061 

Current liabilities					   
Trade and other payables	 24	  34,323,048 	  29,234,263 
Mark-up and profit accrued 	 25	  117,258 	  91,185 
Short-term borrowings	 26	  6,944,699 	  3,889,629 
Current portion of non-current liabilities	 27	  1,642,892 	  747,466 
Taxation	 28	  772,066 	  667,370 
Total current liabilities		  43,799,963 	  34,629,913 
TOTAL LIABILITIES		   47,830,851 	  38,553,974 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		   58,094,413 	  45,120,025 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 29			 

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
(Rupees in thousand)FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

	 Note 	 2017	 2016
		   

Sales - net 	 30	  215,662,302 	  128,759,275 
Less: sales tax 		   (41,923,129)	  (29,251,081)
Net sales		   173,739,173 	  99,508,194 

Other revenue	 31	  500,460 	  207,587 
Net revenue		   174,239,633 	  99,715,781 

Cost of products sold	 32	  (166,850,657)	  (94,585,669)
Gross profit 		   7,388,976 	  5,130,112 

Operating expenses 					   
Distribution and marketing	 33	  (2,666,666)	  (1,746,237)
Administrative	 34	  (683,341)	  (521,333)
		  (3,350,007)	 (2,267,570)

Other income	 35	  417,481 	  203,189 
Operating profit		   4,456,450 	  3,065,731 

Finance cost	 36	  (582,785)	  (442,163)
Other expenses	 37	  (491,095)	  (673,772)
Exchange (loss) / gain - net		   (795,773)	  5,829 
Share of Loss of associate	 8.1.2	  (1,255)	  -   
		   (1,870,908)	  (1,110,106)
Profit before taxation		  2,585,542 	  1,955,625 

Taxation	 38	  (1,257,451)	  (752,349)
Profit for the year		   1,328,091 	  1,203,276 

Profit for the year from continued operations		   1,399,831 	  1,203,276 
Loss for the year from discontinued operations		   (71,740)	  -   
		   1,328,091 	  1,203,276 
Profit / (loss) attributable to:				  
	
Owners of the Holding Company				  
- continued operations		   1,399,831 	  1,207,851 
- discontinued operations	 19.2	  (44,837)	  -   
		   1,354,994 	  1,207,851 
Non - controlling interests			 
- continued operations		   -   	  -   
- discontinued operations	 19.2	  (26,903)	  (4,575)
		   (26,903)	  (4,575)
		   1,328,091 	  1,203,276 

			   Restated
Basic and diluted earning / (loss) per share	 39			 
- continued operation (Rupees)		   10.69 	  9.31 
- discontinued operation (Rupees)		   (0.55)	  -   

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

	 Note 	 2017	 2016
		

Profit for the year		   1,328,091 	  1,203,276 

Other comprehensive loss				  
	
Items that will not be reclassified 					   
   to consolidated profit and loss account 				  
	
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit 
    obligation - net of tax	 23.3.5	  (30,519)	  (9,795)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently 					   
   to consolidated profit and loss account 				  
	
Unrealized loss on remeasurement of available-for-sale 					   
   investments - net of tax		   (302,341)	  (59,791)
		  (332,860)	  (69,586)
Total comprehensive income		   995,231 	  1,133,690 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to:				  
	
Equity holders of the Holding Company		   1,022,134 	  1,138,265 
Non - controlling interests	 19.2	  (26,903)	  (4,575)
		   995,231 	  1,133,690 

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in thousand)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 (Rupees in thousand)

 	 Capital 	 Revenue 
	 reserves	 reserve	  
	 Share	 Share 	 Suplus on re-	 Unappr-	 Sub	 Non 	 Total
	 Capital	 premium	 measurement	 -opriated	 Total 	 controlling	 shareholders’
			   of available for	 profit		  interest	 equity
			   sale investment
			   to fair value	
	
Balance as at January 01, 2016	 1,206,792 	  1,070,828 	  684,721 	  1,565,856 	  4,528,197 	  -   	  4,528,197 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year									       
Profit / (loss) for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,207,851 	  1,207,851 	  (4,575)	  1,203,276 

Other comprehensive income / (loss)									       
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit									       
   obligation - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (9,795)	  (9,795)	  -  	  (9,795)
Unrealized loss due to change in fair value of long-term 									       
   investments - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  (59,791)	  -   	  (59,791)	  -   	  (59,791)

Total comprehensive income / (loss)	  -   	  -   	  (59,791)	  1,198,056 	  1,138,265 	  (4,575)	  1,133,690 

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed									       
   assets on account of  incremental depreciation - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  -   	  131,749 	  131,749 	  -  	  131,749 
	  -   	  -   	  (59,791)	  1,329,805 	  1,270,014 	  (4,575)	  1,265,439 

Transactions with owners recognized directly in equity									       
Final dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - December 2015	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (422,377)	  (422,377)	  -   	  (422,377)
Interim dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - June 2016	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (422,377)	  (422,377)	  -   	  (422,377)
Consideration of acquisition of subsidiary	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  474,289 	  474,289 
Total transactions with owners recognized directly in equity	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (844,754)	  (844,754)	  474,289 	  (370,465)

Balance as at December 31, 2016	  1,206,792 	  1,070,828 	  624,930 	  2,050,907 	  4,953,457 	  469,714 	  5,423,171 

Balance as at January 01, 2017	  1,206,792 	  1,070,828 	  624,930 	  2,050,907 	  4,953,457	  469,714 	  5,423,171 

Total comprehensive income for the year									       
Profit / (loss) for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,354,994 	  1,354,994 	  (26,903)	  1,328,091 
Other comprehensive loss									       
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit									       
   obligation - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (30,519)	  (30,519)	  -   	  (30,519)
Unrealized loss due to change in fair value of long-term 									       
   investments - net of tax	  -   	  -   	 (302,341)	  -   	  (302,341)	  -   	  (302,341)
Total comprehensive income	  -   	  -   	 (302,341)	  1,324,475 	  1,022,134 	  (26,903)	  995,231 

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed  									       
   assets on account of  incremental depreciation - net of tax	  -   	  -   	  -   	  117,091 	  117,091 	  -   	  117,091 
	  -   	  -   	 (302,341)	  1,441,566 	  1,139,225 	  (26,903)	  1,112,322 

Transactions with owners 									       
Right issue 20% @ Rs. 165/- per share - September 2017	  241,358 	  3,741,055 	  -   	  -  	  3,982,413 	  -   	  3,982,413 
Issuance cost 	  -   	  (45,029)	  -   	  -   	  (45,029)	  -   	  (45,029)
	  241,358 	  3,696,026 	  -   	  -   	  3,937,384 	  -   	  3,937,384 

Final dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - December 2016	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (422,377)	  (422,377)	  -   	  (422,377)
Interim dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - June 2017	  -   	  -   	  -   	 (422,377)	  (422,377)	  -   	  (422,377)
Changes in ownership structure in subsidiaries	  -   	  -   	  -     	  52,461    	  52,461    	 -  	  52,461 
Disposal of non-controlling interest	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -      	  -     	(442,811) 	  (442,811)
	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (792,293)  	  (792,293)  	  (442,811)  	 (1,235,104)

Total transactions with owners	  241,358 	  3,696,026 	  -   	 (792,293)	 3,145,091 	  (442,811)	  2,702,280 

Balance as at December 31, 2017	  1,448,150 	  4,766,854 	  322,589 	  2,700,180 	  9,237,773 	  -   	  9,237,773 

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

	 Note 	 2017	 2016
		

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				  
	
Cash generated from operations	 43	  2,388,667 	  3,485,768 
Finance cost paid		   (555,825)	  (405,739)
Profit received on bank deposits		   257,471 	  129,217 
Taxes paid		   (788,425)	  (604,486)
Gratuity paid	 23.3.2	  (25,825)	  (5,003)
Net cash generated from operating activities		   1,276,063 	  2,599,757 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES				  
	
Capital expenditure incurred	 6.4	  (5,693,170)	  (3,599,189)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		   214,099 	  65,711 
Dividend received		   -   	  13,407 
Discontinued operations of subsidiary		   (4,621)	  -   
Long-term investment made during the year		   (303,000)	  -   
Long-term deposits paid		   (42,655)	  (61,731)
Net cash used in investing activities		   (5,829,347)	  (3,581,802)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES				  
	
Lease liability (repaid) / obtained - net		   (131,977)	  194,591 
Contribution of non-controlling interest in subsidiary company		   -   	  474,289 
Proceeds from issue of shares - net of transaction cost		  3,937,384 	  -   
Dividend paid		  (844,754)	  (844,754)
Proceeds from issue of commercial paper	 26.3	  1,446,204 	  -   
Long-term finance obtained - net		   340,814 	  2,435,489 
Net cash generated from financing activities		   4,747,671 	  2,259,615 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		   194,387 	  1,277,570 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year		   3,876,518 	  2,598,948 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year	 44	  4,070,905 	  3,876,518 

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in thousand)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

1	 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS					   

1.1	 The Group consists of:					   

	 Name of the Company	 Status in the Group 	 Percentage of holding 	
	 Hascol Petroleum Limited 	 Holding Company	 -	
	 Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited 	 Subsidiary Company	 100%	

-	 Hascol Petroleum Limited					   
			

	 Hascol Petroleum Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited Company on 
March 28, 2001. On September 12, 2007 the Holding Company was converted into a public unlisted Company and on 
May 12, 2014 the Holding Company got listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Holding 
Company is situated at Suite No. 105-106, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.		

	 The Holding Company is engaged in the business of procurement, storage and marketing of petroleum and related 
products, for which the Holding Company obtained oil marketing license from Ministry of Petroleum and Natural 
Resources in the year 2005.					   

-	 Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited					   
			

	 Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) was incorporated on December 27, 2001 as a private 
limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the Subsidiary Company is situated at 
Suite No. 105-106, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi. Principal activity of the Subsidiary Company was 
marketing and selling imported and locally produced automobile and industrial lubricants. The company is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Hascol Petroleum Limited. 					   

1.2	 The Subsidiary Company has ceased to be as a going concern and therefore the financial statements of the Subsidiary 
Company have not been prepared on a going concern basis.					   

2	 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION					   

	 The consolidated financial statements includes the financial statement of Holding Company and its subsidiary, 
comprising together ‘the Group’. Control is achieved when the Holding Company:				  

	 - has a power over the investee;				  
	- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and			   - 
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.					   

	 The Holding Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee, if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of controls listed above.				  

	 Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when 
the Holding Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed-off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
from the date the Holding Company gains control until the date when the Holding Company ceases to control the 
subsidiary. These consolidated financial statements include Hascol Petroleum Limited and all companies in which it 
directly or indirectly controls beneficially owns or holds more than 50% of the voting securities or otherwise as power to 
elect and appoint more than 50% of its directors (the Subsidiary).  				     	

	 Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Holding Company 
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the 
Holding Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a 
deficit balance.	

	
	 When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into 

line with the Group’s accounting policies.					   
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	 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the 
carrying value of the investment held by the Holding Company has been eliminated against corresponding Holding 
in subsidiaries’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements. All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the 
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as 
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

	
2.1	 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries	 			 

				 
	 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the 

subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference 
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or 
received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Holding Company.			

2.2	 Loss of control					   
			

	 When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as the 
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained 
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and 
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that 
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed off the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary 
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). 
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the 
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition 
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.					   

2.3	 Non-controlling interests					   
			

	 Non-controlling interests are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at 
the date of acquisition.					   
	

	 The Group treats transaction with non-controlling interest as that do not results in loss of control as an equity transaction 
with owner of the Group. The difference between the fair value of consideration paid and relevant share acquired of the 
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded  in equity. Gain and loss on disposal to non-controlling interest 
is recorded directly in equity.   					   

2.4	 Discontinued operation					   

	 A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly 
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

	 - represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations;
	 - is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations; or
	 - is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.					   

	 Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to 
be classified as held-for-sale.

2.5	 Goodwill
	
	 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 

interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree (if any) 
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after 
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds 
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value 
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss 
as a bargain purchase gain.

	 Goodwill arising on an acquisition of  a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the 
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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	 For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of 
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

	 A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when 
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than 
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to 
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any 
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not 
reversed in subsequent periods.

	 On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination 
of the profit or loss on disposal.

	
3	 BASIS OF PREPARATION					   

3.1	 Statement of compliance					   

	 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) on May 30, 2017. 
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Circular No. 17 of 2017 has communicated its decision 
that the companies whose financial year closes on or before June 30, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in 
accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. In continuation to the above mentioned 
circular, SECP in view of the difficulties faced by the companies to comply with the provisions of the Act, has advised 
vide Circular No. 23 of 2017 that the companies whose financial year closes on or before December 31, 2017 shall prepare 
their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. Furthermore, 
the  Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has obtained clarification from the SECP in this regard, as 
per which the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 covers 
interim financial statements of the companies for the period ending on or before December 31, 2017.  			 
		

	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Approved Accounting Standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. Approved Accounting Standards comprise of such  International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards 
(IFAS) issued by ICAP as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Wherever the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued 
there under differ with the requirements of IFRS and IFAS, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and 
said directives shall prevail.					   

3.2	 Accounting convention					   

	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, 
which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date.				  

	
	 Items	 Measurement basis		
	 Available for sale investment	 Fair value		
	 Net defined benefit liability	 Present value of the defined benefit obligation
	 Property, plant and equipment	 Revalued amounts		
	 Monetary Liabilities	 Spot exchange rate		

	 In these consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows, all the transactions have 
been accounted for on an accrual basis.					   

3.3	 Functional and presentation currency 					   

	 These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is also the Group’s functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.			 
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3.4	 Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards 			 
	

3.4.1	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Group 
and adopted in the current year					   

	 The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs 
which became effective during the current year. 					   

	 Amendments		  Effective Date	
	 IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)		  January 1, 2017	
	 IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized 					   

   Losses (Amendments to IAS 12)		  January 1, 2017	
	 IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016		  January 1, 2017	
	
	 Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the 

amounts for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.					   

3.4.2	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet 
effective and not early adopted by the Group					   

	 The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the 
dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.				  

	 Standards and amendments	 Effective date 
			  (Annual periods
			  beginning on or after)
	 IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between
	    an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
	    (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)	 Postponed
	 IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based
	    Payment Transaction (Amendments to IFRS 2)	 January 1, 2018
	 IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016	 January 1, 2018
	 IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)	 January 1, 2018
	 IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers	 July 1, 2018
	 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments	 July 1, 2018
	 IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
	   (Amendments to IAS 28)	 January 1, 2019
	 IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
	    (Amendments to IFRS 9)	 January 1, 2019
	 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle	 January 1, 2019
	
	 Interpretation				  

	
	 IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration	 January 1, 2018
	 IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments	 January 1, 2019
	
	 The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations to the published 

standards on the consolidated financial statements.					   

3.4.3	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the 
SECP		

	
	 Following new standards have been issued by the IASB which are yet to be notified by SECP for the purpose of 

applicability in Pakistan. 					   

	 Standards	 IASB effective date
			  (Annual periods
			  beginning on or after)
	 IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts	 January 1, 2016	
	 IFRS 16 - Leases	 January 1, 2019		

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts	 January 1, 2021		
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4	 CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, ESTIMATES AND MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINITY				 

	 The preparation of consolidated financial statements are in conformity with approved accounting standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the 
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.			 

	 The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.					   

	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.				  

	 Accounting policies in respect of judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting 
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements, estimates and 
assumptions with significant risk of material adjustments in the future period are included in the following notes:		
						   
				   Note

	 a)	 Depreciation method, rates and useful life of operating fixed assets			  5.1
	 b)	 Revaluation of operating fixed assets			   5.1.2
	 c)	 Amortization method, rates and useful life of intangible assets			   5.2
	 d)	 Estimate of fair value of investments available for sale			   5.3
	 e)	 Impairment of financial assets			   5.3
	 f)	 Net realizable value of stock-in-trade			   5.14
	 g) 	 Recoverable amount and impairment of non-financial assets			   5.15
	 h)	 Provisions and contingencies			   5.18
	 i) 	 Provision for taxation			   5.22
	 j) 	 Present value of defined benefit obligation			   5.24
	
	 Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 

expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.			 

5	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES					   

	 The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.			 

5.1	 Property, plant and equipment 					   

5.1.1	 Initial recognition					   

	 (a) Operating fixed assets					   

	 An item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognized at cost.				  

	 Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Operating fixed assets under 
construction are disclosed as capital work in progress (CWIP). The cost of self constructed asset includes the cost of 
materials, fixed labour and any other cost directly attributable to bring the asset into service for its intended use, 
including where applicable, the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are 
located, and borrowing costs on qualifying assets.					   
		

	 The assets which are available for intended use are capitalized as operating fixed assets. While assets under construction 
are capitalized to CWIP.					   

	 The Group accounts for operating fixed assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related 
liabilities. These amounts are determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of lower of fair value of the leased 
assets and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are allocated to the accounting period in a 
manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability.				  
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	 (b) Capital work-in-progress 				    	

	 CWIP is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure in connection with specific assets 
incurred during construction/installation period are carried to CWIP. These expenditures are transferred to operating 
fixed assets as and when these are available for intended use. 					   

5.1.2	 Measurement subsequent to initial recognition					   

	 (a) Carried using revaluation model					   

	 Following operating assets both owned and leased are subsequently measured under revaluation model (i.e. fair value 
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent accumulated impairment 
losses).					   

	 - Building on lease hold land;				  
	- Tanks and pipelines;				  
	- Dispensing pumps;				  
	- Plant and machinery; and				  
	- Electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipment.					   

	 Fair value is determined by external professional valuers with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does 
not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet date.			 

	 (b) Carried using cost model					   

	 Fixed assets other than those mentioned above are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.					   

	 Depreciation				    	

	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to consolidated profit and loss account by applying the straight-line 
method whereby the cost/revalued amount of operating fixed assets is charged-off over its remaining useful life. Same 
basis and estimates for depreciation are applied to owned assets and assets acquired under finance lease.		

	 Depreciation is charged on straight line method from the month in which an asset is available for intended use, while 
no depreciation is charged from the month in which the asset is disposed-off. Depreciation is provided at the rates as 
disclosed in note 6.1.					   

	 Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting year and adjusted, if applicable. 
CWIP is not depreciated. 					   

	 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major 
renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.			 

	 Gain and loss on disposal of operating fixed assets is included in the consolidated profit and loss account in the year of 
disposal.					   

	 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets					   

	 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets” shown below 
equity in the consolidated balance sheet. Accordingly, the Group has adopted the following accounting treatment of 
depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the requirement of SECP SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:	

	 -	 depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on 
revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the consolidated profit and loss account; and			 
		

	 -	 an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on 
revaluation of fixed assets account” to unappropriated profits through consolidated statement of changes in equity to 
record realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.			 
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	 Borrowing cost					   

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and production of qualifying assets, which are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost 
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.			 

5.2	 Intangible assets - computer software					   

	 These are recorded initially at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.					   

	 Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method.		
			

	 Amortization on addition and deletion of intangible assets is charged in proportion to the period of use. The useful life 
and amortization method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the balance sheet date. Intangible assets having 
indefinite useful life are not amortized and stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.			 

5.3	 Financial instruments					   

	 Recognition and initial measurement					   

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instruments.					   

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of financial assets 
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.					   

	 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.					   
		

	 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets					   

	 For the purpose of classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets, other than those designated and 
effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:			 

	 • loans and receivables; and					   
• available for sale.				    	

	 Loans and receivables					   

	 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The loan and 
receivables include trade debts, advances, deposits, markup or profit accrued, other receivables and cash and bank 
balances.					   

	 Available for sale					   

	 Available for sale (AFS) financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as 
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.	

	
	 Listed equity securities held by the Group that are traded in an active market are classified as AFS and are stated at 

fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Group also have investments in unlisted shares that are not traded in 
an active market but that are also classified as AFS financial assets and stated at fair value at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to changes in market rate of the 
equity securities and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognized in consolidated profit or loss account. Other 
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognized in consolidated other comprehensive income 
and accumulated under the heading of fair value reserve. When the investment is disposed-off or is determined to be 
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in consolidated comprehensive income is reclassified to 
consolidated profit and loss account.					   
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	 Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in consolidated profit and loss account when the Group’s right to 
receive the dividends is established.					   

	 AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be 
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments 
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.		

	
	 Impairment of financial assets					   

	 Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are 
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after 
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected. 

	 For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered 
to be objective evidence of impairment.					   

	 For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:				  

	 •  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or					   
•  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or			

	 •  it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or			 
•  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.			 

	 For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a collective 
basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment  for a portfolio of 
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in  the number of delayed 
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic 
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.					   

	 For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate.					   

	 For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market 
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.		

	 The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the 
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When 
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written-off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries 
of amounts previously written-off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the 
allowance account are recognized in consolidated profit and loss account.				  
		

	 When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.					   

	 For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases 
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously 
recognized impairment loss is reversed through consolidated profit and loss account to the extent that the carrying 
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have 
been had the impairment not been recognized.					   

	 In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized in consolidated profit and loss account are 
not reversed through consolidated profit and loss account. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss 
is recognized in other comprehensive income. In respect of AFS debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently 
reversed through consolidated profit and loss account if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.				  
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	 Derecognition of financial assets					   

	 The Group derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or 
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 
to control the transferred assets, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for 
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for 
the proceeds received.					   

	 On derecognition of a financial assets in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum 
of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in consolidated 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in consolidated profit and loss account.		

	 On derecognition of financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to re-purchase 
part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it 
continue to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair 
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that 
is no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative 
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized in consolidated other comprehensive income is allocated between 
the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values 
of those parts.					   
	

	 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities				  
	

	 Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The effective 
interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense 
over the relevant period. All interest-related charges, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are 
reported in consolidated profit and loss account are included within finance costs.				  

	 Derecognition of financial liabilities					   

	 The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration 
paid and payable is recognized in consolidated profit and loss account.					   
			

5.4	 Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities					   

	 Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if the Group 
has a legally enforceable right to off-set the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.					   

5.5	 Classification as debt or equity					   

	 Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance 
with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definition of a financial liability and equity instrument.	

5.6	 Equity instrument					   

	 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all 
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds received. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary share are recognized as deduction from equity.		 	

5.7	 Share premium reserves					   

	 Share premium is recorded on issue of shares in accordance with the requirements of  section 83 of the Companies Act, 
2017 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996 amendment pursuant of S.R.O 34 (I)/2016 dated 19th 
January 2016. The premium is available for use as per section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017. 			 
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5.8	 Dividend distribution					   

	 Final dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet 
in the period in which the dividends are approved, while interim dividend distributions are recognized in the period 
in which the dividends are declared by the Board of Directors. However, if these are approved after the reporting 
period but before the consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to the 
consolidated financial statements.					   

5.9	 Earnings per share					   

	 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

5.10	 Investment in associate					   

	 An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest 
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the 
investee but also neither has control nor joint control over those policies.				  

	 When necessary the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance 
with IAS-36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and 
fair value less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying 
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS-36 to the extent 
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.				 

	 When the Group transacts with an associate gain and loss resulting from the transactions with the associate is 
recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not 
related to the Group.					   

5.11	 Trade and other payables					   

	 Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the 
effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency 
are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.			   	

5.12	 Trade debts and other receivables					   

	 Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates fair value, and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision 
for impairment of trade debts and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group 
will not be able to collect all the amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtors, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default or delinquency in payments are 
considered indicators that the trade debt is impaired. The amount of provision is charged to consolidated profit and loss 
account. Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off. 			 

	 Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign currency are 
added to the carrying amount of the respective receivables.					   

5.13	 Advance and deposits					   

	 These are stated at cost less provision for doubtful balances, if any. Deposits represent security deposits from dealers 
by virtue of agreement and are interest free. These are repayable on cancellation on dealership contract with dealers. 	
				 

5.14	 Stock-in-trade					   

	 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 					   

	 Cost is determined as follows:				  
	- Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.		
	- The cost of stock in trade is determined on moving weighted average basis.				  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
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	 Provision is made for obsolete/slow moving stocks where necessary and recognized in the consolidated profit and loss 
account. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
costs necessary in order to make the sale.				    	

5.15	 Impairment of non financial assets					   

	 The carrying amounts of non financial assets, are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment 
loss is recognized, as an expense in the consolidated profit and loss account, for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell 
and value in use.					   

	 Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash 
generating units). 					   

	 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized.			 

5.16	 Term deposit receipts (TDRs)					   

	 These represent placement in TDRs with financial institution having tenure of one year.				  

5.17	 Cash and cash equivalents					   

	 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of the consolidated 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposit, bank balances, short term 
borrowings and other items of current assets and current liabilities which qualify as cash equivalents.			 

5.18	 Provisions and contingent liabilities					   

	 Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can 
be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.		

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group, 
or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot 
be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognized as liability in the 
consolidated balance sheet. 					   

5.19	 Commitments					   

	 Commitments are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements at committed amount.			

5.20	 Leases					   

	 Finance leases 					   

	 Leases in terms of which the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Assets obtained under finance lease are accounted for in accordance with policy stated in note 5.1.			 

	 The related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term depending upon the timing of 
the payment.					   

	 Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance 
outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged to consolidated profit and loss account over the lease term.	
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	 Operating leases 					   

	 Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which 
they are incurred. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to 
the consolidated profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of lease. In the event lease incentives are 
received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives 
is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis except where another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit from the leased assets are consumed.			 
		

	 Ijarah					   

	 Leased assets which are obtained under Ijarah agreement are not recognized in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet 
and are treated as operating lease based on IFAS 2 issued by the ICAP and notified by SECP vide S.R.O. 43(1) / 2007 
dated 22 May 2007. Ujrah payments  made under an Ijarah are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account on 
a straight line basis over the Ijarah term unless another systematic basis is representative of time pattern of the user’s 
benefit even if the payment are not on that basis.					   

5.21	 Foreign currency translations					   

	 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani 
Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to the consolidated 
profit and loss account. At the end of each reporting period, monetary amount denominated in foreign currencies are 
re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date.					   

	 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.			 

5.22	 Taxation					   

	 Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is recognized in the consolidated profit and loss 
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized outside consolidated profit and loss account (whether in 
consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in equity), if any, in which case the tax amounts are recognized 
outside consolidated profit and loss account.					   

	 - Current					   

	 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior years.			 

	 - Deferred					   

	 Deferred tax is provided for using the consolidated balance sheet method providing the temporary differences between 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. 
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognized only 
to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be utilized. 			 
		

	 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on 
the tax rates that have been enacted. The Group takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by 
the taxation authorities.					   

	 Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or 
charged to equity or statement of other comprehensive income, in which case it is included in equity or statement of 
other comprehensive income as the case may be.					   
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5.23	 Revenue recognition					   

	 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue 
can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable on the following 
basis:					   

	 Operating revenue 					   

	 - 	Sales are recorded when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers which 
coincides with dispatch of goods to customers.				  

	 - 	Non-fuel retail income and other revenue (including license fee) is recognized on an accrual basis.		
	 - 	Handling, storage and other services income is recognized when the services have been rendered.			 

		
	 Other income					   

	 - 	Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established.	
	 - 	Return on bank deposits is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the 

amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a timely basis by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.			 

	 - 	Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial 
direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amounts of the leased 
assets and recognized on a straight line basis over the leased term.

			 
5.24	 Retirement and other service benefits					   

	 Unfunded gratuity scheme					   

	 The Group operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees who  have 
completed the qualifying period under the scheme. The scheme is administered by the trustees and contribution therein 
are made in accordance with actuarial recommendations.					   

	 The valuation in this regard is carried using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being carried 
out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises of 
actuarial gain and losses are recognized in the comprehensive income based on actuarial gain and losses.			 

	 The Group determine the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the year by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual year to the 
net defined benefit liability / (asset), taking into account and change in the net defined benefit liability / (asset) during 
the year as result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense, current service cost and past service cost 
related to defined benefit plans are recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account.			 

	
	 Contributory provident fund					   

	 The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees. The contribution to the 
fund is made by the Group as well as the employees at the rate of 5.72% of the basic salary. 		  	

5.25	 Operating segments				    	

	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as management that makes strategic decisions. The 
management has determined that the Group has a single reportable segment as the Board of Directors view the Group’s 
operations as one reportable segment.					   

5.26	 Related party transactions					   

	 All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Group at arm’s length price using the comparable uncontrolled 
valuation method. 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016
6.2	 Capital work-in-progress				  

	
	 Office building		   1,505,203 	  1,601,993 
	 Tanks and pipelines		   697,086 	  651,247 
	 Pump building		   435,325 	  250,137 
	 Electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipment		   304,894 	  475,424 
	 Tank lorries		   260,357 	  -   
	 Advances to contractors		   232,592 	  203,263 
	 Dispensing pumps		   160,087 	  96,357 
	 Furniture, office equipment and other assets		   155,567 	  108,948 
	 Plant and machinery		   25,697 	  22,319 
	 Borrowing cost capitalized	 6.3	  22,035 	  123,214 
	 Computer auxiliaries		   12,479 	  7,045 
	 Other ancillary cost		   -   	  4,587 
	 Advance to Port Qasim Authority		   -   	  44,187 
	 Lease-hold improvements		   -   	  1,066 
			  6.4	  3,811,322 	  3,589,787 

6.3	 During the year additions amounting to Rs. 5,693.17 million (2016: 3,599.19 million) have been made in capital work-
in-progress. This also includes borrowing cost capitalized during the year at  rates ranging from 7.45% - 9.15%  (2016: 
7.36% - 9.59%).	

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
				 
6.4	 This include amount related to discontinued operations which are as follows;			 

	
	 Opening balance		   115,376 	  -   
	
	 Additions during the year		   2,073,221 	  115,376 
	 Transferred to operating assets		   (11,103)	  -  
				    2,062,118 	  115,376 
		
	 Assets of subsidiary disposed off		   (2,177,494)	  -   
	 Closing balance		   -  	  115,376 

6.5	 Due to large number of dealers, it is impracticable to disclose the name of each person having possession of operating 
fixed assets, as required under Paragraph 5 of Part I of the 4th Schedule to the Companies Ordinance, 1984.	
	

	 Operating fixed assets held by dealers of retail outlets of the Holding Company are tanks and pipelines, dispensing 
pumps, plant and machinery, electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipments. These  assets are not in possession 
of the Holding Company as these have been provided to dealers of retail outlets to facilitate them to promote and sell 
the Holding Company’s products.				  
	

6.6	 Change in accounting estimates				  
	

	 In accordance with its policy, the Holding Company reviews the estimated useful lives of its operating fixed assets on 
an ongoing basis. This review indicated that the actual lives of tank lorries were more than the estimated useful lives 
used for depreciation purposes in the Holding Company’s consolidated financial statements. As a result, effective 
January 01, 2017, the Holding Company changed its estimates of the useful lives of its tank lorries to better reflect 
the estimated periods during which these assets will remain in service. Due to change in estimated useful lives the 
depreciation rate has been revised from 20% to 10%.				  
	

	 Effect of the change in estimate on depreciation expense and profit for the year is shown below:

			  Based at	 Based at	 (Decreased)
			  previous rate	 current rate	 /increased by
		
	 Change in depreciation expense	 83,752 	  41,876 	  (41,876)
	 Change in profit for the year			    41,876

(Rupees in thousand)
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6.7	 In 2012, the Holding Company carried out revaluation of petrol pumps through an independent valuer. Revalued 
amount of assets was Rs. 1,172 million, resulting in surplus (net of deferred tax) amount to Rs. 387 million. Further, 
during 2015 the Holding Company carried out revaluation of depots and petrol pumps through an independent 
valuer. Revalued amount of assets was Rs. 4,154 million, resulting in surplus (net of deferred tax) amounting to Rs. 
1,006 million.				  
	

6.8	 Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of the following assets in the consolidated balance sheet 
would have been as follows:				  

			  Cost	 Accumulated 	 Written down value	
				   depreciation	 2017	 2016	
	 Owned Assets					   
	 Building on lease hold land:					   

	- Pump building 	  880,921 	  197,677 	  683,244 	  727,290 
	 - Dispensing units	  61,613 	  15,275 	  46,338 	  50,448 
	 Plant and machinery 	  19,767 	  5,345 	  14,422 	  15,410 
	 Tanks and pipelines 	  312,423 	  50,019 	  262,404 	  278,025 
	 Electrical mechanical and 						    

   fire fighting equipment	  224,202 	  67,699 	  156,503 	  178,923 
	
	 Leased Assets				  
	 Pump building 	  166,399 	  83,331 	  83,068 	  91,388 
	 Dispensing units	  137,419 	  87,400 	  50,019 	  59,185 
	 Plant and machinery 	  66,850 	  32,637 	  34,213 	  37,556 
	 Tanks and pipelines 	  90,260 	  48,011 	  42,249 	  46,762 
	 Electrical mechanical and 						    

   fire fighting equipment	 14,351 	  6,634 	  7,717 	  9,152 
			   1,974,205 	  594,028 	  1,380,177 	  1,494,139 

6.9	 The level of hierarchy for the fair value disclosed fall in level 3 i.e., inputs other than quoted prices included within 
level 3 that are unobservable either directly or indirectly.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
					  
6.10	 The depreciation charged for the year has 					   

   been allocated as follows:				  
	

	 Distribution and marketing expenses	 33	  486,087 	  373,786 
	 Administrative expenses	 34	  24,924 	  25,356 
				    511,011 	  399,142

6.11	 During the year written down value of operating fixed assets that have been disposed-off amount to Rs.192.2 million  
(2016: Rs. 53.65 million). Details of operating fixed assets disposed-off with WDV above Rs. 50,000 are given below:

				   Accumulated	 Net book	 Sale	 Gain /	 Particulars of	 Mode of
	 Type	 Cost	 depreciation	 value	 proceeds	 (loss)	 buyers	 disposal

	 Motor cars			 
			 
			   25,205 	  1,721 	  23,484 	  23,000 	  (484)	 Mumtaz Hasan Khan - Chairman	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    22,238 	  -   	  22,238 	  22,384 	  146 	 Mumtaz Hasan Khan - Chairman	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    19,281 	  1,380 	  17,901 	  15,750 	  (2,151)	 Mumtaz Hasan Khan - Chairman	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    814 	  -   	  814 	  964 	  150 	 Mumtaz Hasan Khan - Chairman	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    102 	  5 	  97 	  402 	  305 	 Sheraz Ahmed - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    102 	  5 	  97 	  402 	  305 	 Muhammad Umer - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    102 	  5 	  97 	  402 	  305 	 Nousheen Nabeel - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    99 	 8 	  91 	  394 	  303 	 Ali Raza - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    99 	 8 	  91 	  394 	  303 	 Tillah Khan - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    99 	  8 	  91 	  394 	  303 	 Shumail - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    99 	  8 	  91 	  394 	 303 	 Farooq Memon - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    99 	  10 	  89 	  710 	  621 	 Fawaz Fasih - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    99 	  11 	  88 	  394 	  306 	 Zubair Ahmed Khan - Employee	 As per the Holding Company’s policy
			    68,438	 3,169 	 65,269 	 65,984 	  715

(Rupees in thousand)
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				   Accumulated	 Net book	 Sale		  Particulars of	 Mode of
	 Type	 Cost	 depreciation	 value	 proceeds	 Gain	 buyers	 disposal

	 Tank Lorries					   
	
			   10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	 10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,212 	  1,637 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,312 	  1,737 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	  10,575 	  12,312 	  1,737 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    10,575 	  -   	 10,575 	  12,312 	  1,737 	 Meezan Bank Limited		 Sale and operating leaseback
			    126,900 	  -   	 126,900 	 146,844 	  19,944 				 
	
		  2017	 195,338 	  3,169 	  192,169 	  212,828 	  20,659 				 
		
		  2016	  57,073 	 3,433 	  53,640 	  64,362 	 10,722

			  Note 	 2017	 2016

7	 INTANGIBLE ASSET									       

	 Computer		   -   	  -   
	
	 Net book value at beginning of the year		   -   	  1,522 
	 Amortization charge for the year	 34	  -   	  (1,522)
	 Net book value at the end of the year	 7.1	  -   	  -   

7.1	 Net book value			 
	

	 Cost		   8,299 	  8,299 
	 Accumulated amortization		   (8,299)	  (8,299)
	 Net book value 		   -   	  -   
	
	 Rate of amortization - %		   33.33 	  33.33 

8	 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS			 
	

	 Investment in associated company	 8.1	  1,745 	  -   
	 Available for sale investments				  

Pakistan Refinery Limited (quoted) - at fair value	 8.2	  1,521,518 	  1,886,977 
	 Hascol Terminals Limited (unquoted) - at cost	 8.3	  375,000 	  -   
				    1,898,263 	  1,886,977 

8.1	 Investment in associated company									      
	

	 2017		  2016					   
		          Number of shares		       Unquoted			 
	

	 300,002		   -   	      VAS LNG (Private) Limited                 8.1.1		   1,745 	  -   
													          
8.1.1	 The investment has been accounted for using equity method.					  

	

(Rupees in thousand)
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8.1.2	 Shareholders of the Holding Company in the Annual General Meeting held on April 28, 2017 authorized 
investment upto Rs. 300 million i.e. 30% of equity interest in the VAS LNG (Private) Limited. During the year 
investment made by the Holding Company in VAS LNG (Private) Limited amounted to Rs. 3 million (2016: Nil) 
representing 30% (2016: Nil) equity stake. The Company holds 0.3 million ordinary shares (2016: Nil) of Rs. 10 per 
share. Details of investment is as follows:

			   	 2017	 2016
									       
	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   -  	  -   
	 Investment made during the year		   3,000 	  -   
	 Share of loss for the period		   (1,255)	  -   
	 Balance at the end of the year		   1,745 	  -   

8.1.3	 Summarized aggregated financial information of the Group’s share in associated company is as follows:

			   	 2017	 2016	
	
	 Total accumulated losses		   4,182 	  -   
	
	 Total assets		  6,904	  -   
	 Total liabilities		   (63)	  -   
	 Advance against issue of shares		   (1,024)	  -   
				   5,817	  -   
	 % share in net assets		  30%	  -   
	 Total amount of net assets		  1,745	  -   

			  Note	 Cost	 Unrealised	 Carrying
					    gain	 value
8.2	 Investment in Pakistan Refinery Limited								     

	
	 December 31, 2017	  8.2.1 	  1,172,772 	  348,746 	  1,521,518 
	  
	 December 31, 2016		   1,172,772 	  714,205 	  1,886,977

8.2.1	 Investment in Pakistan Refinery Limited represents 13.72% (2016: 13.72%) equity stake which is 43.25 million 
shares (2016: 43.25 million shares).									      
	

8.3	 Investment in Hascol Terminals Limited amounts to Rs. 375 million (2016: Rs. 75 million) representing 15% (2016: 
62.5%) equity stake which amounts to 37.5 million shares (2016: 7.5 million shares) as at December 31, 2017. 
During the year, the Holding Company subscribed to 30 million right shares at Rs. 10 each. These shares are not 
quoted on an active market and have been carried at cost. Hascol Terminals Limited provides storage facilities for 
imported and locally produced petroleum and related products. Due to change in ownership structure, the Holding 
Company loss control of Hascol Terminal Limited and therefore it is no longer subsidiary.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	

9	 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS				  
	

	 Lease deposits		   133,888 	  133,462 
	 Less: current portion of lease deposits	 13	  (794)	  (5,740)
				    133,094 	  127,722 
	 Deposits against:			 

	- depots		   107,144 	  107,144 
	 - retail outlets		   67,164 	  47,993 
	 - others		   24,135 	  6,773 
				    198,443 	  161,910 
				    331,537 	  289,632 

(Rupees in thousand)
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	

10	 STOCK-IN-TRADE			 
	

	 Raw and packing materials - lubricants		   97,636 	  79,694 
	
	 Finished goods				  

-   fuels	 10.1	  16,624,943 	  14,972,545 
	 -   lubricants		   298,577 	  315,292 
				   16,923,520 	  15,287,837 
	 Stock in transit				  

-   fuels		   1,509,777 	  1,110,137 
	 -   lubricants		   26,173 	  -   
				    1,535,950 	  1,110,137 
				    18,557,106 	  16,477,668 
													          
10.1	 Fuels include Rs. 3,620.17 million (2016: Rs. 1,725.56 million) of High Speed Diesel which has been maintained as 

line fill necessary for the pipeline to operate.	

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
								      
11	 TRADE DEBTS 			 

	
	 Considered good			 

	- secured	 11.1	  3,658,244 	  2,142,536 
	 - unsecured		   7,859,974 	  5,728,745 
				    11,518,218 	  7,871,281 
	 Considered doubtful		   849 	  849 
				    11,519,067 	  7,872,130 
	 Provision for impairment	 11.2	  (849)	  (849)
				   11,518,218	  7,871,281 
													          
11.1	 These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees, letter of credits and security deposits.	

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
			 
11.2	 Movement of provision for impairment				  

				 
	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   894 	  894 
	 Provision made during the year		   -   	  -   
	 Balance at the end of the year		   894 	  894 

12	 ADVANCES - considered good, unsecured			 
	

	 To employees 			 
	- against expenses		   46,023 	  1,716 

	 - against salaries		   63,755 	  13,348 
	 Leasing companies		   - 	  2,203 
	 Advance against purchase of shares	 12.1	  60,721 	  - 
	 Suppliers		  10,866 	  27,338 
				   181,365 	  44,605 

(Rupees in thousand)
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
12.1	 Advance against purchase of shares - related parties				  

				 
	 Hascol Terminals Limited		   57,685 	  -   
	 Hascol Lubricants (Private) Limited		   2,013 	  -   
	 VAS LNG (Private) Limited		   1,023 	  -   
				    60,721 	  -   

13	 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 			 
	

	 Deposits				  
Current portion of lease deposits	 9	  794 	  5,740 

	 Other deposits	 	  2,477 	  20,552 
				    3,271 	  26,292 
	 Prepayments			 

	- rent		   53,686 	  69,462 
	 - insurance and others		   23,676 	  14,001 
				    77,362 	  83,463 
				    80,633 	  109,755 
14	 OTHER RECEIVABLES			 

	
	 Inland freight equalization margin receivable		   2,019,113 	  1,024,234 
	 Receivable against services rendered	 14.1	  53,346 	  -   
	 Franchise income receivable - net	 14.2	  34,642 	  73,304 
	 Receivable against regulatory duty 		   25,533 	  25,533 
	 Receivable from oil marketing companies	 14.3	  9,073 	  11,328 
 	 Price differential claims	 14.4	  5,083 	  5,083 
	 Others 		   14,241 	  14,398 
				    2,161,031 	  1,153,880 
													          
14.1	 This represents amount receivable from Hascol Terminals Limited (an associated company) against services rendered 

by the Holding Company on account of business support services.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
14.2	 Franchise income receivable - net				  

				 
	 Movement in gross receivables	
	 Balance at the beginning of the year		  100,653 	  81,946 
	 Earned during the year		   -   	  18,707 
	 Received during the year		  (3,452)	  -   
	 Balance at the end of the year		   97,201 	  100,653 
	
	 Movement of provision 				  

Balance at the beginning of the year		   (27,349)	  -   
	 Charged during the year 	 37	  (35,210)	  (27,349)
	 Balance at the end of the year		   (62,559)	  (27,349)
			  14.2.1	  34,642 	  73,304 

14.2.1	This represents amount receivable from CNG dealers.				  
				 

14.3	 This represents amount receivable from various oil marketing companies on account of share of motor gasoline 
imported on their behalf.				  
			

14.4	 This represents amount receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) net of recovery as per fortnightly 
rates declared by the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources. The Holding Company together with other oil 
marketing companies are actively pursuing the matter with the concerned authorities for the early settlement of 
above claim. The Holding Company considers that the balance amount will be reimbursed by GoP in due course of 
time.				  
					  
		

(Rupees in thousand)
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	

15	 MARK - UP AND PROFIT ACCRUED			 
	

	 From conventional banks		  54,366 	  32,332 
	 From Islamic banks		   3,032 	  3,484 
				    57,398 	  35,816 
16	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES			 

	
	 Balances with banks: 			 

	
	 in current accounts:			 

	- Conventional banks		   865,191 	  1,413,344 
	 - Islamic banks		   62,135 	  1,925 
			  	  927,326 	 1,415,269
	 in saving accounts:			 

	- Conventional banks		   7,561,072 	  5,741,121 
	 - Islamic banks		   1,079,278 	  608,028 
			  16.1 	  8,640,350 	  6,349,149 
	 Cash in hand		   837 	  1,729 
				    9,568,513 	  7,766,147 
	 Term deposit receipts	 16.2 & 21.2	  60,000 	  60,000 
				    9,628,513 	  7,826,147 
													          
16.1	 These carry mark-up ranging from 3.75% to 5.5% per annum (2016: 3.75% to 6% per annum).			 

	
16.2	 This carry mark-up 5% per annum (2016: 5% per annum).				  

			
17		 SHARE CAPITAL						    

17.1	 Authorized share capital

			  2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			       Number of shares						            				  

					   
	 150,000,000 	 150,000,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each	 	  1,500,000 	  1,500,000 

17.2	 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

			  2017	 2016	 Note	 2017	 2016
			           Number of shares	  	

			  89,540,000 	  89,540,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
					       each fully paid in cash	 	 895,400 	  895,400 
		 	  1,060,000 	 1,060,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
					       each for consideration other than cash      17.3 		   10,600 	  10,600 
			   9,966,000 	  9,966,000 	 Annual bonus @ 11% Dec 2014	 	 99,660 	  99,660 
	  	 20,113,200 	 20,113,200 	 Interim bonus @ 20% Jun 2015		   201,132 	  201,132 
			   24,135,840 	  -  	  Right issue @ 20%  Sep 2017                        17.4 	 	  241,358 	  -   
		  	144,815,040  	 120,679,200 			    1,448,150 	  1,206,792

17.3	 These were issued on December 8, 2004 for consultancy, feasibility study, travel and other expenses. 	
	

17.4	 An associated company held 37,468,365 (2016: 18,101,880) shares which represents 25.87% (2016: 15%) of the equity 
stake of the Holding Company.
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016
18	 RESERVES				  

				 
	 Capital				  

Share premium	  18.1 	  4,766,854 	  1,070,828 
	 Surplus on re-measurement of available for sale investments		   322,589 	  624,930 
				    5,089,443 	  1,695,758 
	 Revenue				  

Unappropriated profit		   2,700,180 	  2,050,907 
				    7,789,623 	  3,746,665

18.1	 The reserve can be utilized by the Holding Company only for the purpose specified in section 81 of the Companies 
Act, 2017.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
				 
19	 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (NCI)				  

	
	 Opening balance		   469,714 	  -   
	 NCI contribution in share capital of subsidiary company 		   -   	  45,000 
	 Loss allocated to NCI 	 19.2	  (26,903)	  (4,575)
	 Net assets attributable to NCI		   (26,903)	  40,425 
	 NCI contribution in advance against equity of subsidiary company 		   -   	  429,289 
	 Disposal of non-controlling interest		   (442,811)	  -   
	 Closing balance		   -   	  469,714 
	
	 NCI Percentage 		   -   	 37.50%

19.1	 Net assets attributable to NCI			 
	

	 Non-current assets 		   -   	  736,067 
	 Current assets 		   -   	  22,324 
	 Advance against equity 		   -   	  (638,054)
	 Current liabilities 		   -   	  (12,536)
	 Net assets 		   -   	  107,801 
	 Net assets attributable to NCI		   -   	  40,425 

19.2	 Total comprehensive loss of the subsidiary company		   (71,740)	  (12,199)
	 Total comprehensive loss allocated to Owners of the Holding Company		   (44,837)	  (7,624)
	 Total comprehensive loss allocated to NCI 		   (26,903)	  (4,575)
		
	 Cash (used in)/generated from:			 

	- operating activities		   -   	  (10,499)
	 - investing activities 		   -   	  (736,797)
	 - financing activities 		   -   	  758,054 

20	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF 				  
   OPERATING FIXED ASSETS - net of tax			 
	

	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   1,656,347 	  1,847,286 
	 Transfer in respect of incremental depreciation for the year		  (190,935)	  (190,939)
	 Balance at the end of the year		   1,465,412 	  1,656,347 
	
	 Related deferred tax				  

Balance at the beginning of the year		   513,467 	  590,758 
	 Effective rate adjustment 		   (16,563)	  (18,101)
	 Reversal of deferred tax liability on account of incremental 				  

   depreciation charged during the year		   (57,281)	  (59,190)
	 Balance at the end of the year		  (439,623)	  (513,467)
				    1,025,789 	  1,142,880 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016

21	 LONG TERM FINANCING - secured			 
	

	 Borrowings from conventional banks	  21.1.1 	  562,500 	  725,000 
	 Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions	  21.1.2 	  1,013,769 	  220,007 
	 Sukuk certificates	  21.1.3 	  1,671,373 	  1,961,821 
				    3,247,642 	  2,906,828 
	 Current portion of long term financing			 

	
	 Borrowings from conventional banks		   225,000 	  162,500 
	 Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions		   382,479 	  136,579 
	 Sukuk certificates		   400,000 	  300,000 
			  27	  (1,007,479)	  (599,079)
	 Non - current portion of long term financing		   2,240,163 	  2,307,749 

19.1	 Terms and conditions of borrowings are as follows:	
			
	 Particulars	 Note	 Number of	 Grace	 Date of final	 Markup rate per	 Installment	 2017	 2016
				   installments and	 period	 repayment	 annum	 Amount
				   commencement
				   month

21.1.1	 Borrowings from conventional banks								      
First Women Bank Limited 	 21.2	 36 monthly	 Nil	 March 28, 2019	 six month Kibor + 1.3% 	  8,333 	  125,000 	  225,000 

	 Under DF scheme		  March-16			    payable monthly			 
	

	 National Bank of Pakistan 	 21.3	 16 quarterly	 1 year	 May 24, 2021	 three month Kibor + 2.5% 	  31,250 	  437,500 	  500,000 
	 Under LTF scheme		  May-16			   payable quarterly			 

	
21.1.2	 Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions							     

						   
	 Pak China Investment 	 21.4	 12 quarterly	 Nil	 February 29, 2020	 three month Kibor + 2.25%	  41,667 	  375,000 	  -   
	 Company Limited		  February-17			    payable quarterly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 21.5	 42 monthly	 6 months	November 19, 2018	 six month Kibor + 3%	  950 	  10,450 	  21,850 
	 Company Limited Loan 1		  December-14			   payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 21.5	 42 monthly	 6 months	 February 3, 2019	 six month Kibor + 3%	  1,431 	  20,033 	  37,205 
	 Company Limited Loan 2		  March-15			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 21.5	 42 monthly	 6 months	 May 19, 2019	 six month Kibor + 3%	  2,190 	  37,238 	  63,524 
	 Company Limited Loan 3		  June-15			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 21.6	 42 monthly	 6 months	 April 4, 2020	 six month Kibor + 2.5%	  1,286 	  36,000 	  51,428 
	 Company Limited Loan 4		  May-16			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 21.6	 42 monthly	 6 months	 August 19, 2020	 six month Kibor + 2.5%	  1,095 	  35,048 	  46,000
	 Company Limited Loan 5		  September-16			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme		
	
	 Pak Oman Investment	 21.7	 42 monthly	 6 months	 June 23, 2021   	 six month Kibor + 2.5%   	  2,381    	  100,000    	  -   
	 Company Limited Loan 6		  June-17			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme		
		
	 Pak Oman Investment	 21.8	 42 monthly	 6 months	 July 18, 2021	 six month Kibor + 2.5%	  9,524 	  400,000 	  -   
	 Company Limited Loan 7		  July-17			    payable monthly				  

Under LTF scheme	

21.1.3	 Sukuk certificates	 21.9	 20 quarterly	 1 year	 January 5, 2022	 three month Kibor + 1.5%	  100,000 	  1,671,373 	  1,961,821 
				   January-16			    payable quarterly				  

								        3,247,642 	  2,906,828 

21.2 	 This represents demand finance facility from First Women Bank Limited for construction of retail outlets which 
is secured against pledge of TDR of Rs. 60 million, Pledge of Pakistan Refinery Limited shares at 40% margin and 
personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman).			 
	

21.3 	 This represents term loan facility from National Bank of Pakistan for construction of storage depot at Mehmood 
Kot - Muzaffar Garh. The facility is secured against exclusive charge /mortgage of Rs. 666.67 million over the entire 
land and building, installation and machinery of the storage depot, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan 
(Chairman), post-dated cheques covering facility amount and corporate guarantee of M/s Fossil Energy (Private) 
Limited and M/s Marshal Gas (Private) Limited.			 
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21.4 	 This represents term finance facility from Pak China Investment Company Limited for the future expansion plans 
and working capital requirements of the Holding Company which was secured against first pari passu charge over 
the Holding Company’s current assets with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 666.67 million, personal guarantee of Mr. 
Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman) and promissory note covering the charge amount to be obtained from the Holding 
Company.						    
	

21.5 	 This represents two term finance facilities from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for establishment of 
Daulatpur bulk oil depot. The facility limit were utilized in multiple tranches out of which one of the facility with 
limit of Rs. 100 million was availed in two tranches, that is Rs. 39.9 million and Rs. 60.1 million. The other facility 
with a limit of Rs. 100 million was availed in a single trench amounting to Rs. 92 million. The finance facilities 
were secured against first pari passu charge on land, building, plant and machinery and equipment situated in Deh 
Kandah Nandho with 25% margin.			 
	

21.6 	 This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for expansion of Daulatpur 
bulk oil depot. The facility limit of Rs. 100 million was utilized in multiple tranches that is Rs. 54 million and Rs. 
46 million and facility was secured against first pari passu charge on the land, building, plant and machinery and 
equipment located at the Daulatpur Bulk Storage depot with 25% margin.			 
	

21.7 	 This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for the expansion of Daulatpur 
depot. The facility was secured against first pari passu charge on land, building, plant, machinery and equipment of 
the Company situated at Daulatpur bulk oil depot with 25% margin maintained all times.		
	

21.8 	 This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for the establishment of Sahiwal 
depot. The facility was secured against exclusive charge on land, building, plant and machinery and equipment of the 
Holding Company situated at Sahiwal depot with 25% margin maintained all times.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
			
21.9 	 Sukuk certificates - gross amount	  21.9.1 	  1,700,000 	  2,000,000 
	
	 Issuance cost 				  

Balance at the beginning of the year		   (38,179)	  -   
	 Addition 		   -   	  (47,731)
	 Charged to profit and loss		   9,552 	  9,552 
	 Balance at the end of the year		   (28,627)	  (38,179)
	 Sukuk certificates - net amount		   1,671,373 	  1,961,821 

21.9.1	This represents rated and secured privately placed long term Islamic certificates (Sukuk) amounting to Rs. 2,000 
million, issued to meet working capital requirements and future expansion plans of the Holding Company. Summit 
Bank Limited was the lead financial advisor and arranger while Meezan Bank Limited is acting as Shari’ah 
structuring advisor for the Sukuk. The facility is secured against first pari-passu charge over specific depots and 
retail outlets of the Holding Company inclusive of 25% margin.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
22	 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT 				  

   TO FINANCE LEASE				  
		

	 Present value of future minimum lease payments		   488,141 	  620,118 
	 Less: current portion	 27	  (110,538)	  (148,387)
	 Non current portion		   377,603 	  471,731 

22.1	 The Holding Company has entered into lease agreements with various leasing companies for lease of  items of 
plant and machinery and other assets. Minimum lease payments, which are payable by the year 2022, have been 
discounted by using financing rates ranging from  6 month KIBOR plus 1.6% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.75%  (2016 : 
6 month KIBOR plus 1.9% to 6 month KIBOR plus 3%). Title to the assets acquired under the leasing arrangements 
are transferable to the Group upon payment of entire lease obligations.			 
	

22.2	 The amount of future payments under the finance lease arrangements and the year in which these payments will 
become due are as follows:				  
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016
	
	 Not later than one year		   139,221 	  185,485 
	 Later than one year but not later than five years		   411,689 	  524,896 
	 Total future minimum lease payments		   550,910 	  710,381 
	 Finance charge allocated to future years		   (62,769)	  (90,263)
	 Present value of future minimum lease payments		   488,141 	  620,118 
	 Not later than one year		   (110,538)	  (148,387)
	 Later than one year but not later than five years		   377,603 	  471,731 

23	 DEFERRED AND OTHER LIABILITIES			 
	

	 Other liabilities	  23.1 	  524,875 	  600,000 
	 Deferred taxation - net	  23.2 	  699,422 	  408,790 
	 Deferred liability - gratuity	  23.3 	  188,825 	  135,791 
				    1,413,122 	  1,144,581 

23.1	 Other liabilities			 
	

	 Payable to MENA Energy DMCC		   1,049,750 	  600,000 
	 Current portion	 27	  (524,875)	  -   
			   23.1.1 	  524,875 	  600,000 

23.1.1	This amount pertains to provision recorded against claim of MENA Energy DMCC against out of court settlement 
of an ongoing litigation dispute in the English Commercial Court, London between MENA Energy DMCC and the 
Holding Company, based on advice and recommendation of the Solicitors and Senior Counsel representing the 
Holding Company in the litigation. The settlement involves the Holding Company agreeing, subject to State Bank of 
Pakistan’s approval, to pay the settlement amount over a period of 18 (eighteen) months in four equal installments 
of USD 2,375,000 each on 19th May 2018, 19th July 2018, 19th January 2019 and 19th July 2019. 

			   	 2017	 2016
		
23.2	 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET				  

		
	 This comprises the following:				  

		
	 Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of :				  

Accelerated depreciation		   (826,625)	  (354,233)
	 Assets under finance lease		   (160,068)	  (129,683)
	 Revaluation of operating fixed assets		   (431,061)	  (513,467)
	 Exchange gain - unrealised		   -   	  (1,797)
	 Surplus on remeasurement on available for sale investment		   (26,156)	  (89,276)
	
	 Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of :				  

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   146,442	  182,677 
	 Exchange loss		   92,461 	  -   
	 Provision for:				  

	- investments in subsidiary		   9,181 	  9,140 
	 - other liabilities		   314,925 	  186,000 
	 - retirement benefits		   56,648 	  40,718 
	 - doubtful trade debts		   2,368 	  2,358 
	 - franchise income		   18,768 	  8,168 
	 Turnover tax		   103,695 	  250,605 
				    (699,422)	  (408,790)
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			   	 2017	 2016
23.2.1	Movement in deferred tax (liability)/ assets				  
	
	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   (408,790)	  240,096 
	 Deferred tax expense			 

	- through consolidated profit and loss		   (362,430)	  (22,870)
	 - through consolidated other comprehensive loss		   71,798 	  9,805 
	 Adjusted against tax liability		   -   	  (635,821)
				    (290,632)	  (648,886)
	 Balance at the end of the year		   (699,422)	  (408,790)

23.3	 DEFERRED LIABILITY - GRATUITY			 
	

	 The Group operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for employees who have completed the employment period of 
5 years. Provision is created for the benefit of the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuations. Number of eligible 
employees covered in scheme are 298 (2016: 255).			 
	

	 The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme as at December 31, 2017 was carried out using the projected unit credit 
method, details of which as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
				 
	 Deferred liability - gratuity	 23.3.1	  188,825 	  135,791 

23.3.1	Movement in liability recognized in consolidated				  
	   balance sheet			 
	

	 Present value of defined benefit obligation as				  
   at the end of the year	 23.3.2	  188,825 	  135,791 

	 Fair value of plan assets		   -   	  -   
	 Balance sheet liability		   188,825 	  135,791 

23.3.2	Movement in liability recognized in consolidated 				  
   balance sheet			 
	

	 Balance at the beginning of the year		   135,791 	  99,090 
	 Add: charge for the year	 23.3.4	  35,261 	  27,508 
	 Less: payments to outgoing employees		   (25,825)	  (5,003)
	 Remeasurements charged to other comprehensive income		   43,598 	  14,196 
	 Balance at the end of the year		   188,825 	  135,791 

23.3.3	Movement in present value of the defined benefit 				  
	   obligation			 
	

	 Opening balance		   135,791 	  99,090 
	 Current service cost		   24,131 	  17,963 
	 Past service cost		   248 	  -   
	 Interest cost		  10,882 	  9,545 
	 Benefits paid during the year		   (25,825)	  (5,003)
				    145,227 	  121,595 
	 Remeasurement of actuarial losses - net of tax		   30,519 	  9,795 
	 Impact of deferred tax 		   13,079 	  4,401 
				    43,598 	  14,196 
	 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year		  188,825 	  135,791 

(Rupees in thousand)

Hascol Petroleum Limited Page 128



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
23.3.4	Expense recognized in the consolidated 				  

   profit and loss account				  
		

	 Current service cost	 34.1	  24,131 	  17,963 
	 Past service cost	 34.1	  248 	  -   
	 Net interest cost	 36	  10,882 	  9,545 
	 Expense recognized in consolidated profit and loss account		   35,261 	  27,508 

23.3.5	Remeasurement recognized in consolidated 				  
	   statement of comprehensive income			 
	

	 Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit 				  
   liability - net of tax		   30,519 	  9,795 

23.3.6	Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation			 
	

	 Split by vested / non - vested				  
(i) Vested benefits		   148,834 	  111,828 

	 (ii) Non-vested benefits		   39,991 	  23,963 
	
	 Split by benefits earned to date				  

(i) Present value of guaranteed benefits		   102,544 	  80,238 
	 (ii) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase		   86,281 	  55,553 
	
	 Expected distribution of timing of benefit payments				  

   Time in years			 
	

	  Within first year from the end of financial year 		   17,151 	  5,688 
	  Within second years from the end of financial year 		  26,209 	  45,752 
	  Within third years from the end of financial year 		   9,718 	  12,204 
	  Within fourth years from the end of financial year 		  28,546 	  7,527 
	  Within five years from the end of financial year 		   14,080 	  16,217 
	  Within six to ten years from the end of financial year 		   218,106 	  134,179 
	
	 Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on 				  

   present value of defined benefit obligation			 
	

	 Discount rate +1%		   171,406 	  126,065 
	 Discount rate -1%		   205,229 	  174,663 
	 Expected rate of salary increase +1%		   205,997 	  148,232 
	 Expected rate of salary increase -1%		  170,475 	  125,391 
	
	 Maturity profile of present value of defined benefit obligation		  2017	 2016
	
	 Weighted average duration of the present value of defined benefit 				  

   obligation (time in years)		   8.99 	  7.89 
	
	 Key statistics			 

	
	 Average age (time in years)		   42.46 	  43.69 
	 Average service (time in years)		   5.36 	  5.56 
	 Average entry age (time in years)		   37.10 	  38.13 
	 Retirement assumption age (time in years)		   60 	  60 	

		
				   SLIC 	  SLIC 
	 Mortality rates		  (2001-05)-1 	   (2001-05)-1 
	
	 The mortality rates are provided by the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLIC).		
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23.3.7	Historical information of staff retirement benefits
							    
						     2017	 2016	 2015	 2014	 2013		

		Present value of defined 						    
	    benefit obligation		   	 188,825	 135,791	 99,090	 71,057	 47,054

23.3.8	The expected gratuity expense for the year ending December 31, 2018 works out to be Rs. 49.42 million.	
	

23.3.9	Actuarial assumptions	 							     
	

	 The following significant assumptions were used in the valuation carried out at the balance sheet date using the 
projected unit credit method:

			   	 2017	 2016
				                              % per annum	

	 -   Expected long-term rate of increase in salary level  		  7.75	 7.5
	 -   Discount rate		  7.75	 7.5

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
24	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			 

	
	 Trade creditors	 24.1	  25,112,678 	  21,660,329 
	 Advance from customers		   4,608,668 	  4,253,932 
	 Payable to cartage contractors		   3,054,943 	  2,445,673 
	 Dealers’ and customers’ security deposits	 24.2	  254,680 	  170,000 
	 Accrued liabilities		   12,895 	  16,144 
	 Other liabilities		   1,279,184 	  688,185 
				    34,323,048 	  29,234,263 

24.1	 This includes Rs. 13,609 million (2016: Rs. 9,917 million) amount payable to M/s Vitol Dubai Limited (an associated 
company).				  
			

24.2	 The security deposits are non-interest bearing and are refundable on termination of contracts.	

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
25	 MARK - UP AND PROFIT ACCRUED				  
	
	 Long-term financing		  40,172 	  41,471 
	 Short-term borrowings		   71,400 	  30,383 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   2,431 	  2,729 
	 Letter of credit		   3,255 	  16,602 
				    117,258 	  91,185 
26	 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 			 

	
	 Borrowings from conventional banks - secured				  

National Bank of Pakistan 		   1,500,000 	  500,000 
	 Bank of Punjab		   500,000 	  -   
	 Samba Bank Limited		   196,070 	  199,991 
	 Sindh Bank Limited		   132,463 	  329,562 
	 Summit Bank Limited		   44,515 	  300,076 
	 United Bank Limited		   24,560 	  -   
			  26.1	  2,397,608 	  1,329,629 
		 Borrowings from Islamic bank - secured				  

Meezan Bank Limited	 26.1	  3,000,000 	  2,200,000 
	 Borrowings from Non Banking Financial 				  

   Institutions - secured				  
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited		   100,000 	  -   

	 PAIR Investment Company Limited 		   -   	  360,000 
			  26.2	  100,000 	  360,000 
	 	Commercial Paper - unsecured	 26.3	  1,447,091 	  -   
				    6,944,699 	  3,889,629 
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26.1	 These facilities were availed from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 7,700 million (2016: Rs. 3,800 
million). The rates of mark-up ranges from 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2016: 3 
month KIBOR plus 1.5% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.25%). These arrangements are secured against hypothecation 
charge over the Holding Company’s present and future current assets with minimum 25% margin, pledge of 
Pakistan Refinery Limited shares, with minimum 40% margin, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan 
(Chairman), along with equitable registered mortgage charge over the property situated at The Forum, Suite No. 
105-106, First Floor, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.			 
	

26.2	 These loans have been obtained aggregating to Rs. 300 million (2016: Rs. 400 million). The rate of mark-up is 1 
month KIBOR plus 1.8% (2016: 3 month KIBOR plus 2%). These are secured against hypothecation charge over the 
Holding Company’s present and future current assets.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
				 
26.3	 Movement in Commercial Paper				  

	
	 Discounted value		  1,446,204 	  -   
	 Unwinding of discount		   887 	  -   
	 Amortized cost	 26.4	  1,447,091 	  -   

26.4	 This represents rated, privately placed, Shari’ah compliant, Commercial Paper (CP) amounting to Rs. 1,500 million 
issued to meet the working capital requirements of the Holding Company. Bank Islami Pakistan Limited was the 
lead financial advisors and arrangers. The loan shall run for a period of one year covering two CP issues each having 
tenor of six months. The disbursement of second CP issue shall be subject to minimum two days clean-up period after 
complete adjustment of first CP issue. Instrument is unsecured, non-convertible and redeemable at maturity date in 
bullet payment.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
						   
27	 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT 				  

   LIABILITIES					   
	

	 Current portion of long term financing	 21	  1,007,479 	  599,079 
	 Current portion of deferred and other liabilities	 23.1	  524,875 	  -   
	 Current portion of liabilities subject to finance lease	 22	  110,538 	  148,387 
				    1,642,892 	  747,466 

28	 TAXATION			 
	

	 Sales tax payable		   609,883 	  171,657 
	 Income tax payable		   162,183 	  495,713 
				    772,066 	  667,370 

29	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS			 
	

29.1	 Contingencies					   
	

	 As per the deliberations of the main committee of the Oil Companies Advisory Committee (OCAC) held in their 
meeting number MCM-168 dated September 20, 2007, the financial costs on outstanding Price Differential Claims 
(PDCs) should be worked and billed to the Government of Pakistan (GoP) through OCAC by the Oil Marketing 
Companies (OMCs) on a regular basis. Although the Holding Company had billed Rs. 65.97 million to the GOP/ 
OCAC, the management had not accounted for its impact in these consolidated financial statements as the inflow of 
economic benefits, though probable, is not virtually certain.			 
	

29.2	 Commitments					   
	

(i)	 The facility for opening letters of credit  acceptances as at December 31, 2017 amounted to Rs. 45,425 million (2016: 
Rs. 30,582 million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. 14,752 million (2016: Rs. 3,663 
million).						    

(Rupees in thousand)
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	

(ii)	 Bank guarantees		   350,268 	  135,480 

(iii)	 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure contracted for 				  
   but not yet incurred are as follows:			 
	

	 Property, plant and equipment		   978,418 	  758,237 

(iv)	 Commitments for rental of assets under operating lease / ijarah
			
	 Not later than one year		   262,484 	  173,461 
	 Later than one year but not later than five years		   913,557 	  642,427 
	 Later than five years		   1,709,781 	  1,167,834 
				    2,885,822 	  1,983,722
30	 SALES - NET 			 

	
	 Gross sales inclusive of sales tax		  215,924,271 	  129,296,958 
	 Less: sales discount		   (261,969)	  (537,683)
				    215,662,302 	  128,759,275 

31	 OTHER REVENUE			 
	

	 Owned tank lorries		   316,408 	  46,960 
	 Franchise fee		   91,113 	  96,971 
	 Joining fee for petrol pump operators		   56,650 	  55,349 
	 Non fuel retail and lubricants		   36,289 	  8,307 
				    500,460 	  207,587 

32	 COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD			 
	

	 Opening stock of lubricants, raw and packing materials		   394,986 	  304,470 
	 Raw and packing materials purchased 		  1,080,201 	  780,242 
	 Less: closing stock of lubricants, raw and packing materials	 10	  (422,386)	  (394,986)
	 Lubricants, raw and packing materials consumed	 	  1,052,801 	  689,726 
	
	 Opening stock - fuel 		   16,082,682 	  8,165,548 
	 Fuel purchased	 32.1	  137,104,662 	  81,017,713 
	 Storage and handling charges		   586,673 	  538,393 
	 Duties and levies  	 32.2	  30,158,559 	  20,256,971 
	 Less:  closing stock - fuel	 10	  (18,134,720)	  (16,082,682)
				    165,797,856 	  93,895,943 
				    166,850,657	  94,585,669 

32.1	 This includes fuel purchased from local refineries and imports. Imports comprise 79% (2016: 77%) of total purchases 
from M/s Vitol Dubai Limited (an associated company). 

				   2017	 2016	

32.2	 Duties and levies 			    	
	

	 Petroleum development levy		   21,768,506 	  14,566,162 
	 Inland freight equalization margin		   5,548,169 	  3,624,258 
	 Freight		   2,841,884 	  2,066,551 
				    30,158,559 	  20,256,971 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
33	 DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES 			 

	
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 34.1	  746,313 	  443,932 
	 Depreciation	 6.10	  486,087 	  373,786 
	 Commission		   227,932 	  194,043 
	 Traveling and conveyance		   226,547 	  169,832 
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   252,142 	  201,788 
	 Insurance		   181,726 	  113,947 
	 Repairs and maintenance		   152,922 	  54,658 
	 Fuel and power		   99,777 	  21,448 
	 Advertising and publicity		   98,287 	  75,237 
	 Ujrah payments		   64,251 	  10,108 
	 Utilities		   56,082 	  44,857 
	 Printing, communication and stationery		   32,814 	  9,374 
	 Royalty 		   21,144 	  17,653 
	 Legal and professional charges		   9,906 	  3,236 
	 Fees and subscription		   9,764 	  11,072 
	 Miscellaneous		   972 	  1,266 
				    2,666,666 	  1,746,237 

34	 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES			 
	

	 Salaries, allowances and other benefits	 34.1	  329,005 	  220,939 
	 Legal and professional charges		   70,083 	  68,183 
	 Traveling and conveyance		   42,526 	  35,336 
	 Fee and subscription	 34.2	  45,226 	  23,044
	 Insurance		   32,023 	  21,711 
	 Repairs and maintenance 		   29,651 	  28,979 
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   31,400 	  10,677 
	 Depreciation	 6.10	  24,924 	  25,356 
	 Printing, communication and stationery		   21,835 	  27,043 
	 Advertising and publicity		   18,346 	  19,850 
	 Donation 	 34.3	  12,176 	  17,520 
	 Utilities		   10,662 	  10,368 
	 Auditors’ remuneration	 34.4	  3,344 	  3,226 
	 Technical service fee		   10,215 	  -   
	 Amortization	 7	  -   	  1,522 
	 Preliminary Expenses		   -   	  7,579
	 Miscellaneous		   1,925 	  -   
				    683,341 	  521,333 

34.1	 Salaries and other benefits relating to distribution and administrative expense include:		

	 - Gratuity 	 23.3.4	  24,379 	  17,963 
	 - Contribution to provident fund		   22,212 	  15,492 

34.2	 This includes Shariah audit fee amounting to Rs. 0.7 million (2016: Rs. 0.7 million) relating to Sukuk.	
	

34.3	 Donation includes amount of Rs. 0.88 million (2016: Rs. 0.5 million) paid to Layton Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust 
(LRBT), Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed, director of the Holding Company, who is also Chief Executive Officer of 
LRBT.			 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
	
34.4	 Auditors’ remuneration			 

	
	 Remuneration for the audit of Holding Company 				  

Statutory audit		   1,455 	  1,265 
	 Half yearly review		   483 	  420 
	 Certifications		   600 	  500 
	 Consolidation		  265 	  230 
	 Out of pocket expenses		   379 	  331 
				    3,182 	  2,746 
	
	 Remuneration for the audit of Subsidiaries				  

Statutory audit		   137 	  425 
	 Out of pocket expenses		   25 	  55 
				    162 	  480 
				    3,344 	  3,226 

35	 OTHER INCOME			 
	

	 Income from financial assets 				  
Profit on bank deposits			 
	- conventional banks		   237,434 	  143,678 

	 - Islamic banks		   41,619 	  21,355 
	 Dividend income 	 35.1	  -   	  13,407 
				    279,053 	  178,440 
	 Income from non-financial assets				  

Reversal of provision of Workers’ Welfare Fund		   97,228 	  -   
	 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets		   21,894 	  12,061 
	 Promotional marketing fee		   7,497 	  2,641 
	 Sundries 	 35.2	  7,466 	  2,228 
	 Rental income		   2,818 	  6,764 
	 Scrap sales		   1,525 	  1,055 
				    138,428 	  24,749 
				    417,481 	  203,189 

35.1	 This represents dividend received from investments in shares of Pakistan Refinery Limited.		
	

35.2	 This represents interest income earned from Hascol Terminal Limited (an associated company) amounting to Rs. 2.4 
million (2016: Nil) on advance against purchase of shares.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
				 
36	 FINANCE COST			 

	
	 Short term borrowings	 	 212,192 	  128,272 
	 Letter of credit		   171,073 	  162,244 
	 Long term borrowings		   113,531 	  92,440 
	 Assets obtained under finance lease		   45,442 	  35,193 
	 Bank charges          		   29,665 	  14,469 
	 Interest cost of defined benefit obligation	 23.3.4	  10,882 	  9,545 
				    582,785 	  442,163 
37	 OTHER EXPENSES			 

	
	 Provision against MENA Energy DMCC claim 		   449,750 	  600,000 
	 Provision against franchise income	 14.2	  35,210 	  27,349 
	 Income tax penalty	 37.1	  6,135 	  -   
	 Provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund		   -   	  46,423 
				   491,095 	  673,772 
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 37.1	 This represents amount of penalty paid to tax authorities on account of failure to deduct withholding tax on sales 
discount as per Division VIA part III of the first schedule of Income Tax Ordinance 2001. However, historically the 
tax authorities have reversed this penalty subsequently.

				   2017	 2016	
38	 TAXATION    				  

	
	 Current		   764,662 	  700,869 
	 Prior 		   130,359 	  28,610 
	 Deferred		   362,430 	  22,870 
				    1,257,451 	  752,349 
38.1	 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit 			 

	
	 Accounting profit before taxation		   2,585,542 	  1,955,625 
	
	 Tax at the applicable tax rate of 30% (2016: 31%)		   797,610 	  610,072 
	 Tax effect on income under final tax regime		   (64,239)	  (3,297)
	 Reversal of deferred tax asset - net	 	  362,430 	  22,870 
	 Prior year tax	 	  130,359 	  28,610 
	 Other adjustments		   31,291 	  94,094 
	 Tax expense for the year		   1,257,451 	  752,349 

39	 EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED			 
	

	 Profit for the year from continued operations		   1,399,831 	  1,203,276 
	 Loss for the year from discontinued operations		   (71,740)	  -   
	
					    Restated
				   2017	 2016

	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousand) 		   130,953 	  129,199 
	 Earning / (loss) per share - basic			 

	- continued operation (Rupees)		   10.69 	  9.31 
	 - discontinued operation (Rupees)		   (0.55)	  -   
	
	 There is no dilutive effect on basic earning / (loss) per share as the Group has no potential ordinary shares outstanding 

at year end.			 
	

40	 DISCONTINUED OPERATION 			 
	

	 As on September 13, 2017 the Holding Company subscribed to 16.5 million right shares out of 148 million shares 
issued at Rs. 10 each of Hascol Terminals Limited, which ultimately reduce equity stake from 62.5% to 15%. Therefore 
Holding Company lost control over subsidiary during the year. 			 
	

	 An analysis of discontinued operation this consolidated based in un-audited financials statement at the date if 
disposal were as follows:

					            Un-audited
					    September 13, 2017
	
	 ASSETS 			 

	Property and equipment	  2,062,118 
	 Long term deposits	  2,294 
	 Deposits and prepayments	 4,393 
	 Other receivables 	  16,521 
	 Cash and bank balances	 284,530 
			   2,369,856 
	 LIABILITIES			 

	Other payables	 69,721 
			  69,721 
	
	 NET ASSETS	  2,300,135 
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			   	 Un-audited	 Audited	
				   September	 December 
				   13, 2017	 31, 2016	
	
	 Revenue		   -   	  -   
	 Preliminary expenses		   -   	  (7,579)
	 Administrative expenses		   (71,740)	  (4,620)
	 Loss before taxation		   (71,740)	  (12,199)
	 Taxation		   -   	  -   
	 Loss for the year		   (71,740)	  (12,199)

41	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

41.1	 The aggregate amounts for remuneration, including all benefits, to the Chief Executive Officer and Directors of the 
Holding Company and executives of the Group are as follows:

		                                                                                        2017	                                                           2016
			  Chief  	  Directors  	 Executives  	  Chief  	  Directors  	  Executives	

	 	 Executive  	  		  Executive  		

	 Director’s fee 	  -   	  13,400 	  -   	  -   	  6,775 	  -   	
 	 Managerial remuneration 	  34,769 	  31,894 	  408,023 	  21,844 	  36,450 	  307,264 	
 	 Cost of living allowance  	  3,863 	  3,544 	  47,727 	  4,241 	  4,050 	  54,309 	
 	 Reimbursement of 
	    medical expenses 	  2,012 	  2,475 	  22,871 	  3,737 	  1,100 	  17,365 	
 	 Bonus  	  18,563 	  - 	  81,564 	  6,521 	  13,500 	  25,449 	
 	 Retirement benefits 	  1,910 	  26,824 	  17,884 	  1,249 	  2,085 	  12,158 	
			   61,117 	  78,137 	  578,069 	  37,592 	  63,960 	  416,545 	
	  
	 Number of persons  	 2 	  7 	  263 	  1 	  6 	 204	

41.2	 The Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are also provided with free use of Group maintained cars and 
cellular connections. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer is provided with free security services in accordance 
with the terms of employment.

42	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES			 
	

	 Related parties comprises of associated undertakings, directors, major shareholders, key management personnel, 
entities over which the directors are able to exercise influence, entities under common directorship and staff 
retirement fund.			 

	
	 Significant transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial 

statements, are as follows:			 
			   	 2017	 2016	
	
	 Transactions with related parties							     

	
	 Nature of relationship 	 Nature of transaction 				  

	Other related parties	 Consultancy services		  11,400 	  18,550 
	
	 Associated companies					   

Hascol Terminals Limited 	 Business support service		   53,346 	  -   
	 Hascol Terminals Limited 	 Advance against issue of shares		  57,685 	  -   
	 Hascol Lubricants (Private) Limited 	 Advance against issue of shares		   2,013 	  -  	

VAS LNG (Private) Limited 	 Advance against issue of shares		   1,023 	  - 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
43	 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 			 

	
	  Profit before taxation		   2,585,542 	  1,955,625 
	
	 Adjustment for:				  

Depreciation and amortization	 	  511,011 	  400,664 
	 Provision against franchise income	 14.2	  35,210 	  27,349 
	 Provision for gratuity	 23.3.4	  35,261 	  27,508 
	 Profit on bank deposits	 35	  (279,053)	  (165,033)
	 Dividend income	 35	  -   	  (13,407)
	 (Reversal) / provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund		   (97,228)	  46,423 
	 Provision against MENA Energy DMCC claim 	 37	  449,750 	  600,000
	 Exchange loss / (gain) - unrealised		   308,204 	  (15,572)
	 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets	 35	  (21,894)	  (12,061)
	 Finance cost	 36	  582,785 	  442,613 
	 Expenses of discontinued operations	 	  70,292 	  -   
	 Loss on associate	 8.1.2	  1,255 	  -   
	 Changes in working capital 	 43.1	 (1,792,468)	  191,659 
			  	 2,388,667 	 3,485,768 
43.1	 Changes in working capital			 

	
	 Current assets                    			 

	
	 Stock-in-trade 		  (2,079,438)	 (8,007,650)
	 Trade debts		  (3,646,937)	 (3,607,686)
	 Advances		  72,048 	 106,001 
	 Deposits and prepayments 		  (9,664)	 (4,431)
	 Other receivables	 	 (1,016,278)	 (325,992)
				   (6,680,269)	 (11,839,758)
	 Current liabilities				  

Trade and other payables		   4,887,801 	  12,031,417 
	 Changes in working capital		  (1,792,468)	 191,659

44	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS			 
	

	 Cash and bank balances	 16	 9,628,513 	 7,826,147 
	 Less: term deposit receipt	 16	 (60,000)	 (60,000)
				   9,568,513 	 7,766,147 
	 Short-term borrowings	 26	  (6,944,699)	  (3,889,629)
	 Add: commercial paper	 26	  1,447,091 	  -   
			  	  (5,497,608)	  (3,889,629)
				    4,070,905 	  3,876,518 

45	 OPERATING SEGMENTS			 
	

	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.	
	- Sales from petroleum products represents 99.2 % (2016: 99.7%) of total revenues of the Group.		
	- Out of total sales of the Group 99.1 % (2016: 99.1 %) related to customers in Pakistan.		
	- All non-current assets of the Group as at December 31, 2017 are located in Pakistan.		
	

	 The Group sells its product to dealers, government agencies and autonomous bodies, independent power project 
and other corporate customers. Sales to ten major customers of the Group are around 41.1% during the year ended 
December 31, 2017 (2016: 28%).			 
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			  Note 	 2017	 2016	
46	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 				  

	
	 Financial assets			 

	
	 Available for sale 				  

Long term investments	 8	  1,896,518 	  1,886,977 
	
	 At amortized cost				  

Deposits		   334,808 	  315,924 
	 Trade debts	 11	  11,518,218 	  7,871,281 
	 Advances	 12	  135,342 	  42,889 
	 Other receivables	 14	  2,161,031 	  1,153,880 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 15	  57,398 	  35,816 
	 Cash and bank balances	 16	  9,628,513 	  7,826,147 
				    23,835,310 	  17,245,937 
	 Total financial assets		   25,731,828 	  19,132,914 
	
	 Financial liabilities				  

	
	 At amortized cost				  

Long-term financing	 21	  3,247,642 	  2,906,828 
	 Other liabilities		   1,049,750 	  600,000 
	 Trade and other payables	 24	  34,310,153 	  29,218,119 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 25	  117,258 	  91,185 
	 Short-term borrowings	 26	  6,944,699 	  3,889,629 
	 Total financial liabilities		   45,669,502 	  36,705,761 

47	 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS			 
	

	 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction.			 
	

	 a) Fair values versus carrying amounts				  
				 

	 The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the consolidated 
balance sheet are as follows:

			  2017		  2016
					    Carrying	 Fair	 Carrying	 Fair
					    amount	 Value	 amount	 Value
	 Financial assets			 

	 Long term investments			    1,896,518 	  1,896,518 	  1,886,977 	  1,886,977 
	 Deposits			    334,808 	  334,808 	  315,924 	  315,924 
	 Trade debts			    11,518,218 	  11,518,218 	  7,871,281 	  7,871,281 
	 Advances			    135,342 	  135,342 	  42,889 	  42,889 
	 Other receivables			    2,161,031 	  2,161,031 	  1,153,880	  1,153,880 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 			    57,398 	  57,398 	  35,816 	  35,816 
	 Cash and bank balances			   9,628,513 	  9,628,513 	  7,826,147 	  7,826,147 
					     25,731,828 	  25,731,828 	  19,132,914 	  19,132,914 
	
	 Financial liability			 

	
	 Long-term financing			    3,247,642 	  3,247,642 	  2,906,828 	  2,906,828 
	 Other liabilities			    1,049,750 	  1,049,750 	  600,000 	  600,000 
	 Trade and other payables			    34,310,153 	  34,310,153 	  29,218,119 	  29,218,119 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 			    117,258 	  117,258 	  91,185 	  91,185 
	 Short-term borrowings			    6,944,699 	  6,944,699 	  3,889,629 	  3,889,629 
					     45,669,502 	  45,669,502 	  36,705,761 	  36,705,761 
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	 b) Valuation of financial instruments			 
	

	 The Group measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in making the measurements:			 
	

	 Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.			 
	

	 Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.			 
	

	 Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where 
the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data.			 
	

	 Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other 
financial instruments the Group determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do not 
have a market / quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.	
	

	 Valuation techniques used by the Group include discounted cash flow model. Assumptions and inputs used in 
valuation techniques includes risk-free rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and 
equity index prices. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the 
price of the financial instrument at the balance sheet date that would have been determined by market participants 
acting at arm’s length.

		 Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant unobservable inputs 
and a higher degree of management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management 
judgement and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, 
determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate 
discount rates.

	 c) Financial assets 							     
				   Carrying	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total
				   value	
	 2017								      

Long term investments		   1,896,518 	  1,521,518 	  375,000 	  -   	  1,896,518 
		
	 2016								      

Long term investments		   1,886,977 	  1,886,977 	  -   	  -   	  1,886,977

	 d) Non-financial assets 

	 2017							     
	

	 Building on lease hold land							     
	- Office and depots building		   2,464,822 	  -   	  -   	  2,464,822 	  2,464,822 

	 - Pump building		   1,552,314 	  -   	  -   	  1,552,314 	  1,552,314 
	 Tanks and pipelines		   2,161,249 	  -   	  -   	  2,161,249 	  2,161,249 
	 Dispensing pumps		   706,492 	  -   	  -   	  706,492	  706,492 
	 Plant and machinery		   303,547 	  -   	  -   	  303,547 	  303,547 
	 Electrical, mechanical and fire								      

   fighting equipment		   1,035,584 	  -   	  -   	  1,035,584 	  1,035,584 
				    8,224,008 	  -   	  -   	  8,224,008 	  8,224,008 
	 2016							     

	
	 Building on lease hold land								      

	- Office and depots building		   920,389 	  -   	  -   	  920,389 	  920,389 
	 - Pump building		   1,427,167 	  -   	  -   	  1,427,167 	  1,427,167
	 Tanks and pipelines		  865,493 	  -   	  -   	  865,493 	  865,493 
	 Dispensing pumps		   745,619 	  -   	  -   	  745,619 	  745,619 
	 Plant and machinery		   242,751 	  -   	  -   	  242,751 	  242,751 
	 Electrical, mechanical and fire								      

   fighting equipment		   535,554 	  -   	  -   	  535,554 	  535,554 
				    4,736,973 	  -   	  -   	  4,736,973 	  4,736,973
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48	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS			 
		

	 The Group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:	                 	 Note
		 - Market risk			   48.1.1
		 - Credit risk and concentration of credit risk			   48.1.2
		 - Liquidity risk			   48.1.3
	
	 This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies 

and processes for measuring any increase in risk, and the Group’s management of capital.			 
				 

48.1	 Financial risk management			 
	

	 The Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk 
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management 
policies.			 
	

	 The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group 
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 		
	

	 The Board oversee how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, 
and review the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.	
	

48.1.1	Market risk			 
	

	 The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency risk, 
interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which result from both its operating and investing activities. The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range. 
The market risk includes:			 
	

(a) 	 Currency risk			 
	

	 Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange 
rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The 
Holding Company imports petroleum product and is thus exposed to currency risk in respect to foreign creditors, 
which at the year end amount to USD 129.67 million (2016: USD 94.62 million) having PKR equivalent amount of Rs. 
13,333.70 million (2016: Rs. 9,916.65 million). The average rates applied during the year is Rs. 107.73 per USD (2016: 
Rs. 104.92 per USD) and the spot rate as at December 31, 2017 is Rs. 110.50 per USD (2016: Rs. 104.80 per USD).		
		

	 The Group manages its currency risk by close monitoring of currency markets. Under regulatory requirements, 
the Group cannot hedge its currency risk exposure against petroleum products. Consequently, the Group recorded 
exchange loss amounting to Rs. 795.77 million (2016: exchange gain amounting to Rs. 5.83 million) during the year. 

	 Sensitivity analysis 			 
	

	 As at December 31, 2017, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against USD with all other 
variables held constant, profit for the year would have been lower/higher by Rs. 667 million (2016:  Rs. 496 
million). 	

(b) 	 Interest / profit rate risk			 
	

	 Interest / profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises due to long-term financing and short term 
borrowings. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Group’s mark-up bearing financial instruments 
is summarized as follows:			 
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	 Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments						   
	

	 A change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would effect on profit or loss before tax is 
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.	

				                      	Profit and loss	                             Equity
	 Cash flow sensitivity of variable rate instruments		  100 bps	 100 bps	 100 bps	 100 bps
					    increase 	 decrease	 increase 	 decrease
									      
	 	(Expense) / income								      

	
	 As at December 31, 2017			    (6,048)	  6,048 	  (4,234)	  4,234 
	
	 As at December 31, 2016			    (5,654) 	  5,654	  (3,901) 	  3,901

	
	 		 Effective     	Exposed to yield/interest/profit risk              	Non-interest/profit bearing
			  yield/interest 	 Maturity	 Maturity	 Sub-	 Maturity	 Maturity	 Sub- 

2017	  profit rate %	 up to one	 after one	 Total	 up to one	 after one	 Total	 Total		
		 (per annum) 	 year	 year		  year	 year

	 Financial assets	 (a)
	 Long term investments			    -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,896,518 	  1,896,518	  1,896,518 
	 Deposits			    -   	  -   	  -   	  3,271 	  331,537 	  334,808 	  334,808
	 Trade debts			    -   	  -   	  -   	  11,518,218 	  -  	  11,518,218 	  11,518,218 
	 Advances			    -   	  -   	  -   	  135,342 	  -   	  135,342 	  135,342 
	 Other receivables			    -   	  -   	  -   	  2,161,031 	  -   	  2,161,031 	  2,161,031 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 			    -   	  -   	  -   	  57,398 	  -   	  57,398 	  57,398 
	 Cash and bank balances		    3.75-5.5	  8,640,350 	  60,000 	  8,700,350 	  928,163 	  -   	  928,163 	  9,628,513 
				   	  8,640,350 	  60,000 	  8,700,350 	  14,803,423 	  2,228,055 	  17,031,478 	  25,731,828 
		
	 Financial liabilities	 (b)										        

	Long term finances 		  7.95-10.15	  1,007,479 	  2,240,163 	  3,247,642 	  -   	  -  	  -   	  3,247,642 
	 Other liabilities			    -   	  -   	  -   	  524,875 	  524,875 	  1,049,750 	  1,049,750 
	 Trade and other payables			    -   	  -   	  -   	  34,310,153 	  -  	  34,310,153 	  34,310,153 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 		  	  -   	  -   	  -   	  117,258 	  -   	  117,258 	  117,258 
	 Short-term borrowings		  7.39-9.12	  6,944,699 	  -   	  6,944,699 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  6,944,699 
					     7,952,178 	  2,240,163 	  10,192,341 	  34,952,286 	  524,875 	  35,477,161 	  45,669,502 
	
	 On balance sheet gap	 (a)-(b)		   688,172 	  (2,180,163)	  (1,491,991)	  (20,148,863)	  1,703,180 	  (18,445,683)	  (19,937,674)

	 2016

	 Financial assets	 (a)
	 Long term investments			    -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,886,977 	  1,886,977 	  1,886,977 
	 Deposits			    -   	  -   	  -   	  26,292 	  289,632 	  315,924 	  315,924 
	 Trade debts			    -   	  -   	  -   	  7,871,281 	 -	  7,871,281 	  7,871,281 
	 Advances			    -   	  -   	  -   	  42,889 	  -   	  42,889 	  42,889
	 Other receivables			    -   	  -   	  -   	  1,153,880 	  -   	  1,153,880 	  1,153,880 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 			   -	 -	 -	  35,816 	  -   	  35,816	  35,816 
	 Cash and bank balances		   3.75-6	  6,349,149 	  60,000 	  6,409,149 	  1,416,998 	  -   	  1,416,998 	  7,826,147 
					     6,349,149 	  60,000 	  6,409,149 	  10,547,156 	  2,176,609 	  12,723,765 	  19,132,914 
													          

				 
	 Financial liabilities	 (b)										        

Long term finances 		  7.95-10.15	  599,079 	  2,307,749 	  2,906,828 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  2,906,828 
	 Other liabilities			    -   	  -   	  -   	  600,000 	  -   	  600,000 	  600,000 
	 Trade and other payables			    -   	  -   	  -   	  29,218,119 	  -   	  29,218,119 	  29,218,119 
	 Mark-up accrued 			    -   	  -   	  -   	  91,185 	  -   	  91,185 	  91,185 
	 Short-term borrowings		  8.15-9.65	  3,889,629 	  -   	  3,889,629 	  -   	  -   	  -  	  3,889,629 
					     4,488,708 	  2,307,749 	  6,796,457 	  29,909,304 	  -   	  29,909,304	  36,705,761 
	
	 On balance sheet gap	 (a)-(b)		   1,860,441 	  (2,247,749)	  (387,308)	  (19,362,148)	  2,176,609 	  (17,185,539)	  (17,572,847)
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(c) 	 Price risk 										        
	

	 Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the 
market prices (other than those arising from interest/mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes 
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuers, or factors affecting all or similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. The Group is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in 
quoted equity securities amounting to Rs. 1,522 million (2016: Rs. 1,887 million) at the balance sheet date. 		
	

	 The Group manages price risk by monitoring exposure in quoted equity securities and implementing strict discipline 
in internal risk management and investment policies. 							     
	

	 The value of investment subject to equity price risk are, in almost all instance, based on quoted market price as of 
the reporting date except for unquoted investments which are carried at cost. Market prices are subject to fluctuation 
and consequently the amount realized as a result of subsequent sale of an investment may differ from the reported 
market value. Fluctuation in the market price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying 
economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investment and general market condition. 
Furthermore, the amount realized in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the 
security being sold. 										        

	 Sensitivity analysis 										        

	 The table below summarizes the Group’s equity price risk as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and shows the effects 
of a hypothetical 30% increase and a 30% decrease in market prices as at the year end. The selected hypothetical 
change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Accordingly, the sensitivity 
analysis prepared is not necessarily indication of the effect on Group’s net assets of future movement in the level of 
PSX 100 index. 

				   Hypothetical	 Fair	 Estimated fair	 Hypothetical	 Hypothetical
				   price change	 value	 value	 increase / 	 increase /  

			   at 30%	  	 hypothetical 	 (decrease) in	 (decrease) in
						     after change	 shareholders	 profit / (loss)
						     in price	 equity

				 
	 December 31, 2017	  	 Increase	 1,521,518 	 1,977,973 	  456,455 	  456,455 
			  	 Decrease		   1,065,063 	  (456,455)	  (456,455)
	
	 December 31, 2016		    Increase	 1,886,977	  2,453,070 	  566,093 	  566,093 
				   Decrease		   1,320,884 	  (566,093)	  (566,093)

48.1.2	Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 	 								     
	

	 The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to the historical performance with no or some defaults 
in recent history. The Group manages credit risk of receivables through the monitoring of credit exposures, limiting 
transactions with specific customers and continuous assessment of credit worthiness of its customers.			 
	

	 The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under: 

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
					  
	 Long term investments	 8	  1,896,518 	  1,886,977 
		 Deposits		  334,808 	  315,924 
		 Trade debts - unsecured	 11	  7,859,974 	  5,728,745 
		 Advances	 12	  135,342 	  42,889 
		 Other receivables	 14	  2,161,031 	  1,153,880 
		 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 15	  57,398 	  35,816 
		 Bank balances	 16	  9,627,676 	  7,824,418 
				    22,072,747 	  16,988,649

(Rupees in thousand)
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	 Aging analysis of trade debts:								      
				                        2017		                      2016		

					    Gross 	 Impaired	 Gross 	 Impaired

	 Past due 1-30 days			    10,582,457 	  -   	  7,152,670 	  -   
	 Past due 31-90 days			    935,761 	  -   	  554,242 	  -   
	 Past due 91-180 days			    -   	  -   	  149,570 	  -   
	 Past due 181-365 days			    -   	  -   	  14,799 	  -   
	 Over 5 years			    894 	  894 	  894 	  894 
					     11,519,112 	  894 	  7,872,175 	  894 
	
	 The credit risk for bank balances is considered to be negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks and 

institutions with high quality external credit ratings. The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due 
nor impaired can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:	

	 Islamic Banks			   Rating Agency 		  Short term 	 Long term 
		
	 Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited	 PACRA	 A1	 A
		 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited	 PACRA	 A1	 A+
		 Meezan Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AA
		 MCB Islamic Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1	 A

	 Conventional banks			    
	
	 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China	 Moody’s	 P-1	 A2
	 Allied Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Askari Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Bank Al Falah Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Bank Al Habib Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Bank of Khyber	 PACRA	 A-1	 A
	 Bank of Punjab	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA
	 Faysal Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA
	 First Women Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A2	 A-
	 MCB Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA
	 National Bank of Pakistan 	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA
	 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+
	 Soneri Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA-
	 PAIR Investment Company Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA
	 Habib Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AAA
	 SAMBA Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1	 AA
	 Silk Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-2	 A-
	 Sindh Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AA
	 Summit Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1	 A-
	 United Bank Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AAA
	 Pak China Investment Company Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AAA
	 Pak Oman Investment Company Limited	 JCR- VIS	 A-1+	 AA+

48.1.3	Liquidity risk 				  
	

	 Liquidity risk reflects the Group’s inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the 
Group’s liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and 
creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual 
customers. The Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below: 
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					    Within one year		  Over one year 	 Total
	 2017					   

	
	 Long-term finances - secured	  1,007,479 	  2,240,163 	  3,247,642 
	 Other liabilities	  524,875 	  524,875 	  1,049,750 
	 Trade and other payables	  6,944,699 	  -   	  6,944,699 
	 Mark-up accrued 	  117,258 	  -   	  117,258 
	 Short-term running finances - secured	  6,944,699 	  -   	  6,944,699 
			   15,539,010 	  2,765,038 	  18,304,048 
	
	 2016				  

	
	 Long term finances	  599,079 	  2,307,749 	  2,906,828 
	 Other liabilities	  600,000 	  -   	  600,000 
	 Trade and other payables	  29,218,119 	  -   	  29,218,119 
	 Mark-up accrued 	  91,185 	  -   	  91,185 
	 Short-term borrowings	  3,889,629 	  -   	  3,889,629 
			   34,398,012 	  2,307,749 	  36,705,761

49	 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 				  
	

	 The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors’, creditors’ and market’s confidence 
and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern in order 
to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure 
to reduce the cost of capital. The Board monitor the return on capital, which the Group defines as net profit/(loss) 
after tax divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders 
subject to the availability of funds.				  
	

	 The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to 
maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
				 
	 Total interest bearing debt		   10,680,482 	  7,416,575 
	 Trade and other payables	 24	  34,323,048 	  29,234,263 
	 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 25	  117,258 	  91,185 
	 Less: cash and bank balances	 16	  (9,628,513)	  (7,826,147)
	 Excess of net cash over debt / net debt		   35,492,275 	  28,915,876 
	 Total shareholders’ equity and revaluation surplus		   10,263,562 	  6,096,337 
	 Net equity		   45,755,837 	  35,012,213 
	
	 Gearing ratio	 	 77.57%	 82.59%

50	 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND				  
	

	 The Group operates approved provident fund for its eligible employees. Details of assets and investments of the fund 
is as follows:

			  Note 	 2017	 2016
					  
	 Size of fund - total assets		   99,071 	  74,543 
	 Number of members		  295 	  260 
	 Cost of investments made		  101,727 	  70,018 
	 Percentage of investments made 		  103%	 94%
	 Fair value of investments 	 50.1	  100,695 	  72,406 
							    

					  

(Rupees in thousand)
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50.1	 The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:

		                                                                                                          2017	                                              2016		
			  Investments	 Percentage of	 Investments	 Percentage of 

			  investment 		  investment
				   Made		  Made
	
	 Saving bank accounts	  67,043 	  66	  55,289 	  76
	 Regular income certificates	  17,919 	  18 	  17,117 	  24
	 Mutual fund	 15,733	 16	 -	 -
			  100,695	 100	 72,406	 100		

			
50.2	 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of Companies 

Act, 2017 and applicable rules.				  
	

51	 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX				  
	

	 Following information has been disclosed with reference to circular no. 14 of 2016 dated April 21, 2016, issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan relating to “All Shares Islamic Index”.

	 S.no	 Description		  Explanation						    

	 (i)	 Loans and advances	 Non-interest bearing as disclosed in Note 21 and 26.			 
(ii)	 Deposits	 Non-interest bearing as disclosed in Note 9 and 13.				 
(iii)	 Segment revenue	 Disclosed in note 45.						    

	 (iv)	 Bank balances 	 Placed under interest arrangement and Shariah permissible 
				      arrangement as disclosed in note 16.					   

(v)	 Income on bank deposits	 Placed under interest arrangement and Shariah permissible 
				      arrangement as disclosed in note 35.					   

(vi)	 Gain/(loss) on disposal of 						    
			     available-for-sale investments	 Not applicable during the year.					   

(vii)	 Dividend income	 Disclosed in note 35.1.						    
	 (viii)	 All sources of income	 Disclosed in note 30, 31 and 35.					   

(ix)	 Exchange gain	 Earned from actual currency.						    
(x)	 Relationship with banks having	 Following is the list of banks with which the Group has a relationship 

			     Islamic windows	    with Islamic window of operations:				  
	

			                                                         S.no 	 Names of Islamic bank					  
					    1	 Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited;		
					    2	 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited;				  
					    3	 Meezan Bank Limited and				  
					    4	 MCB Islamic Bank Limited
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52	 CORRESPONDING FIGURES				  
	

	 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the purposes of 
comparison and to reflect the substance of the transactions. Following major reclassifications have been made during 
the year:

	 Reclassified from	 Reclassified to	 Note   	 Amount

	 Deposits and prepayments 	 Mark-up and profit accrued 	 15	  35,816 
	 Current portion of long term financing	 Current portion of non-current liabilities	 27	  599,079 
	 Current portion of liabilities subject to
	    finance lease	 Current portion of non-current liabilities	 27	  148,387 
	 Trade and other payables	 Deferred and other liabilities	 23	  600,000 
	 Taxation	 Deferred taxation - deductible temporary expenses	 23.2	  186,000 
	 Bank balances - in saving accounts	 Term deposit receipt	 16	 60,000 
	 Administrative expenses - ujrah payments	 Distribution and marketing expenses - ujrah payments	 33	  10,108 
	 Administrative expenses - salaries,
	     allowances and other benefits	 Finance cost - interest cost on defined benefit obligation	 36	  9,545 
	 Distribution and marketing - provision
	    against franchise income	 Other expenses - provision against franchise income	 37	 27,349 
	 Other income - sundries	 Other revenue - non fuel retail and lubricants	 31	 8,307 
	 Deposits and prepayments 	 Other receivables	 14	  1,153,880 
	 Operating fixed asset - leasehold land	 Capital work-in-progress - Advance to
			     Port Qasim Authority	 6.2	  44,187 
	 Long term deposit - others	 Deposit and prepayments - other deposits	 13	  730 

53	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES		  2017	 2016
	
	 Total number of employees as at year end		  755	 519
	 Average number of employees during the year 		  611	 457

54	 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE			 
	

	 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 3rd, 2018 has proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share for 
the year ended December 31, 2017 for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 
27th, 2018. These consolidated financial statements do not include the effect of the proposed cash dividend which will 
be accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2018.		
		

55	 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE			 
	

	 These consolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue on 3rd April 2018 by the Board of Directors 
of the Holding Company.

(Rupees in thousand)
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Form of Proxy
16thAnnual General Meeting

The Company Secretary 
Hascol Petroleum Limited 
The Forum, Suite No. 105-106, 1st Floor 
Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton 
Karachi

I / We __________________________________________________________________________________  of 

_____________________________________________________________________________________being 

member(s) of Hascol Petroleum Limited and holder of ______________________________ ordinary shares as per 

Share Register Folio No. __________________ and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. and Sub Account 

No._____________________________________________, hereby appoint 

__________________________________________________________________________________________    of 

________________________________ or failing him / her __________________________________ of 

______________________________ as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my 

/ our behalf at the 16 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 27  April 2018, and at any th th

adjournment thereof. 

As witness my / our hands / seal this ____________________ day of April 2018. 

Witness No.1 

Name  ________________________ 
Address            ________________________ 
  ________________________ 
CNIC  ________________________    _____________________________ 

          Signature  
(Signature should agree with the 
specimen signature required with 
the Company) Witness No.2         

Name  ________________________ 
Address            ________________________ 
  ________________________ 
CNIC  ________________________

Important

Rs. 5/- 
Revenue
Stamp

1. This proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the registered office of the Company at The Forum, Suite No. 105-106, 1st

Floor Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting. 

2. Members are requested: 

 (a) To affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 5/- at the place indicated above; and  
 (b) To sign across the Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company. 

For CDC account holder(s) / corporate entities
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met: 

i) the proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be stated on the form; 

ii) attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form;   

iii) the proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting; and 

iv)   corporate entities should produce a certified copy of the resolution pertinent of its board of directors’ meeting or a power of 
         attorney bearing signature of the nominee at the time of the Meeting, unless it has been provided earlier.   



2018

2018 27



Annual Report 2017 Page 149



Folio / CDS 
Account No. 

Total Shares Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder 
Name & CNIC Shareholding 

Proportion 
(No. of shares) 

Name & CNIC Shareholding 
Proportion 

(No. of shares) 
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